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BSE Limited  
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Dalal Street, Fort,  
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National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
Exchange Plaza,    
Bandra Kurla Complex,   
Bandra (E),  
Mumbai – 400 051 
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Dear Sir/ Madam, 
 
This is to inform you that the 25th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company for FY 
2021-22 will be held on Friday, September 16, 2022, at 03.30 P.M (1ST) at Edelweiss House, 
off C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Mumbai - 400098. 
 
Please find enclosed Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22 along with 
the Notice of the 25th AGM. 
 
You are requested to take above on record. 
 
Thanking you. 

Yours faithfully, 
 
 
For Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
 
 
        
Jignesh Gaglani 
Company Secretary 
 
 
 
 

JIGNESH 
MANHAR 
GAGLANI

Digitally signed by 
JIGNESH MANHAR 
GAGLANI 
Date: 2022.09.02 18:02:51 
+05'30'



 

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 

Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490 

Registered Office : Tower 3, Wing ‘ B’, Kohinoor City Mall , Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla (west), Mumbai – 400070,                        

Maharashtra;   +91 22 4272 2200 

Corporate Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.S.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098, Maharashtra  +91 22 4009 4400 Fax: +91 22 4019 4925   

www.edelweissretailfin.com   

NOTICE OF THE 25TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 25th Annual General Meeting of the Members of                                                

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Friday, September 16th, 

2022 at 3.30pm (IST) at the at Edelweiss House, Off. CST Road, Kalina, Mumbai – 400098 

to transact the following business: - 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

 

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2022, together with the Reports of the Board and the Auditors 

thereon. 

 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Shilpa Gattani (DIN: 05124763), who retires by 

rotation and, being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. 

 

3. To appoint M/s.  G. D. Apte & Co., Chartered Accountant as the Statutory Auditor of the 

Company to hold office for a period of 2 (Two) consecutive Financial Years from the 

conclusion of the 25th Annual General Meeting of the Company until the conclusion of 

the 27th Annual General Meeting of the Company and to authorize the Board of Directors 

(including Audit Committee of Board) of the Company to fix their remuneration. 

 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification/s, the following 

resolution as Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT further to the resolution passed by the members at their Extra 

Ordinary General Meeting held on November 3, 2021 and pursuant to the provisions of 

Sections 139 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read 

with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules , 2014, the RBI notification RBI/2021-

22/25, Ref.No.DoS.CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated April 27, 2021, and any 

other law for the time being in force (including any statutory modification or amendment 

thereto or re-enactment thereof), M/s. G. D. Apte & Co. (Firm Registration No. 100515W), 

be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the 

conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 27th Annual General 

Meeting of the Company, at such remuneration plus service tax, out-of-pocket, travelling 

expenses, etc. as may be mutually agreed upon by the Board of Directors (including Audit 

Committee of Board)  and M/s. G.D. Apte & Co.” 
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  SPECIAL BUSINESS:  

 

4. Issue of Non-Convertible Debentures 

 

     To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification/(s), the following 

resolution as Special Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 42, 71 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time (the Act), the 

Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to 

time, the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 as amended from time 

to time (the Rules), SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non- Convertible Securities) Regulations, 

2021, and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and other applicable SEBI Rules and Regulations, as 

amended from time to time and pursuant to the provisions of relevant Reserve Bank of 

India (RBI) Directions and further subject to the provisions of any other applicable 

statutes, Regulations, if any, including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 

thereof, and the provisions of the Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company 

and subject to the approvals, consents, permissions, exemptions and /or sanction of the 

appropriate authorities, institutions or bodies, as may be necessary and subject to such 

conditions, as may be prescribed by any of them while granting any such approval, 

consent, permission, exemption or sanction, approval of the Members be and is hereby 

accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Board’ 

which  term shall be deemed to include any Committee which the Board may have 

constituted or hereinafter constitute to exercise its powers including the powers conferred 

by this Resolution) to issue, offer and allot secured, unsecured perpetual, Non-Convertible 

Debentures, Market Linked Debentures (“the Debentures”) including but not limited to 

Subordinate Debentures which may or may not be classified as being additional Tier I or 

Tier II capital under the provisions of the RBI Master Direction, on private placement 

basis, listed and/or unlisted, aggregating to Rs. 1000 crores (Rupees One Thousand Crores 

only), during a period of one year from October 1, 2022 to September 30, 2023, to the 

eligible investors, on a private placement basis, in one or more tranches, on such terms 

and conditions as the Board may deem fit and wherever necessary, in consultation with 

lead manager(s), financial advisor(s), underwriter(s), legal advisor(s) and/or any other 

agency(ies) which the Board may deem fit and appropriate, however at any given point 

of time the aggregate limit of funds raised/ to be raised by the Company, including issue 

of Debentures shall not exceed the overall borrowing limits of the Company as amended, 

from time to time. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the Act, 

the Board of Directors of the Company (which term includes any Committee constituted 

by the Board) be and is hereby authorised on behalf of the Company to do all such acts, 

deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary including 
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delegation of powers extended unto the Board herein, and with further powers on behalf 

of the Company to settle questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard, 

without requiring the Board to secure any further consent or approval of the members of 

the Company.” 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited  

Sd/- 

Jignesh Gaglani 

Company Secretary 

Membership No: ACS 43583 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: May 6, 2022 

Registered Office:  

Tower 3, Wing B, Kohinoor City Mall, Kohinoor 

Kirol Road, Kurla (W), Mumbai - 400 070 

CIN: U67120MH1997PLC285490 
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Notes:  

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) 

may appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his behalf. A proxy need not be a 

Member of the Company. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received by 

the Company at its registered office not less than forty-eight hours before the 

commencement of the AGM. The Corporate Members are required to send to 

the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution, pursuant to Section 113 

of the Companies Act, 2013, authorizing their representatives to attend and 

vote at the AGM. Proxy form is annexed to this Notice;  

 

2. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 

2013, in respect of the special business is annexed hereto and forms part of the 

notice. 

 

3. Corporate Members intending to send their Authorized Representative to 

attend the Meeting are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board 

Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the General 

Meeting. 

 

4. Members / Proxies should fill in the attendance slip for attending the Meeting.  

 
5. In line with MCA Circulars and SEBI circulars dated May 12, 2020 and January 

15, 2021, the Notice calling the AGM along with the Annual Report for FY 2021- 

22 is being sent through electronic mode to those Members whose email 

addresses are registered with the Company /Depositories. Members may note 

that the Notice and the Annual Report will also be available on the website of 

the Company at https://www.edelweissretailfin.com/  

 
6. Additional information of Director(s) seeking re-appointment/appointment at 

the ensuing AGM, as required under Clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard on 

General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“SS-

2”), is annexed to the Notice. (Annexure 1) 

 

7. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and Explanatory 

Statement are open and available for inspection at the Registered Office of the 

Company on all working days between 11:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m., up to the date 

of this Meeting. The aforesaid documents will also be available for inspection 

at the General Meeting. 

 

8. The route map showing directions to reach the venue of the General meeting 

is annexed. 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT TO AGENDA ITEMS 

 

Item No. 3:- 

 

The Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) issued a Notification RBI/2021-22/25 Ref. No. DoS. 

CD.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated 27th April 2021, inter-alia, have stipulated that the 

maximum tenure of Statutory Auditor shall be limited to a continuous period of 3 (three) years 

only. The above requirement and condition is made applicable from financial year 2021-22.  

 

The Members of the Company in its Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on November 3, 

2021 approved the appointment of M/s. G. D. Apte & Co. (Firm Registration No.: 100515W) 

to hold the office till the conclusion of 25th Annual General Meeting to be held in year 2022 

and for a further period of two (2) years, from the conclusion of the 25th Annual General 

Meeting till the conclusion of the 27th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 

year 2024.  

Accordingly, the Company is required to appoint M/s. G. D. Apte & Co. to hold office for a 

further period of two years from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting (25th AGM) 

till the conclusion of 27th AGM of the Company. 

The Board recommends for approval by the Members the Resolution as set out at 

Item No. 3 of the Notice as Ordinary Resolution. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in 

any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution, as set out at Item 

No. 3 of the Notice. 

Item No. 4:- 

 

The Members of the Company had at the Annual General Meeting held on September 24, 

2021, by way of a Special Resolution, authorised the Board of Directors of the Company 

(which term includes any Committee of the Board to exercise its powers including the powers 

conferred by the Resolution) to issue, offer and allot secured, unsecured perpetual, Non-

Convertible Debentures, Market Linked Debentures (“the Debentures”) including but not 

limited to Subordinate Debentures which may or may not be classified as being additional 

Tier I or Tier II capital under the provisions of the RBI Master Direction, on private placement 

basis, listed and/or unlisted, aggregating to Rs. 1000 crores (Rupees One Thousand Crores 

only),to the eligible investors, on a private placement basis, in one or more tranches, on such 

terms and conditions as the Board may deem fit and wherever necessary, in consultation with 

lead manager(s), financial advisor(s), underwriter(s), legal advisor(s) and/or any other 

agency(ies) which the Board may deem fit and appropriate and the said approval would 

remain valid till September 30, 2022. 
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In order to meet its further growth requirements, the Company proposes to continue to issue, 

offer and allot Debentures namely secured, unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures, Market 

Linked Debentures (“the Debentures”) including but not limited to Subordinate Bonds, 

perpetual debt instrument which may or may not be classified as being additional Tier I or 

Tier II Capital under the provisions of the RBI Master Direction, on private placement basis in 

one or more tranches, to the eligible investors in accordance with the provisions of Sections 

42 and 71 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended 

from time to time (the Act), the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 

2014 as amended from time to time, the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 

2014 as amended from time to time (the Rules), and pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI 

(Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 as amended from time to 

time and other applicable SEBI Rules and Regulations, as amended from time to time and 

subject to the relevant provisions of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) Directions, Rules and 

Regulations, up to an amount not exceeding Rs. 1,000 Crores (Rupees One Thousand Crores 

only). The NCDs may be issued at par or at a premium and may be listed on the Stock 

Exchange(s), on such other terms and conditions as the Board or the Committee may 

determine. Towards that, the Company hereby seeks approval of the Members by way of a 

Special Resolution.  

 

The said approval would be valid for a period of one year from October 1, 2022, to September 

30, 2023. There is no change in limit to issue NCDs from the last approval of the shareholders 

accorded at the Annual General Meeting held on September 24, 2021. 

 

The disclosures as required under Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from 

time to time (the Act) and Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) 

Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time (the Rules) are as under: 

 

a) Particulars of offer including date of passing the Board Resolution:  

 

Resolution for issue of NCDs on a Private Placement Basis for a value not exceeding 

Rs. 1000 Crores, in one or more tranches, had been passed by the Board at its meeting 

held on May 06, 2022. The Board shall determine specific terms and conditions of the 

offer at the time of issuance of respective series/ tranche of the Debentures. 

 

b) Kind of Securities offered and the price at which security is being offered:  

 

Issue Price of the Debentures shall be determined at the time of issue of respective 

series/ tranche of the Debentures and each tranche may be issued at par or premium 

or discount depending upon the market scenario and various other factors impacting 

the price of the Debentures in general. 

 

c) Basis or justification for the price (including premium, if any) at which the offer or 

invitation is being made:  

 

http://www.edelweissretailfin.com/


Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 

Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490 

Registered Office : Tower 3, Wing ‘ B’, Kohinoor City Mall , Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla (west), Mumbai – 400070,     

Maharashtra;   +91 22 4272 2200 

Corporate Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.S.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098, Maharashtra  +91 22 4009 4400 Fax: +91 22 4019 4925  

www.edelweissretailfin.com   

Not Applicable. 

d) Name and address of valuer who performed valuation:

Not Applicable. 

e) Amount which the company intends to raise by way of such securities:

Amount aggregating upto Rs. 1000 Crores (Rupees One Thousand Crores only) in one 

or more tranches. 

f) Material terms of raising such securities, proposed time schedule, purpose or

objects of offer, contribution being made by the promoters or Director either as part

of offer or separately in furtherance of objects; principal terms of assets charged as

securities:

The Board or the Committee which the Board may have constituted or hereinafter 

constitute to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this Resolution 

shall determine the terms and conditions of the offer at the time of issuance of 

respective series/tranche of Debentures. 

The Special Resolution set out herein shall remain in force for the period of one year 

commencing from October 1, 2022 to September 30, 2023. 

The Board recommends the passing of the Special Resolution set out in item no. 4 of 

the Notice. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial personnel of the Company and/or any of their 

relatives have any particular interest or concern in this item of business except to the 

extent of the securities, if any, which are/may be held/subscribed by them. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited  

Sd/- 

Jignesh Gaglani 

Company Secretary 

Membership No: ACS 43583 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: May 6, 2022 

Registered Office:  

Tower 3, Wing B, Kohinoor City Mall, Kohinoor 

Kirol Road, Kurla (W), Mumbai - 400 070 

CIN: U67120MH1997PLC285490 
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Details of Directors as on 31st March 2022, seeking appointment / re-appointment at the 

25th Annual General Meeting of the Company pursuant to Secretarial Standard on General 

Meetings (SS-2)  

 

Particulars  Ms. Shilpa Gattani  

Age  44 years 

Date of first 

appointment  

February 06, 2020 

Experience in 

functional area 

Ms. Shilpa Gattani has over 16 years of professional work 

experience. She has been with Edelweiss since 2005 and is 

instrumental in starting the fixed income desk at Edelweiss. She 

has been leading this department since the last 6 years and has 

institutionalized the business to greater heights. Before being the 

head of Treasury Management business she was Head of 

Resources at Edelweiss Group wherein she was responsible for 

fund raising in the money market and Asset Liability 

Management. Over the period of last 10 years, she has built strong 

relationships with fund houses, banks and other financial 

institutions. Prior to this, Shilpa was company secretary for the 

Edelweiss Group and responsible for governance and secretarial 

functions. Shilpa is a member of Institute of Company Secretaries 

of India and has done her Masters in Business Administration. 

Qualifications  Member of Institute of Company Secretaries of India and Master’s 

in Business Administration. 

Terms and 

conditions of 

Appointment/ Re-

appointment  

Liable to retire by rotation. 

Remuneration to be 

paid and 

Remuneration last 

drawn  

Nil  

No. of Board 

Meetings attended 

during the year  

4 

Relationship with 

other Directors and 

Key Managerial 

Personnel 

None 

No of shares held in 

the Company  

Nil  
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Directorship in other 

companies 

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 

Membership/ 

Chairmanship of 

Committees of other 

public limited 

companies. 

Name of 

Company 

Name of 

Committee 

Position 

(Member/Chairman) 

Edelweiss 

Housing Finance 

Limited 

Audit Committee Member 

Asset Liability 

Management 

Committee 

Member 

Stakeholders 

Relationship 

Committee 

Member 

 

 

  

http://www.edelweissretailfin.com/


 

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 

Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490 

Registered Office : Tower 3, Wing ‘ B’, Kohinoor City Mall , Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla (west), Mumbai – 400070,                        

Maharashtra;   +91 22 4272 2200 

Corporate Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.S.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098, Maharashtra  +91 22 4009 4400 Fax: +91 22 4019 4925   

www.edelweissretailfin.com   

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

(To be handed over at the entrance of the meeting hall) 

 

Full name of the Members attending (in block letters) : ___________________________ 

 

Name of the Proxy: _______________________________________________  

(To be filled in, if the proxy form has been duly deposited with the Company)  

 

I hereby record my presence at the 25th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be 

held on Friday, September 16, 2022 at 3:30 pm at Edelweiss House, Off. CST Road, 

Kalina, Mumbai – 400098  

 

 

No. of Shares held : ____________________________  

 

DP ID/Client ID No. : ____________________________  

 

Regd. Folio No. : ____________________________  

 

Member’s/Proxy’s Signature : ____________________________  

 

• Only Member/Proxy holder can attend the Meeting.  

• Member/Proxy holder should bring his/her copy of the Notice and/or Annual 

Report for reference at the Meeting. 

 

Signed this ______day of _______________, 2022 
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PROXY FORM 

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]  

 

Name of the Members(s):______________________________________________________ 

Registered address: ___________________________________________________________  

E-mail Id: __________________________________________________________________ 

Folio No. / Client ID No.: _____________________ DP ID No. _______________________  

 

I/ We, being the member(s) holding _______ Equity Shares of the above named Company 

hereby appoint:  

 

1. Name: _________________________________ Email Id: _____________________  

Address: _____________________________________________________________  

Signature: _________________________________________ or failing him/her  

 

2. Name: _________________________________ Email Id: _____________________  

Address: _____________________________________________________________  

Signature: _________________________________________ or failing him/her  

 

3. Name: _________________________________ Email Id: _____________________  

Address: _____________________________________________________________  

Signature: _________________________________________ 

 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 

25th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, September 16, 2022 at 

3:30 pm at Edelweiss House, Off. CST Road, Kalina, Mumbai – 400098 Registered office of 

the Company and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution as indicated 

below: 

 

Sr. No. Particulars of Motion 

1.  Adoption of the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2022, together with the Reports of the Board and the 

Auditors thereon 

2.  Re-appointment of Ms. Shilpa Gattani as a Director who retires by rotation 

and, being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment 

3.  Appointment of M/s.  G. D. Apte & Co., Chartered Accountant as the Statutory 

Auditor of the Company 

4.  Issue of Non-Convertible Debentures on private placement  
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Signed this ____ day of ______________2022 

Signature of shareholder ________________________________  

Signature of Proxy holder(s) _____________________________  

 

  

 

Affix 

Revenue 

Stamp 

 

http://www.edelweissretailfin.com/


 

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 

Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490 

Registered Office : Tower 3, Wing ‘ B’, Kohinoor City Mall , Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla (west), Mumbai – 400070,                        

Maharashtra;   +91 22 4272 2200 

Corporate Office: Edelweiss House, Off. C.S.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai-400098, Maharashtra  +91 22 4009 4400 Fax: +91 22 4019 4925   

www.edelweissretailfin.com   

Note:  

 

1. This Form in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 

Registered Office of the Company at Edelweiss House, Off. CST Road, Kalina, 

Mumbai – 400098 not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.  

2. A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint proxy to attend and 

vote instead of himself. 
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ROAD MAP FOR THE VENUE OF THE GENERAL MEETING OF EDELWEISS RETAIL 

FINANCE LIMITED 

AGM Venue  

Edelweiss House, Off. CST Road,  

Kalina, Mumbai – 400098 

 

 

Route map for the venue of the meeting 
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BOARD’S REPORT 

 

To the Members of    

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited,  

 

The Directors hereby present their 25th Annual Report on the business, operations and the 

state of affairs of the Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year 

ended March 31, 2022 : -   

 

Financial Highlights                                                                                              

(₹ in millions) 

Particulars 2021 - 22 2020-21 

Total Income 
                            

1,799.07         2,500.73  

Total Expenditure 
                            

1,545.07         2,171.13  

Profit before tax 
                               

254.00            329.60  

Provision for tax (including Deferred Tax) 69.32 61.05  

Profit after tax 
                               

184.69            268.55  

Add: Profit and Loss account balance brought forward from 
previous year 

 
 959.86           475.41  

Other Comprehensive Income 

                                 

(0.39)               0.32  

Transition impact of Ind AS 116 (net of tax) -                   -    

Profit available for appropriation 1144.16           744.28  

Appropriations   

-          Transfer to special reserve under Section 45-IC of the 

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 

               

(36.94) 

            

(53.72)  

-          Transfer to/from Debenture Redemption Reserve           269.30  

-          Deemed distribution during the year          -    

- Reversal of ESOPs charges on cancellation                  3.73  - 

Surplus carried to Balance Sheet            1,110.95           959.86  

Net worth (Net worth = Equity share capital + other equity 4970.20 4736.70 
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Information on the state of affairs of the Company 

 

Information on the operational and financial performance, among others, is given in the 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report which is attached as “Annexure I” to this 

Report and that same is in accordance with the provisions of the RBI Master Direction No. 

DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 1, 2016, as amended from time to time. 

During the year there was no change in nature of Business of the Company. 

 

Major events during the year 

a. Application for merger of the Company with ECL Finance Limited 
 
The Company has filed an application under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 

before the National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) Mumbai Bench on March 26, 2019 for 

merger of the Company with ECL Finance Limited. Further, in view of the affidavits of all 

Equity shareholders of the Company, the requirement of Shareholders’ meeting for 

considering and/or approving the amalgamation has been dispensed by NCLT Mumbai 

Bench vide its order dated August 16, 2019. Also, the Bench has directed the Company to send 

notices to all its secured/ unsecured creditors (which are due and payable as on June 30, 2019) 

in the manner mentioned in the said order. Further, on March 25, 2019, our Company applied 

for approval from the Reserve Bank of India in relation to the merger of the Company with 

ECL Finance Limited, which was approved by the RBI on September 27, 2019. 

b. Change of place where the Books of Accounts are maintained 
 

Your Company has changed its address where Book of accounts are to be maintained from 

‘Edelweiss House, Off C.S.T. Road, Kalina, Mumbai – 400098’ to its Registered office i.e.  

Tower 3, Wing ‘B’, Kohinoor City Mall, Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla (west), Mumbai – 

400070 (Kohinoor House) which is within the local limits of the same city. 

Reserves and Surplus 

 

The details of the Reserves and Surplus are given in the Financial Statement attached 

herewith. 

 

Share Capital 

 

During the year, there was no change in the Authorised Share Capital, Issued Share Capital, 

Subscribed Share Capital and Paid up Share capital of the Company. As at March 31, 2022, the 

Authorised Share Capital and Paid up Share Capital of the Company stands at Rs. 500.00 

million and Rs. 429.50 million respectively 

Dividend  
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With a view to conserve the resource of the Company the Directors are not recommending 

any Dividend for the year ended March 31, 2022. 

Finance & Credit Ratings  

During the year, your Company neither issued any securities nor borrowed any long term 

funds, as the Company has sufficient liquidity/availability of resources in line with the Asset 

Liability Management requirements.  

The Company enjoys credit rating from various Rating Agencies. The details of the credit 

ratings are furnished in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Company: 

Your Company does not have any Subsidiary or Associate Company, nor has it entered into 

any Joint Venture Agreement under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Our network of offices 

We operate through a wide network of 39 offices as of March 31, 2022 spread across 17 States 

and 1 Union Territory. The reach of our branches allows us to service our existing customers 

and attract new customers. We service multiple products through each of our offices, which 

reduces operating costs and improves total sales. Our spread out office network reduces our 

reliance on any one region in India and allows us to apply best practices developed in one 

region to other regions. Our geographic diversification also mitigates some of the regional, 

climatic and cyclical risks, such as heavy monsoons or droughts.  

Loans, Investments and Guarantees 

 

The Company is engaged in the business of providing loans and making investments. During 

the year, the Company did not give any guarantee. Further, the provisions of Section 186 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to giving of loans, guarantees or providing security in 

connection with loan and acquisition of securities of any body-corporate are not applicable to 

the Company.  

 

Related Party Transactions 

All the Related Party Transactions (RPT) entered by the Company during the year were in the 

ordinary course of business and on arm’s length. There were no significant material 

transactions entered into by the Company with any Related Party during the year. Thus, the 

disclosure as per section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, in the prescribed Form AOC-2 

is not applicable to the Company. All the Related Party Transactions as required under Indian 

Accounting Standard (“Ind AS”) -24 are reported in the Notes to the financial statement. 
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The Company has formulated Related Party Transactions Policy, which is uploaded on the 

website of the Company, at https://www.edelweissretailfin.com/corporate-

governance/?Investor%20Relations  

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the 

company 

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have 

occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the Company to which the Financial 

Statement relates (i.e. March 31, 2022) and the date of the report. 

Annual Return 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 

framed thereunder, the copy of the Annual Return would be made available on the website 

of the Company at https://www.edelweissretailfin.com within the prescribed timelines. 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

                                

i) Directors 

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

Independent Directors have given a declaration that they meet the criteria of 

independence as provided in the said section. Accordingly, the Company confirms 

that in the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Independent Directors fulfil the 

conditions specified in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that the 

Independent Directors are independent of the management. 

 

ii) Non-Independent Directors  

 

The Board of your Company has 2 (two) Non-Executive Directors as on date of this 

Report  

 

iii) Changes in Directors 

 

a) Dr. Vinod Juneja (DIN: 00044311) appointed w.e.f May 15, 2021 as Additional 

(Independent) Director and regularised in the 24th Annual General Meeting held 

on September 24, 2021. 

 

b) Mr. Deepak Mundra (DIN: 06733120) resigned as Non-executive Director of the 

Company with effect from October 13, 2021. 

 

c) Ms. Shilpa Gattani (DIN: 05124763) retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual 

General Meeting (AGM) and, being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. 
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iv) Key Managerial Personnel 

During the year and until the date of this report, there were following changes in the 

Key Managerial Personnel of the Company: 

Sr. 
No 

Name of the KMP Nature of Change Effective Date 

1. 
Mr. Amit Pandey  Resigned as Company Secretary 

(CS) 
June 7, 2021 

2. 
Mr. Jignesh Gaglani Appointed as Company 

Secretary (CS) 
August 4, 2021 

3. 
Mr. Shailendra Dhupiya Resigned as Chief Financial 

Officer (CFO) 
February 28, 
2022 

 

Number of Board Meetings held 

During the financial year 2021-22, the Board met 4 (four) times on June 10, 2021, August 4, 

2021, October 28, 2021 and January 28, 2022 respectively. 

The number of meetings attended by the members of the Board are as follows :  

Member Category Meetings held# Meetings attended 

Ms. Shilpa Gattani Non-Executive 
Director 

4 4 

Mr. Phanindranath 
Kakarla 

Non-Executive 
Director 

4 4 

Mr. Sunil 
Phatarphekar 

Independent Director  4 4 

Mr. Vinod Juneja Independent Director 4 4 

Mr. Deepak Mundra* Non- Executive Director 4* 0* 

*Mr. Deepak Mundra ceased to be Director w.e.f October 13, 2021 
 

Remuneration Policy and Criteria for making payment to Non-Executive Director 

 

The Company has formulated a Remuneration Policy (“Policy”) as per the provisions of 

Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. During the year, there were no changes or 

amendments to the Remuneration Policy of the Company. The said Policy is placed on the 

website of the Company at https://www.edelweissretailfin.com/corporate-

governance/?Other%20Policies. 

 

Evaluation of the Performance of the Board  

 

The Board has formulated a Board Evaluation Policy (the Policy) for evaluating the 

performance of the Board, Chairman, Directors and its Committees of Board. Based on the 

same, the performance was evaluated for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022. 
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The Policy inter alia provides the criteria for performance evaluation such as Board 

effectiveness, quality of discussion, contribution at the meetings, business acumen, strategic 

thinking, time commitment, relationship with the stakeholders, corporate governance 

practices, contribution of the Committees to the Board in discharging its functions, etc.  

 

Internal Control System  

The internal controls at Edelweiss are commensurate with the business requirements, its scale 

of operation and applicable statutes to ensure orderly and efficient conduct of business. These 

controls have been designed to ensure reasonable assurance with regard to maintaining 

proper accounting controls, substantiation of financial statements and adherence to IND AS 

requirements, safeguarding of resources, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, 

ensuring operating effectiveness, reliability of financial reporting, compliance with applicable 

regulations and relevant matters covered in the Explanation provided under Section 134 (5) 

(e) of the Companies Act 2013. 

The Internal Control Framework of Edelweiss follows the below assurance practices to 

strengthen overall control: 

• COSO framework is implemented by considering the control environment, periodic risk 

assessment, performing control activity, timely communication to management and 

monitoring the control activities on a continuous basis. 

• Assurance on process efficiency by defining relevant, adequate scope of internal audit, pro-

actively preparing for regulatory review, remediating through preventive and corrective steps 

for identified risk events.  

• Reliability of internal controls aligned to risks identified in Risk Control Self-Assessment 

(RCSA) is monitored through process and internal financial control review. 

• Adequate documentation in the form of policies and SOPs (Standard Operating Procedures) 

enhances the control mechanism. 

Internal Financial Controls 

The internal financial controls adopted by the Company are in accordance with the criteria 

established under the Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the 

Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission. Based on its internal 

evaluation and as confirmed by the Statutory Auditors of the Company, the management 

team believes that adequate internal financial controls exist in relation to its Financial 

Statements. 
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Risk Management  

Risk management is an integral part of the Company’s business strategy. It maintains a robust 

risk management framework/policy to identify, assess, manage, prioritize, monitor and 

report risks. 

The Risk Management Committee oversees the risk management framework of the Company 

through regular and proactive intervention by senior management personnel. The Company 

adopts a conservative and forward-looking risk management practices while lending. The risk 

framework ensures that the Company underwrites to prudent risk standards, focuses on its 

target segment and delivers sustainable profitability. The senior management is responsible 

for ensuring that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place for 

monitoring, identifying and reviewing the risks associated with the business of the Company, 

with due support and guidance from the Risk Management Team. The company leverages 

analytics to design relevant application level scorecards and also ensures dashboards for 

effective dynamic portfolio monitoring. 

During the year, the Risk Management Committee met Four (4) times i.e. on July 06, 2021, 

August 9, 2021, November 22, 2021 and February 08, 2022. The constitution and the number 

of meetings attended by the Members of the Committee during the year under review is given 

below: 

Member Category Designation  Meetings held Meetings 
attended 

Mr. Mehernosh Tata Member Chief Executive 
Officer  

4 4 

Mr. Shailendra 
Dhupiya 

Member Chief Financial 
Officer 

4 4 

Ms. Shilpa Gattani Member Non-Executive 
Director  

4 3 

Mr. Nirav Kamdar* Member Risk Head 4* 1* 

Mr. Deepak 
Mundra# 

Member Non-Executive 
Director 

4# 1# 

Mr. Sandeep 
Agrawal$ 

Member  SVP - Finance 4$ 1$ 

*Mr. Nirav Kamdar ceased to be member w.e.f August 04, 2021 

#Mr. Deepak Mundra ceased to be member  w.e.f. October 13, 2021. 

$Mr. Sandeep Agrawal appointed w.e.f. February 8, 2022 

 

Audit Committee 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, (the Act), the 

Board of the Company has constituted an Audit Committee. The said Committee carries out 

such functions as are statutorily prescribed under the extant applicable laws and other 

incidental and ancillary matters related thereto. During the year ended March 31, 2022, the 

Audit Committee met Four (4) times i.e. on June 10, 2021, August 4, 2021, October 28, 2021 
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and February 28, 2022. The constitution and the number of meetings attended by the Members 

of the Audit Committee during the year is given below: 

Member Category Designation  Meetings held Meetings 
attended 

Mr. Sunil 
Phatarphekar 

Member 
 

Independent Director 4 4 

Dr. Vinod Juneja 
 

Member Independent Director 4 4 

Ms. Shilpa Gattani 
 

Member Non- Executive 
Director 

4 4 

Dr. Vinod Juneja appointed w.e.f. May 15, 2021. 

 

There were no instances wherein any recommendation of the Audit Committee was not 

accepted by the Board. 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee  

In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, (the Act), the 

Board of Directors has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The 

said Committee carries out such functions as are statutorily prescribed under the extant 

applicable laws and other incidental and ancillary matters related thereto. During the year 

ended March 31, 2022, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee met 1 (One) time i.e. on 

June 10, 2021. The constitution and the meeting attended by the Members of the NRC during 

the year is given below: 

Member Category Designation  Meetings 
held 

Meetings 
attended 

Mr. Sunil 
Phatarphekar 

Member Independent 
Director 

1 1 

  Dr. Vinod Juneja* Member Independent 
Director 

1 1 

Ms. Shilpa Gattani Member Non- Executive 
Director 

1 1 

*Dr. Vinod Juneja appointed w.e.f. May 15, 2022 

 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee  
 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), the 

Board has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The said Committee 

carries out such functions as are statutorily prescribed under the extant applicable laws and 

other incidental and ancillary matters related thereto. During the year ended March 31, 2022, 

the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met once on May 21, 2021.  The constitution 

and meeting attended by the Members of the CSR Committee during the year is given below: 
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Member Category Designation  Meetings 
held 

Meetings 
attended 

Mr. Sunil 
Phatarphekar 

Member  Independent Director 1 1 

Dr. Vinod Juneja* Member  Independent Director 1 1 

Ms. Shilpa Gattani Member  Non-Executive 
Director 

1 1 

*Dr. Vinod Juneja appointed w.e.f. May 15, 2021. 

 

The CSR Policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company i.e. 

https://www.edelweissretailfin.com/corporate-governance/?Other%20Policies. During the 

year, the CSR Policy was amended to align the same in accordance with the amendments 

in the CSR provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.  Further, 

report on the CSR activities for the FY 2021-22 is annexed as Annexure II 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act, the Board of Directors of the 

Company have constituted a Stakeholders Relationship Committee (‘SRC Committee’). The 

said Committee carries out such functions as are statutorily prescribed under the extant 

applicable laws and other incidental and ancillary matters related thereto. During the year 

ended March 31, 2022, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee met once on May 21, 2021. 

The constitution and the number of meetings attended by the Members of the SRC Committee 

during the year is given below: 

Member Category Designation  Meetings 
held 

Meetings 
attended 

Ms. Shilpa Gattani Member Non- Executive 
Director 

1 1 

Mr. Phanindranath 
Kakarla 

Member Non- Executive 
Director 

1 1 

Mr. Mehernosh Tata Member Chief Executive 
Officer  

1 1 

 

Statutory Auditors 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

Rules framed thereunder (the Act) and RBI circular ("Circular") dated 27th April 2021 on 

the Guidelines for appointment of Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory 

Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks (excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including 

HFCs), Members of the Company at their 24th Annual General Meeting held on September 

24, 2021 had appointed M/s. G D Apte & Co., as the Statutory Auditor of the Company 

from the conclusion of 24th Annual General Meeting of the Company till the conclusion 

of 27th Annual General Meeting of the Company.  The Circular amongst other 

restrictions inter- alia stipulates appointment of Statutory Auditors for a continuous 

period of 3 years and thereafter, reappointment in the same entity would not be eligible 
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for six years (two tenures). Since, S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP had already completed audit 

for a continuous period of three years and were ineligible to continue as Statutory Auditors, 

the Company, as a necessary step to comply with the aforesaid circular, appointed M/s. G. 

D. Apte & Co. as Statutory Auditors, in place of S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP. The said auditors 

shall hold the office till the conclusion of 25th Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 

2022 and for a further period of two (2) years, from the conclusion of the 25th Annual 

General Meeting till the conclusion of the 27th Annual General Meeting of the Company to 

be held in the year 2024. 

The Statutory Audit Report does not contain any qualifications, reservations and 

adverse remarks. 

Internal Auditor 

The Board had appointed M/s. M.M. Nissim & Co. as the Internal Auditors for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2022. 

 

Secretarial Audit  

 

The Board had appointed M/s. Manish Ghia & Associates, Company Secretaries, as 

Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022. A report 

issued by the Secretarial Auditors is annexed as Annexure III. The Secretarial Audit Report 

does not contain any qualifications, reservations and adverse remarks. 

Prevention of Sexual harassment of Women at Workplace 

 

The Company prohibits any form of sexual harassment and any such incidence is immediately 

investigated and appropriate action is taken in the matter against the offending employee(s) 

based on the nature and the seriousness of the offence. The Company has in place, a corporate 

policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at 

Workplace (the ‘Policy’) and matters connected therewith or incidental thereto covering all 

the aspects as contained under the ‘The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013’. The Company also has in a place an 

Internal Committee constituted under Sexual Harassment Prevention Act and Rules made 

thereunder to look into all complaints of sexual harassment made by an Aggrieved Person 

provided the sexual harassment has taken place at workplace or in the course of official duties. 

There was no complaint filed during the financial year and no complaint was pending at the 

end of the financial year. 

 
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings / Outgo 
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A. Conservation of energy 
 

i) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: 
The operations of your Company are not energy-intensive. However, adequate 

measures have been initiated for conservation of energy: 

• Quarterly /Periodic maintenance of Air Conditioners are carried out for better 
performance and to control power consumption across branches. 
 

• Electrical Planned Preventive Maintenance is performed at the branches to 
ensure that the health of the Electrical set-up is maintained which in turn 
conserves energy. 

 

• changed the HVAC schedule running operation which reduces the 
unnecessary running of Air conditioner. 

 
ii) the steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate source of energy – though 

the operations of the Company are not energy intensive, the Company shall 
explore alternative source of energy, as and when the necessity arises. 

 

iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment - Nil  
 

 
B. Technology absorption 

 

i)  The efforts made towards technology absorption: 
  
The following efforts have been taken towards technology absorption: 

 

a) The Company is continually working towards streamlining & optimizing the 
business workflows via technology absorption for most of the business functions 
& operations of the Company;  

b) Majority of legacy applications have been, either consolidated, or 
decommissioned; & have been replaced with digital workflows & modern 
technology solutions; 

c) Engineering of better technology solutions & elimination of fragmented 
applications, legacy applications, or applications functioning in silos; a 
continuous process; shall continue in-parallel; so that there are no outages & zero 
business continuity risks; 

d) The Company is continually working towards digitization & digitalization across 
various business verticals; 

e) The Company has adopted a cloud-first approach, for all of its existing & future 
applications; with a keen intent of optimizing technology spends & embracing 
cutting-edge tech stack. 
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f) Your Company operate in a highly automated environment and make use of the 
latest technologies to support various operations. It has in place a governance 
framework, information security practices and a business continuity plan to 
mitigate information technology-related risks. It is also guided by the 
Information Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy laid down by RBI Master 
Direction - Information Technology Framework for the NBFC Sector alongside 
your company also guided by an independent assurance team within Internal 
Audit which provides assurance on the management of information technology-
related risks. In addition, employees mandatorily and periodically undergo 
information security training and sensitisation exercises. 

The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product 
development or import substitution: 

 

a) Reduction of data-loss during customer onboarding; 
b) Consolidation of digital assets, storage & speedy retrieval; 
c) Various product enhancements; and 
d) Cost & resource optimization of ownership & upkeep of multiple 

applications relating to manpower, infrastructure, support and maintenance. 
  

ii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from 
the beginning of the financial year) – Not Applicable  

 

iii)  The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: 
 

a. The Company does not have a dedicated R&D division.  

b. The Company has been adopting cutting edge technology stack (low-code / 

no-code development platform, etc.) and unconventional models for solution 

engineering; for fastest go-to-market product deliveries. 

 

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO  
 

There were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year. 

Secretarial Standards 

The Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Secretarial Standards issued 

by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The Company has devised proper systems 

to ensure the same and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

  

http://www.edelweissretailfin.com/


 

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 

Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490 

Registered Office : Tower 3, Wing ‘ B’, Kohinoor City Mall , Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla (west), Mumbai – 400070,                             

Maharashtra;   +91 22 4272 2200 

www.edelweissretailfin.com   

Other Disclosure 

 

• No disclosure is required in respect of the details relating to the issue of Equity Shares 

with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise as well as sweat equity 

shares, as the Company has not issued such types of Shares during the period under 

review.  

• In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 there was no requirement of 

maintenance of cost records by the Company.  

• There were no significant or material order passed by any regulator or court or tribunal 

which would impact the status of the Company as a going concern and the  company’s 

operations in future.  

• Further, no fraud was reported by the Auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143 

during the year. 

 
Public Deposits 

The Company neither held any public deposits at the beginning of the year nor has it accepted 

any public deposits during the year. 

 

Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism 

 

Pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has in place a whistle 

blower policy for establishing a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees to report 

instances of unethical and/ or improper conduct and to take suitable steps to investigate 

and correct the same. Directors, employees, vendors, customers or any person having 

dealings with the Company may report non-compliance of the policy to the noticed 

persons. The copy of the policy is available on 

https://www.edelweissretailfin.com/corporate-governance/?Other%20Policies.  

The Directors and management personnel maintain confidentiality of such reporting and 

ensure that the whistle blowers are not subjected to any discrimination. No person was denied 

access to the Audit Committee during the year. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors 

of the Company oversees the vigil mechanism. 
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Opinion of the Board with regard to integrity, expertise and experience (including the 

proficiency) of the independent directors appointed during the year 

Dr. Vinod Juneja (DIN: 00044311) appointed w.e.f May 15, 2021 as Additional (Independent) 

Director and regularised in the 24th Annual General Meeting held on September 24, 2021. In 

the opinion of the Board, all the Independent Directors meets the standards of the Company 

with regard to integrity, expertise and experience (including the proficiency). Further their 

name has been included in the data bank created by IICA in terms of the Companies 

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Fifth Amendment Rules, 2019 dated October 22, 

2019. 

Particulars of Employees 

In terms of provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the 

details of remuneration and compensation of the employees are to be set out as an Annexure 

IV to the Board’s Report.  

In terms of provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, any member interested in 

obtaining a copy of information under Rule 5(2) of the aforesaid rules, may write to the 

Company Secretary of the Company at the Registered Office address. 

 

Proceedings under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) 

 

In terms of Rule 8 sub-rule (5) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, there was no 

application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 

2016 (31 of 2016) during the year. 

 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement 

Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), your Directors confirm that:- 

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards 

have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 

departures, if any;  

(ii) they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a  
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true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and 

of the profit of the Company for the financial year ended on that date;  

(iii) proper and sufficient care had been taken for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 

the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 

irregularities;  

(iv) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;  

(v) internal financial controls have been laid down and the same are adequate and 

were operating effectively; and  

(vi) we have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

Debenture Trustee: 

 

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited 

Asian Building, Ground Floor, 

17, R. Kamani  Marg, Ballard Estate, 

Mumbai- 400 001, Maharashtra, India 

Tel: +91 22 4080 7000;  

Fax: +91 22 6631 1776/40807080 

E-mail: itsl@idbitrustee.com 

Website: www.idbitrustee.com 

Contact Person: Mr. Naresh Sachwani     
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MACRO ECONOMY: REVIEW AND OUTLOOK 

    

The last two years have been difficult for the world 

economy on account of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Repeated waves of infection, supply-chain 

disruptions and more recently, inflation have created 

particularly challenging times. 

 

Right when the global economy seemed to be at the 

cusp of witnessing recovery after leaving the worst of 

the COVID-19 pandemic behind, the Russia-Ukraine 

crisis escalated. Understandably, the crisis has 

clouded India’s growth outlook as well. However, the 

results of the government’s growth-enhancing 

policies and schemes (such as production-linked 

incentives and government’s push toward self-

reliance) and increased infrastructure spending will 

lead to a stronger multiplier effect on jobs and 

income, higher productivity, and more efficiency - all 

leading to accelerated economic growth. 

 

The fiscal support given to the economy by the 

Central Government as well as the health response 

caused the fiscal deficit and government debt to rise 

in 2020-21. However, there has been a strong 

rebound in government revenue receipts which has 

gone up by 67.2% Y-o-Y during April to November, 

2021. 

 

Further, RBI continued to remain supportive of 

growth. RBI launched a suite of regulatory measures 

that included a loan moratorium, asset classification 

standstill, easing of working capital financing and 

deferment of interest, increasing of group exposure 

norms, restructuring of advances to micro, small, and 

medium enterprises (mSMEs) and reduction of the 

liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) requirements, to 

mention the main initiatives. 

 

Going ahead, while the economy is recovering, 

inflation is expected to skyrocket in the next few 
quarters of FY 2022–23 because of higher food and 

fuel prices and negative terms of trade. The next few 

months will be critical for India’s economy as the 

government and the RBI work at balancing the stress 

on inflation, currency, external accounts, and fiscal 

deficit. 

 

Overall Outlook 

 

While the economy was on a mending path from the 

COVID-19 pandemic, Russia’s invasion of Ukraine, 

inflationary pressures, etc. has upended the global 

economic outlook. The good news is, India has 

endured the pandemic for over two years and has 

come out of it more resilient.  

 

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS    

Commercial Credit Markets 
 

Banking Industry 

 

With the start of 2022, the Indian economy is 

gradually picking up momentum and is expected to 

grow at 6.5 percent in fiscal 2022-23. The pace of 

bank credit growth hit 9.6% in FY22, up from 5.6% in 

FY21. The banks’ asset quality are expected to 

improve with non-performing loan (NPL) ratios to 

decline due to recoveries or write-offs of legacy 

problem loans while the formation of new NPLs will 

be stable as the economy recovers. The loan growth 

will help banks push NPL ratios down by expanding 

the overall pool of loans. Capitalization, funding and 

liquidity will be stable and support loan growth. 

 

The onset of the pandemic led to a global shift in the 

way businesses and industries operate. Similarly, the 

financial industry also quickly transformed overnight, 

ramping up their digital infrastructure to ensure 

corporate and retail customers have 24/7 access to 

banking services. 

 

Credit continues to be driven by retail lending. On the 

wholesale side, part of the growth is due to the shift 

from money markets to loans and surge in 

commodities like oil has increased the demand for 

working capital. 

 

NBFC Industry 

 



 
 
 

 

With the increased pace of vaccinations and the 

broadening revival of the economy, the NBFC sector 

is expected to remain buoyant. The financial system 

is maturing from a bank-dominated space to a hybrid 

system wherein non-bank intermediaries are gaining 

prominence. 

 

Last two years have been challenging, but this year 

the industry is looking at a revival in a post-pandemic 

era and the revival will gather further momentum 

next fiscal. Most NBFCs have also invested good 

amounts in the technology infrastructure. So even if 

there is a lockdown, disruption in the business will be 

lower than what it was earlier.  

 

Housing finance companies would be the strongest 

corner of the NBFC population, with sharp balance 

sheet growth. The performance of asset financiers 

may be mixed, while gold loan lenders may 

consolidate after several quarters of robust growth. 

NBFCs are likely to post higher credit growth and 

improvement in asset quality in Q4 FY22 after seeing 

muted demand and rise in slippages due to Covid-19 

led disruptions for multiple quarters. 

 

Normalised collection efficiency will lead to higher 

recoveries and upgrades and higher credit growth 

shall further improve lenders headline gross non-

performing asset figures.  
 

Retail Finance  

 

India has one of the lowest credit penetration among 

larger economies and retail credit presents a large 

growth opportunity driven by long term trends of 

democratisation of credit, rising household incomes 

and increased consumption. The asset under 

management (AUM) of NBFC (Retail) is expected to 

grow 8-10 percent in fiscal 2023. 

 

In addition to retail mortgages, the other scalable 

area which has been a focus of all banks and NBFCs is 

SME finance owing to the government guaranteed 

scheme. This segment, though is an attractive offer 

for borrowers due to its lending cap, will pose 

challenges for lenders given constant business 

disruptions due to external uncertainties. 

Inopportune use of the ECLGS scheme without 

assessment of long-term customer viability has the 

potential to compound up the size of the problem for 

certain SME loans. Within the retail segment, 

personal credit, microfinance and gold loans are likely 

to be the primary growth drivers as other asset 

segments-vehicle finance and business credits are still 

facing headwinds because of supply constraints and 

asset quality concerns.  

 

EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE LIMITED OVERVIEW 
 

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (ERFL) was formerly 

known as Affluent Dealcom Private Limited (ADL) 

which was incorporated on February 18, 1997. It was 

an NBFC registered with the Reserve Bank of India 

bearing Registration number 05.03052 authorised to 

commence/carry on the business of a non-banking 

financial institution subject to the conditions given in 

the Certificate. The Company was acquired by 

Edelcap Securities Limited (ESL) and was converted 

into a public limited company with the name changed 

to “Affluent Dealcom Limited” on receipt of a fresh 

certificate of incorporation consequent to change in 

status on January 1, 2014 from the Registrar of 

Companies, West Bengal. Subsequently the 

Company’s name was changed to “Edelweiss Retail 

Finance Limited” pursuant to fresh certificate of 

Incorporation dated January 6, 2014.  
 

Subsequently, ERFL obtained a Certificate of 

Registration dated October 14, 2014 bearing 

Registration no. B-05.03052 issued by the Reserve 

Bank of India under section 45IA of the Reserve Bank 

of India Act, 1934, to commence/carry on the 

business of a non banking financial institution without 

accepting public deposits subject to the conditions 

mentioned in the Certificate of Registration. 

The registered office of the Company was shifted 

from the state of West Bengal to Maharashtra 

pursuant to Certificate of Registration of Regional 

Director order for Change of State dated September 

2, 2016 and fresh Certificate of Registration dated  

January 4, 2017 bearing Registration no.  B-13.02149 



 
 
 

 

has been issued by the Reserve Bank of India, 

Mumbai. 

 

It is a systemically important NBFC (NBFC – ND – SI).  
 

We are part of the Edelweiss Group which is one of 

India’s prominent financial services organization 

having businesses organized around the following 

business groups:   

 

• Credit business including Retail Credit and 

Corporate Credit 

• Wealth Management including Wealth 

Management and Capital Markets 

• Asset Management including private 

markets and public markets 

• Asset Reconstruction, and 

• Insurance including Life and General 

Insurance  

 

Edelweiss was founded in November 1995 with an 

aspiration to building a quality organization which 

would be guided by our values and beliefs and to 

create something for the long-haul. 25 years later, 

Edelweiss is one of India’s largest diversified financial 

services firms, helping over 1.6 million customers 

across the country accomplish their dreams and 

aspirations. 

  

Today, ERFL is a Rs. 11 billion asset base company 

with presence in SME Finance, Loan against Property, 

Wholesale Loans and Construction Finance, allowing 

it to address a considerable part of the financial needs 

of its customers.  

 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO 

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

 

With the Indian economy getting back onto a growth 

trajectory, credit disbursal numbers are on the rise 

again. Our strong business fundamentals have 

enabled us to withstand the headwinds faced by 

NBFC industry in the previous year. ERFL focused on 

Direct Assignment and Securitization as an effective 

way to be asset light and diversify sources of 

liabilities. At the same time, we devoted the year to 

improving productivity of our employees, deploying 

technology to enable our employees to cater to all the 

needs of the clients while working from home and 

ensuring quality of credit and customers. Various 

initiatives were undertaken during the year for 

building efficiencies. 

 

Further, structural interventions like process changes, 

analytics and technology adoption will aid in cost 

optimization and improved productivity. Several 

employee engagement initiatives also were 

undertaken with special focus on talent management. 

 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS FOR FY22 

 

A summary of our FY22 financial highlights is as 

under: 

• Total Revenue: Rs. 1799.08 million 

(Rs.2500.73 million for FY21) 

• Profit after Tax: Rs. 184.69 million 

(Rs.268.55 million for FY21) 

• Networth: Rs. 4,970.23 million (Rs. 4,736.62 

million at the end of FY21)  

• Return on Equity 3.70% (5.66% for FY21) 

• EPS (Basic and Diluted) Rs.4.30 (Rs. 6.26 for 

FY21) (FV Rs.10 per share) 

• Book Value per Share Rs.118.51 (Rs.114.07  

for FY21) (FV Rs.10 per share) compared to 

Rs.9,545.45 million at the end of FY21, down 

29.5%. 

 

INCOME  

Fund Based Revenue 

Our fund-based businesses earned revenue of 

Rs.1601.55 million for FY22 (Rs. 2,237.63 million for 

FY21). Out of this, interest income was Rs.1,550.26 

million (Rs. 2,182.99 million for FY21). Thus, almost all 

of the fund-based revenue comprises of interest 

earnings. 

 

Agency Fee & Commission 

Our agency fee & commission revenue was Rs.51.29 

million for the year, compared to Rs. 54.64 million in 

FY21, down 6.1%. 

 



 
 
 

 

Net Revenue 

For NBFCs, like banking industry, the concept of Net 

Revenue (net of interest cost) is another way of 

analyzing performance. This is because interest cost, 

as with all Banks and large NBFCs/HFCs, should reflect 

above the expenses line. On a net revenue basis, our 

Agency fee & commission for FY22 was Rs.51.29 

million (Rs.54.64 million for FY21) and Fund based net 

revenue, i.e. revenue net of interest cost, was 

Rs.722.95 million (Rs.833.85 million for FY21). Thus, 

the total net revenue for FY22 was Rs.971.77 million 

(Rs. 943.16 million for FY21). 

 
EXPENSES  
 

Our total costs for FY22 was Rs.1,545.07 million (Rs. 

2,171.13 million in FY21), down 28.8%. Within our 

total costs, operating expenses accounted for 

Rs.619.54 million in FY22 (Rs. 345.32 million for FY21) 

and credit costs accounted for Rs.(117.50) million in 

FY22 (Rs. 354.61 million for FY21). Our employee 

expenses increased from Rs.122.08 million in FY21 to 

Rs.215.72 million in FY22. As regards interest expense 

which decreased from Rs. 1349.14 million in FY21 to 

Rs.827.31 million in FY22, our borrowings at the end 

of FY22 were Rs.6,731.90 million compared to 

Rs.9,545.45 million at the end of FY21, down 29.5%. 

 

PROFIT AFTER TAX 

Our Profit after Tax for FY22 was Rs.184.69 million 

compared to Rs.268.55 million for FY21. 

 

Analysis of Profitability 

The company has posted profit after tax of Rs. 184.69 

million for FY22 which is lower from profit after tax 

for FY21 due to lower credit cost during FY22 partially 

offset by lower net interest income in FY22. 

 

Balance Sheet Gearing 

We believe that a strong balance sheet imparts 

unique ability to our company to be able to meet 

demands of our clients and be able to raise debt 

capital whenever required. ERFL has a total net worth 

of Rs.4,970.23 million as at the end of FY22 compared 

to Rs. 4, 736.62 million at the end of FY21. Amount of 

debt on the Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2022 was 

Rs. 6,731.90 million (Rs. 9,545.44 million as on March 

31, 2021), a Gearing Ratio of 1.35 times for FY22, 

(2.02 times FY21). The comfortable leverage allows us 

enough headroom to continue to grow and invest in 

business. The gross Balance Sheet size at the end of 

FY22 was Rs. 12,642.62 million compared to Rs. 

15,184.83 million at the end of FY21. 

 

ANALYSIS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN FINANCIAL 

RATIOS  

 

As per the SEBI Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements (LODR), we give below additional 

information in respect of financial parameters that 

are applicable to our company: 

 

1. Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 

25% or more as compared to the 

immediately previous financial year) in key 

financial ratios, along with detailed 

explanations therefore, including:  

 

(a) Debt Equity Ratio 1.35 for FY22 compared to 2.02 

for FY21; representing reduction in Debt by 29.5%. 

This was due to lower borrowings on account of 

increased focus on risk management rather than 

chasing asset growth. 

(b) Return of equity 3.70% for FY22, compared to 

5.66% for FY21. Decrease is mainly due to lower profit 

after tax during FY22. 

 

 

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE 

HIGHLIGHTS 
 

Brief highlights of our business performance in FY22 

are as under:  

 

CREDIT BUSINESS 

 

Credit business of ERFL broadly offers SME Finance, 

Loan against Property, Wholesale Loans and 

Construction Finance. These products provide us with 

the intended diversification in our business thereby 

reducing the concentration risk. Retail segment loans 



 
 
 

 

also provide the desired potential for scaling up in a 

vast underpenetrated market like India.  

 

Total credit book of ERFL stands at Rs. 10,719.17 

million at the end of this year compared to Rs. 

12,548.63 million at the end of previous year, down 

17.1%.  

 

The composition of Gross Credit Book is as under:            
   (Rs. In million) 

Product/ 

Segment 

As on March 

31, 2022 

As on March 

31, 2021 

Loan against 
Property 

2083.42 2,849.14 

SME Loans 2912.01 3,628.20 

Construction 
Finance 

0.62 132.66 

Wholesale loans 5,723.12 5,938.63 

Total Loan Book 10,719.17 12,548.63 

 

Our Net Interest Margin (NIM) on the average credit 

book for FY22 is 6.2%. 

 

Asset Quality 

 

As a result of strict adherence to conservative credit 

appraisal, constant collateral monitoring and best-in 

class risk management, ERFL has over the years 

managed to control its asset quality satisfactorily. 

However this year is an exception due pandemic 

induced lockdown & consequential economic stress. 

Further NPA resolution & recovery process got 

delayed due to honorable Supreme court stay order 

on declaration of NPA. Consequently our Gross NPAs 

were at 2.3% and Net NPAs at 1.8% at the end of FY22 

compared to Gross NPAs at 12.4% and Net NPAs at 

10.2% at the end of FY21. Our specific provision cover 

Ratio as per the expected credit loss model as on 

March 31, 2022 was 21.3% compared to 17.9% as at 

the end of FY21. 

 

BALANCE SHEET MANAGEMENT 
 

Changing Liabilities Profile in Sync with Asset Profile 

 

ERFL has over the period reducing dependence on 

group borrowings, diversify its sources of long term 

borrowing thereby bringing down dependence on 

short term borrowings. Out of total borrowings of 

Rs.6,731.90 million at the end of FY22 (Rs. 9,545.45 

million at the end of FY21), Rs. 2,955.03 million of 

borrowing at the end of FY22 having maturity beyond 

one year. We maintain a matched ALM as we keep 

aligning maturity profile of our assets and liabilities 

with changing balance sheet profile.  

 

Capital Adequacy Ratio 

 

As per the Non-Banking Financial Companies 

Prudential Norms stipulated by Reserve Bank, all 

NBFCs–ND–SI are required to maintain a minimum 

Capital to Risk-weighted Assets Ratio (“CRAR”) of 

15%. ERFL’s CRAR as on March 31, 2022 was 36.9% 

(39.9% as on March 31, 2021) with a Tier I Ratio of 

24.4% (26.7% as on March 31, 2021) 

 

OPPORTUNITIES 
 

Financial services in India continue to offer massive 

and scalable opportunities for companies like our 

company. The long-term growth story of India 

remains intact: 

 

• Increasing Financial literacy in the country, 

Democratisation of credit, Movement of 

household savings to investments and Rise in 

Demat accounts, rising entrepreneurship culture 

will present growth opportunities for a company 

like ours. 

• MSME’s are the backbone of the Indian economy 

and provide significantly to the GDP. The 

government and RBI both have provided huge 

incentives and opportunities for their growth. 

During the pandemic, various schemes and 

measures were taken to provide protection to 

them. Going ahead MSME’s will continue to be 

an integral part of the economy and will provide 



 
 
 

 

considerable/substantial opportunities to 

finance them for companies like ours. 

• Rapid Digitalization and Improving Technological 

infrastructures among both, the MSME’s and 

Finance sector will enhance the overall credit 

disbursal system. 

• The monsoon is predicted to be normal which 

will boost farm sentiments and improve overall 

prospects of the economy. 
 

THREATS 
 

While the economy is gradually coming out of the 

shadows of the pandemic, following threats cannot 

be ruled out and these, if they materialize, could 

reverse the current revival of the economy including 

NBFC sector in India: 

• Another COVID wave may reverse recovery of 

macro-economy, domestically as well as globally. 

• If the current challenges for NBFCs to source 

liabilities do not resolve soon, growth will continue 

to be a challenge for the sector. 

• Any abnormal surge in oil prices or weak monsoon 

or further delay in revival of capex cycle can also 

inhibit growth. 

• If the Russia- Ukraine war escalates, it can lead to 

disruptions in the global economies.  

• Disruptions in the global supply chain and increase 

in central bank rates can lead to slower economic 

growth 

 

OUTLOOK & STRATEGY 
 

While the GDP growth forecast for FY23 is robust and 

the Indian economy is now steadily recovering from 

the pandemic. Our confidence in the long-term India 

story continues to remain intact and growth 

opportunities will come back sooner than later. 

However, threats as outlined above can derail the 

current momentum of the economy. Companies that 

can demonstrate strong improvement in asset quality 

with the COVID subsiding and normalization 

materializing in collection and business momentum. 

 

As we look forward, we will continue to focus on 

culture, people, nurturing and scaling our business. At 

the same time, we will also see some new paradigms 

of focus – process and institutionalization and tech-

oriented thinking. 

 

Going forward, our business will leverage data and 

technology even more intensely along with an asset 

light model to build a strong and profitable book. 

 

As the economy gains traction gradually, we are well-

placed to take advantage of this India growth cycle. 

With strong capitalization, tailwinds from the 

economy and the inherent strength of our business, 

we are looking at an exciting and fulfilling journey 

ahead. 
 

ENTERPRISE GROUPS  
 

The business of our company is controlled and 

supported by a core of Enterprise Groups that provide 

consistent quality and rigour to key process functions. 

While our company itself is responsible and equipped 

with management of enterprise functions, it also 

draws upon the support from and expertise available 

at the Edelweiss Group level. Various steps taken by 

us to improve efficacy of Enterprise functions are 

detailed below.  

 

GOVERNANCE  
 

Governance is at the heart of everything we do and it 

transcends beyond compliance extending to ethics 

and values as well because we believe that well 

governed organisations tend to last longer. 

Governance to us means Trust covering Ethics & 

Integrity, Legitimacy encompassing Transparency, 

Authenticity and Fairness, Accountability including 

Decision making, responsiveness, Competence 

highlighting Simplicity, and above all Respect for 

letter and spirit of law.  

Our Board plays vital role in ensuring  highest 

Governance  level within the company  by setting 

tone  from top throughout the fabric of our 

organisation.  They set higher standards on ethics, 

integrity, transparency and fairness leading us to 

build good framework for conduct, behaviour and 

process oversights at all levels.  



 
 
 

 

In order to promote good governance culture, we 

have self-defined rules for good behaviour and 

conduct at individual as well as at entity levels 

covering issues of Conflict of Interest, Insider Trading, 

dealing with sensitive information etc. Learning from 

the recent past, we are  refining some of practices to 

facilitate smooth functioning while working from 

home through use of technology ensuring that best in 

class compliance standards are met always.  

RISK MANAGEMENT  

 

Risk management is integral part of business at 

Edelweiss. The good risk management practices of 

the Group have facilitated navigating through 

environmentally turbulent times. Respect for Risk is 

central to every business decision at Edelweiss.  

Simple questions are to be answered before every 

decision, i.e., "Is it worth it?” and "Can we afford it?”. 

This principle-based approach has stood well in 

protecting the organisation from vagaries of external 

world. 

 

While we have been managing various risks, a need 

for holistic approach to risk management led us to 

embrace the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) 

framework. This framework has helped us 

strategically benchmark our practices across different 

business lines to the best-in-class levels. We have also 

put in place an in-house “Eleven-risk framework” to 

formalize the process of Assess, Avoid, Manage and 

Mitigate risks across business verticals in a 

continuous manner. The objective of the ERM 

framework is to look at the risks from all perspectives, 

not just credit or financial risks and ensure that key 

risks are adequately and timely addressed.  

 

 
 

The risk governance structure at Edelweiss 

Group/ERFL includes Board, Audit Committee Risk 

Management Committee, Credit Committee, Asset 

Liability Management Committee and IT Strategy 

Committee. 

 

We use the “Three Lines of Defence” model to protect 

us from the various risks. The first line of defence 

comprises of the primary users – the business and the 

enterprise teams, whose responsibility is to ensure 

that the risks are identified, assessed, managed and 

mitigated. They have the primary accountability of 

the various risks. The second line of defence provide 

the risk oversight and is primarily comprised of our 

risk management and compliance functions. The risk 

management function also ensures that there is a 

right culture of risk appreciation and management in 

the organization, while defining the risk boundaries 

and ensuring protection against the extreme risks. 

The third line of defence comprises of our Internal 

Audit function and various board appointed 

committees. 

 

Risk Culture is of paramount importance to Edelweiss 

Group. We have taken multiple initiatives to further 

improve and strengthen the Risk Culture through the 

organisation. Appropriate risk behaviour is 

recognized and applauded through specific reward 

and recognition programs.  

 

Last 2 years, the whole world has faced a tail risk 

event of COVID-19 Pandemic. Coupled with national 

lockdown, this event necessitated unique approaches 



 
 
 

 

to mitigate different types of risk. Our advance 

preparation along with technology enablement in 

utmost agility ensured that almost all our critical staff 

could work from home seamlessly for business 

continuity and serving customer deliverables. In the 

short term, we were focused towards fighting the 

battle against COVID-19 and work was happening on 

different fronts for ensuring that we adapt to the New 

Normal going forward, as expeditiously as possible. 

We are using all our learnings from the pandemic to 

manage various types of emerging and newer risks in 

our business. 

 

We have the business risk team within our company 

which ensures implementation of risk philosophy and 

practices of Edelweiss Group. Our risk team also 

ensures that necessary action is taken to make certain 

that identified risks are adequately addressed.   

 

Key Risks 

ERFL deals in multiple asset classes and client 

segments. Thus, we are exposed to various risks that 

can be broadly classified as credit risk, market risk, 

operational risk and fraud risk.  

 
 

Credit Risk 

The credit risk framework of ERFL ensures prior and 

periodic comprehensive assessment of every client, 

counterparty and collateral. Exposure limits are 

sanctioned to counterparties based on their credit 

worthiness. Credit risk monitoring mechanism 

ensures that exposure to clients is diversified and 

remains within stipulated limits. Careful selection of 

quality and quantum of collateral is key for a client 

limit. Effective credit risk management has enabled us 

to steer through the current environmental stress 

conditions without any major impact.  
 

 

Liquidity and Market Risk 

ERFL faces the usual market risks on the liabilities as 

well as assets side. In order to monitor such market 

risks, a comprehensive set of reports and limits has 

been put in place. The risk framework ensures that 

the risks are monitored, and necessary timely action 

is taken for every single instance of breach, in case 

they occur.  
 

Additionally, the asset liability mismatch and 

collateral margins are regularly assessed. Liquidity 

requirements are closely monitored, and necessary 

care is taken to maintain sufficient liquidity cushion 

for maturing liabilities and for any unforeseen 

requirements. We also ensure diversification in 

source of borrowing to reduce dependence on a 

single source. We also pro-actively modify our 

liabilities profile in sync with the changing assets 

profile to ensure that we do not carry any material 

asset liability mismatch.  
 

 

Regulatory Risk 

ERFL is exposed to various changes in laws and 

regulations by the bodies governing the ERFL or by 

the Government. Realignment with the changed 

regulatory framework regularly is the key in 

mitigating this risk. 

 

Operational Risk 

Operational risk framework of ERFL is designed to 

balance and check operational risk at key 

manifestation points. In addition to defining new 

processes, we constantly review all critical processes 

to proactively identify weak controls and strengthen 

the same.  

All of the above will also help us in ensuring our 

compliance with Companies Act 2013 requirement of 

“adequate internal financial controls system and 

operating effectiveness of such controls”.  
 

 

Fraud Risk 

Business environment, increasing complexities and 

sophistication of technology makes us vulnerable to 

both internal & external fraud risks. At Edelweiss 

Group level we have defined and implemented an 

anti-fraud framework which lays emphasis on 

proactive reporting & early detection of incidents 

which is also followed by us. Trainings & campaigns 

ensure that our employees are cognizant of this risk. 

More specifically, for ERFL, due diligence on 

borrower’s income, KYC and title reports is carried 



 
 
 

 

out strictly as per laid down policy to ensure frauds 

are avoided. 
 

Our paranoia about risk management has helped us 

to steer though environmental stress in recent times 

without a major impact.  

 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR 
ADEQUACY 
 
Edelweiss Group has institutionalized a strong 

compliance culture across all the business entities 

recognising that transparency and trust amongst all 

its stakeholders can be achieved only through this. 

We believe compliance is the cornerstone of good 

corporate citizenship. 

The internal controls at Edelweiss are commensurate 

with the business requirements, its scale of operation 

and applicable statutes to ensure orderly and 

efficient conduct of business. These controls have 

been designed to ensure reasonable assurance with 

regard to maintaining proper accounting controls, 

substantiation of financial statements and adherence 

to IND AS requirements, safeguarding of resources, 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, 

ensuring operating effectiveness, reliability of 

financial reporting, compliance with applicable 

regulations and relevant matters covered under 

section 134 (5) (e) of the Companies Act 2013. 

 

Internal Audit 

Internal Auditors follow Standards on Internal Audit 

along with guidelines issued by regulators and ensure 

compliance with section 138 of the Companies Act 

2013, read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014, as amended and notified from time to 

time. The Internal Audit function operates under the 

supervision of the Audit Committee of the Board.  

The internal audits are carried out by external 

professionals who provide independent view and 

assurance by assessing the adequacy and 

effectiveness of internal control, compliance to 

internal and external guidelines and risk management 

practices. Internal Audit reports are reviewed by the 

Audit Committee of the Board. 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
The year has been full of learning experiences, and 

our people displayed resilience and unwavering 

commitment.   We narrowed down our strategic 

priorities for the year; be it ensuring people’s safety, 

conscious investment in knowledge, perspective and 

skill building, leveraging technology and data, 

exploring innovative solutions, building cost & 

process efficiencies or higher engagement with our 

internal and external stakeholders. As we 

implemented our priorities, being authentic and agile 

was most important. We believe keeping our people 

updated and informed along the way had a positive 

impact on employee morale, resulting in highly 

engaged teams. 

Our people are our greatest strength, and we are 

committed to creating a workforce that reflects our 

culture and values. Attracting, developing, and 

retaining talent that bring a variety of experiences 

and perspectives, is a step forward towards building 

this culture. People with rich experiences are drawn 

together by a common vision, with the aim to 

positively impact growth and development.  

Post attracting the right talent, our next priority is to 

prepare them for their next role and our robust 

training and development calendar ensures our 

teams have everything they need to achieve their 

career aspirations. SPARK is our learning platform 

that aims to instill the art of learning via leadership 

stories while Project Siksha is a holistic immersion 

plan, a walkthrough of product offering, and all the 

information needed for the entire sales and credit 

frontline team to originate and process Secured 

Lending cases. In addition to these, business specific 

trainings and knowledge and experience workshops 

are conducted regularly on the Learning Hub 

platform. Experiential Learning Groups are focused 

on training the next generation of leaders, while 

internal job movements, bridged the gap between 

our people and their aspirations 

Developments on the HR front in FY22 are 

summarized below:  



 
 
 

 

• The headcount as on March 31, 2022 (the 

end of the FY22) was ~145. 

• We partnered with various stakeholders in 

the ecosystem to create an exhaustive 

roadmap for our hiring process. The aim was 

to attract freshers (graduate and post-

graduate) and talent from across competing 

firms were onboarded.   

• We implemented learning interventions 

designed to address all stages of the 

employee’s journey - Pre-boarding, 

onboarding, and integration stage.  

• Investment in digitalization & innovation – 

The launch of our unified HRMS tool 

DarwinBox, made our processes more 

efficient for our people. The Performance 

Management System was moved on to the 

platform and our teams can monitor their 

year-end feedback, development plans, 

complete goal setting, and track progress on 

a real time basis, all at the click of a button.  

A robust reward and recognition program to applaud 

our teams, spontaneously and over the course of the 

year, has helped drive the culture of recognition. The 

opus platform, is a more spontaneous recognition 

program while the GEM awards recognize our people 

who have gone the x-tra mile, more specific to the 

SME business. 

People Practices during COVID-19 Pandemic 

 

The health and wellbeing of our people continues to 

be a priority, and we organized several informative 

workshops and webinars to educate our teams about 

the key dos and don’ts during the pandemic. Our 

Covid warrior team, constituting people across 

businesses and functions, came together to provide 

any support that our people required. This could be 

helping with medical supplies and health 

emergencies, or even just offering emotional support.  

 

During the pandemic, our hybrid work model gave 

our people the flexibility to WFH, WFO or WFF and 

the use of technology made sure we stayed 

connected at every stage.  Staff communication 

around COVID advisories, health & safety webinars, 

vaccination drives and various other Covid initiatives, 

provided our people with the required information to 

help them and their family deal with the situation. 

Our ‘We Care’ umbrella monitored individual health 

through various touch points including regular phone 

calls 

• 11% of our workforce was impacted in the 

second COVID wave 

• We ensured that our employees were 

engaged, and all support was provided to 

fulfil their professional responsibilities.  

• Proactive measures were taken to help 

people stay on top of their health and 

wellness. In collaboration with our health 

partner, we launched the ‘Expert Speak 

series’, designed to create awareness and 

mindfulness about overall health and safety. 

These webinars covered facts around COVID 

vaccination, pre and post COVID care, the 

power and healing of ayurveda, awareness 

about the Omicron variant, and busting 

some myths about COVID, to name a few.  

• Our exclusive 24X7 teleconsultation and 

counselling service made it easy for our 

people and their dependents to consult a 

wide range of doctors and specialists on 

multiple health issues.  

• The COVID special leave was introduced so 

that our people could take time off for a 

faster recovery process, for self and family  

• Vaccination drives were organized to cover 

all our employees and their family members, 

at a pan India level  

 

There is a constant watch on the situation and with 

reduction in the number of cases across India, we 

transitioned completely to working from the office. 

All support was extended to make this transition 

seamless, be it setting up technology, any 

infrastructure support, and ensuring that we followed 

the safety protocols at all times. 

 

https://myhredelweisscredit.darwinbox.in/dashboard


 
 
 

 

TECHNOLOGY 

 

Leadership 

In the changed context, virtual leadership emerged to 

ensure that plans, decisions, information, and 

accomplishments are shared to motivate team 

members while sustaining connection, trust, and 

engagement with team members through frequent 

check-ins.   

 

Our tiered Edelweiss Group Leadership Program in 

businesses continues to build capacities to nurture 

top talent in entry and mid-level. Focus on Senior 

leadership cohort continues to build a strong thinking 

body which acts as catalyst to shape our strategy. We 

are a part of this Group Leadership Programme. 

  

Technology resiliency 

  The key pillars of technology resiliency have been: 

- Cloud adoption: Migrating to the cloud ensured 

high availability, scalability and resiliency of our 

business applications with employees being able 

to securely access from anywhere, using any 

device and at any time 

- Unified collaboration suite: Deployment of a 

unified collaboration suite helped improve the 

employee productivity 

- Intelligent Automation: This enabled us to 

develop new experiences and deliver process 

changes rapidly through low code software 

development tools 

- Artificial Intelligence: Leveraging advanced 

Machine Learning algorithms, we have deployed 

over 20 models for evaluating risks, performing 

AML checks, doing customer KYC, identifying 

frauds, etc. in the Group companies thereby 

building efficiencies in our business 

 

Information Security & Governance 

 

During COVID-19 pandemic, the threat landscape 

reached a critical tipping point that changed cyber 

security outlook. It not only increased digitization but 

also cybercrimes. To cater to this changing landscape, 

we have adopted zero trust security model. This new 

model requires strict identity verification for every 

person and device trying to access resources on a 

private corporate network, regardless of whether 

they are sitting within or outside of the corporate 

perimeter. We further strengthened the cyber 

security posture of the organization, we migrated all 

the critical internet-facing interfaces behind an 

established cloud-based web application firewall to 

safeguard against web application attacks as well as 

distributed denial of service attacks. Further, regular 

vulnerability assessment and penetration testing, 

review of segregation of duties, other audit, and 

compliance testing(s) have ensured that the 

organization’s information assets are safe and secure. 

An awareness program is conducted for all employees 

using the digital channel regarding cyber security. 

Employees of the organization are required to 

undergo a mandatory online learning module on 

information security and affirm that they have 

understood and are aware of the protocols to be 

followed. Regular information security related 

flyers/e-mailers are also sent to all employees for 

awareness and training purpose.  

As a best practice, the organization will continue its 

focus on the automation of security orchestration to 

respond to cyber incidents through its security 

operations centre (SOC). 

On Information System (IS) Audit, During FY 2021-22 

an (IS) audit was conducted by a CERT-in empaneled 

audit firm. The areas audited were, inter alia, user 

access management, patch management, business 

continuity and disaster recovery, data protection and 

the information security management system 

framework including cyber security. The audit 

revealed no major observations. 

CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE 
 

At Edelweiss, Customer Experience (CX) is regarded as 
a key pillar of business success in true spirit. 
 
With this motto in sight, we have continued to build 
a culture of customer-centric business. To drive this 
agenda, we have also implemented various measures 
including digital upgrade. We introduced the ‘Omni-
channel’ digital platform which eases customer 



 
 
 

 

access. Through these efforts, we are responding to 
evolving customer needs, and institutionalizing these 
processes across the organization, to ensure a 

superlative experience for all our customers, 
throughout the value chain  



 
 
 

 

 

 

 

*************************

Cautionary Statement 
Statements made in this Annual Report may contain certain forward-looking statements, which are tentative, based 

on various assumptions on the Edelweiss Group's and ERFL’s present and future business strategies and the 

environment in which we operate. Actual results may differ substantially or materially from those expressed or 

implied due to risks and uncertainties. These risks and uncertainties include the effect of economic and political 

conditions in India and internationally, volatility in interest rates and in the securities market, new regulations and 

Government policies that may impact the Company's businesses as well as the ability to implement its strategies. The 

information contained herein is as of the date referenced and the Company does not undertake any obligation to 

update these statements. The Company has obtained all market data and other information from sources believed 

to be reliable or its internal estimates, although its accuracy or completeness cannot be guaranteed. The discussion 

relating to business wise financial performance, balance sheet, asset books of the Company and industry data herein 

is reclassified/regrouped based on Management estimates and may not directly correspond to published data. The 

numbers have also been rounded off in the interest of easier understanding. Numbers have been re-casted, wherever 

required. Prior period figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary. FY21 and FY22 numbers are as 

per IndAS. All information in this discussion has been prepared solely by the company and has not been independently 

verified by anyone else.  

 
******************** 
 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited  

  
  
  
 Sd/- Sd/- 
Date : 06.05.2022 Phanindranath Kakarla Shilpa Gattani 
Place Mumbai Director  Director  
 DIN : 02076676 DIN: 05124763 
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Annexure – II 

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities for the financial year 2021-22 

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 135 of the Companies Act,2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility) Rules, 2014] 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:
To leverage the capacity and capital to equip and enable the social sector to achieve the greatest impact on the lives of the poor in India.

2. Composition of CSR Committee as March 31, 2022:

Sl. No. Name of Director Designation / Nature of 
Directorship 

Number of meetings of CSR 
Committee held during the 

year 

Number of meetings of CSR 
Committee attended during the 

year 

1. Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar Independent Director 1 1 

2. *Dr. Vinod Juneja Independent Director 1 1 

3. Ms. Shilpa Gattani Non-Executive Director 1 1 
* Dr. Vinod Juneja appointed w.e.f. May 15, 2021.

3. The web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of
the Company:

https://www.edelweissretailfin.com

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable : Not Applicable

http://www.edelweissretailfin.com/
https://www.edelweissretailfin.com/
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5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) 
Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: 
  

Sl. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off from preceding 
financial years (in Rs) 

Amount required to be set-off for the 
financial year, if any (in Rs) 

1 2018-19 Nil Nil 

2 2019-20 Nil Nil 

3 2020-21 Nil Nil  
Total 

  

  

6. Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): Rs. 345.11 million 
 

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5):  Rs. 6.90 million 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years. - Nil 

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any : Nil 

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c):  Rs. 6.90 million 

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

 
Total Amount Spent 

for the Financial 
Year.  (in Rs. In 

million) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR 
Account as per section 135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule 
VII as per second proviso to section 135(5). 

 
Amount. Date of transfer. Name of the Fund Amount. Date of transfer. 

7.00 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

  

 

http://www.edelweissretailfin.com/
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: 

 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of 
the 

Project. 

Item from 
the list of 
activities 

in 
Schedule 
VII to the 

Act. 

Local area 
(Yes/No). 

Location of the 
project. 

Project 
duration. 

Amount 
allocated 

for the 
project (in 

Rs.). 

Amount 
spent in 

the 
current 

financial 
Year (in 

Rs.). 

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR 
Account for 
the project 

as per 
Section 

135(6) (in 
Rs.). 

Mode of 
Implementation - 
Direct (Yes/No). 

Mode of 
Implementation - 

Through 
Implementing 

Agency 

State. District. Name CSR 
Registration 

number. 

Details provided in Annexure A  

 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 

Sl. No. Name of the 
Project 

Item from 
the list of 

activities in 
schedule VII 

to the Act. 

Local area 
(Yes/ No). 

Location of the 
project. 

Amount 
spent for the 

project (in 
Rs.). 

Mode of 
implementation 

- Direct 
(Yes/No). 

Mode of implementation 
- Through implementing 

agency. 

State. District. Name. CSR 
registration 

number. 

Nil 

  

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil 

http://www.edelweissretailfin.com/
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(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil 

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e):  Rs. 7 million 

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil 

 

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs. 
million) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 6.90 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 7.00 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 0.10 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, 
if any 

Nil 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Nil 

  

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 

 Sl. No. Preceding 
Financial Year. 

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 

Account under 
section 135 (6) (in 

Rs. million) 

Amount spent in 
the reporting 

Financial Year (in 
Rs. million). 

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as 

per section 135(6), if any. 

Amount remaining to be 
spent in succeeding 

financial years. (in Rs. 
million) 

Name of 
the Fund 

Amount (in 
Rs). 

Date of 
transfer. 

1. 2018-19*  Nil 2.50 
   

- 

2. 2019-20 Nil - 
   

- 

3.  2020-21 Nil 7.86      
Total Nil 10.36 

   
- 

 * The Company has not incurred the prescribed CSR expenditure on a standalone basis as the same was fulfilled on an overall basis at Edelweiss group level.   
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 

Sl. No. Project ID. Name of the 
Project. 

Financial 
Year in 

which the 
project was 
commenced. 

Project 
duration. 

Total amount 
allocated for 
the project 

(in Rs.). 

Amount 
spent on the 
project in the 

reporting 
Financial 

Year (in Rs). 

Cumulative 
amount spent 
at the end of 

reporting 
Financial 

Year. (in Rs.) 

Status of the 
project - 

Completed 
/Ongoing. 

NIL 

  

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the 
financial year: Nil 

  (asset-wise details). 

  

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). 

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. 

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc. 

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset). 

11. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): Not Applicable 

                                                                                                         For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
                                                                                                          Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
        

              Sd/-     Sd/-    
                                                                                                              Shilpa Gattani  Sunil Phatarphekar                   
Mumbai                                                                                                                            Director                     Chairman CSR Committee  
May 6, 2022                                                                                                             DIN: 05124763                 DIN: 00005164                       
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Annexure A 

 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

S. 
N
o. 

Name of 
CSR project 

Item 
from 

List of 
activities 

in 
Schedul
e VII to 
the Act 

Local 
Area 
(Yes/
No) 

Location of project Projec
t 

durati
on 
(in 

Years) 

Amount 
allocated 

for the 
project 
(INR) 

Amount 
spent in 

the 
current 

financial 
year 

Amoun
t 

transfer
red to 

unspent 
CSR 

account 
for the 
project 
as per 

Mode of 
impleme
ntation - 

Direct 
(Yes/No) 

Mode of 
implementation 

through 
implementation 

agency 

    
State District 

   
Section 
135(6) 

 
Name CSR 

regist
ratio
n no. 

1 The 
collaborates 

for 
Transformin
g Education 

Educatio
n 

No  Maharasht
ra 

Nandurbar  
Parbhani 

Satara 
Solapur 

1 5,73,514 5,73,514 - No EdelGive 
Foundation 

CSR0
00005

14 

2 Community 
led draught 
mitigation 

center 

Liveliho
od 

No Rajasthan Jodhpur, 
Bikaner 

3 1,86,000 1,86,000 - No EdelGive 
Foundation 

CSR0
00005

14 

3 SAFAL 
(Sustainable 
Livelihood 

Initiatives in 

Liveliho
od 

No Odisha Koraput, 
Nowrangpu

r 

2 45,97,700 45,97,700 - No EdelGive 
Foundation 

CSR0
00005

14 
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South 
Odisha) 

4 Improving 
adaptability 

towards 
climate 

change and 
global 

warming 
effects 

through 
initiating 
Climate 
Smart 

Agriculture 
(CSA) 

approach for 
sustainabilit

y of tribal 
communities 

Liveliho
od 

No Odisha Mayurbhanj 3 16,42,786 16,42,786 - No EdelGive 
Foundation 

CSR0
00005

14 

              
TOTAL 

     
70,00,000 70,00,000 - - 
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ANNEXURE IV 

 

Disclosure pursuant to the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 
 
The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median employee’s remuneration and 
other details in terms of sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 
is as under: 
 

No. Disclosure 
Requirement 

Disclosure Details 

1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1 

Ratio of the remuneration of 
each director to the median 
remuneration of the 
employees of the Company 
for the financial year 

NA                                   

2 Percentage increase in 
remuneration of each 
director, Chief Financial 
Officer, Chief Executive 
Officer, Company Secretary 
or Manager, if any, in the 
financial year 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Directors / KMP’s Title % Increase 
in 
remuneration 

 

Jignesh Gaglani* Company Secretary  
# 
 
 

134.37% 
 
 

64.69%* 

Mr. Mehernosh Tata Chief Executive 
Officer 

134.37%  

Mr. Shailendra 
Dhupiya** 

Chief Financial 
Officer 

64.69% 

3 Percentage increase in the 
median remuneration of 
employees in the financial 
year 

10.57% 

4 Number of permanent 
employees on the rolls of 
Company at the end of the 
year 

Employee on the rolls of Company as on 31st Mach 2022 is 
145. 
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5 Average percentile increase 
already made in the salaries 
of employees other than the 
managerial personnel in the 
last financial year and its 
comparison with the 
percentile increase in the 
managerial remuneration 
and justification thereof and 
point out if there are any 
exceptional circumstances 
for increase in the 
managerial remuneration 

The average increase in the remuneration for employees 
other than the managerial personnel is 48.3% and for 
managerial personnel 200.6%. 

6 Affirmations that the 
remuneration is as per the 
remuneration policy of the 
Company 

It is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the 
Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

*Appointed w.e.f from August 4, 2021 
** Resigned w.e.f from February 28, 2022 
#Since the remuneration of Mr. Jignesh Gaglani is only for the part of the year / previous 
year, ratio of remuneration to median and increase, is not comparable.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
  

 
Sd/- 
Phanindranath Kakarla 
Director 
DIN: 02076676 

Sd/- 
Shilpa Gattani 
Director 
DIN: 05124763  
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G.D. Apte & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

To 

The Members of 

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Edelweiss Retail Finance 

Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement 

and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 

statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information (hereinafter referred to as "Financial Statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as 

amended ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conforr,ity with 

the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Ccmpanies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accourting 

principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, 

its profit including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 

ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 

section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 

thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have ob:ained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on standalone financial statements. 

Emphasis of Matter 

Attention is drawn to note no. 49(1)(j) of the Statement which describes the impacts of Covid-19 

Pandemic on the standalone financial results as also on the business operations of the Company, 

assessment thereof by the management of the Company based on its internal, external and 

macro factors, involving certain estimation uncertainties. Our conclusion on the state 

modified in respect of this matter. 

Mumbai Office: Windsor, 6th Floor, Office No-604, CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East), Mumbai - ~Of!~~ 
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Our opinion is not modified in respect of above. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 

in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in 

the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 

thereon, and we co not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the 

matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report: 

Sr No Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response 

1. Impairment of financial assets as at 

balance sheet date (expected credit 
losses): 

► Read and assessed the Company's 

Ind AS 109 requires the Company to 
provide for impairment of its loan 
receivables (designated at amortised 
cost and fair value through other ► 

comprehensive income) using the 
expected credit loss (ECL) approach. 

accounting policies for impairment of 
financial assets and their compliance with 
Ind AS 109 and the governance framework 
approved by the Board of Directors 
pursuant to Reserve Bank of India guidelines 
issued on March 13, 2020. 

Read and assessed the Company s policy 
with respect to one-time restructuring 
offered to customers pursuant to the 
"Resolution Framework for COVID-19-
related Stress" issued by RBI on August 6, 
2020 and tested the implementation of such 
policy on a sample basis. 

ECL inv:Jlves an estimation of 
probabilii.:y-weighted loss on 
financial instruments over their life, 
considering reasonable and 
supporta::>le information about past 
events, current conditions, and 
forecasts of future economic 
conditions which could impact the 
credit quality of the Company's loans 
and advances. 

In the process, a significant degree of 
judgement has been applied by the 
management for: 

• Staging of loans (i.e. classification 
in 'significant increase in credit 
risk' ("SICR") and 'default' 
categories); 

• Grouping of borrowers based on 
homogeneity by using 
apprcpriate 
techniques; 

statistica I 

► Evaluated the reasonableness of the 
management estimates by understanding 
the process of ECL estimation and related 
assumptions and tested the controls around 
data extraction and validation. 

► Assessed the criteria for staging of loans 
based on their past-due status to check 
compliance with requirement of Ind AS 109. 
Tested a sample of performing (stage 1) 
loans to assess whether any SICR or loss 
indicators were present requiring them to 
be classified under higher stages. 

► Assessed the additional considerations 
applied by the management for staging of 
loans as SICR or default categories in view of 
Company's policy on one time restructuring. 
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2. 

• Estimation of behavioural life; 

• Determining macro-economic 
factors impacting credit quality 
of receivables; 

• Estimation of losses for loan 
products with no/ minimal 
historical defaults. 

Additional considerations on 
account of COVID-19 

G.D. Apte & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

► Tested the ECL model, including 
assumptions and underlying computation. 
Assessed the floor/ minimum rates of 
provisioning applied by the Company for 
loan products with inadequate historical 
defaults 

► Tested assumptions used by the 
management in determining the overlay for 
macro-economic factors (inciuding COVID-
19 pandemic). 

Given the unique nature of the ► Assessed disclosures inclLded in the 

pandemic and the extent of its financial statements in respe::t of expected 

economic impact which depends on 

future developments including 

governmental and regulatory 

measures and the Company's 

responses thereto, the actual credit 

loss can be different than that being 

estimated. In view of such high 

degree of management's judgement 

involved in estimation of ECL, 

accentuated by the COVID-19 

pandemic and related events, it is a 

key audit matter. 

credit losses including the specific 
disclosures made with regards to the impact 
of COVID-19 on ECL estimation. 

Sales / Assignment of Financial ► Read and assessed the Company's 

Assets accounting policies for corrputation and 
accounting of sales / assignment of loan 
portfolios as per the provisions o-'= Ind AS 
109. 

► Read and assessed the contra::ts entered by 
the Company for sale/assignment to verify 
the gains/ losses on the transactions. 

► Verified the procedures followed by the 
company while carrying out the 
sale/assignment. 

► Verification of confirmation and fair 
valuation of Security receipts. 
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 

other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and 

Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, 

Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the standalone 

financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we 

do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read 

the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 

inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the 

course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 

this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 

regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial 

statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, (changes 

in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with IND AS and the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the 

Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing 

and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 

implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 

are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 

the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement 

that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 

and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial repor l.J·~ =~ 
p,., T~ 

process. <.) • cf,.... 
c:/ '-6 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 

is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 

and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 

we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 

internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 

continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 

to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial 

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 

individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
~=~ 

knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitaf . JI..PTE' cf 

materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluatin t,· 'c 
* ·, 

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!~~ 
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results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 

statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 

and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged 

with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in :he audit of the 

standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 

We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public 

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such commun cation. 

Other Matter 

a) The audit of standalone financial results for the year ended March 31,2021 was carried out 

and reported by S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants vide their unmodified audit 

report dated June 10, 2021, whose report has been furnished to us by the management and 

which has been relied upon by us for the purpose of our audit of the statements. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 

2013, we give in the Annexure "A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 

of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

II) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 

so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report 

are in agreement with the relevant books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Compan· i,... 
<:) . (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

0
-
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 

31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 

"Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 

effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

g) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance 

with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not . 

in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be 

commented upon by us. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor' s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 

our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 
position; 

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative cont racts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses]; 

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other 
than as disclosed in the note 57(viii)(A) to the Special Purpose financial statements, no 
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

v) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other 
than as disclosed in the note 57(viii)(B) to the Special Purpose financial statements, no 
funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 

,,::;=~ 
of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security p,. 

the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 0 ?· 
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vi) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that 
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 

vii) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company. 

For G. D. Apte & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registratio ~~~ 0515W 

• 

Chetan R. Sap 

Partner 

Membership No: 116952 

UDIN : 22116952AIMWYE8786 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : May 06, 2022 
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON STANDALONE FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS OF EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE LIMITED 

(Referred to in paragraph I under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements" of our report of even date) 

i. 

ii. 

iii. 

a) 

A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 

quantitative details and location of property, plant and equipment for the year. 

B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 

quantitative details and location of intangible assets. 

b) The Company has physically verified its fixed assets during the year and no material 

discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of immova:Jle 

properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease 

agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), are held in the name of the 

Company. 

d) The company has neither revalued its PPE (including Right of Use assets) nor intangi:::ile 

assets or both during the year. 

e) As per the information and explanation provided to us, no proceedings have been initiated 

or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benc,mi 

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

a) The Company business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the require-ne,ts 

under paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has avai ed 

working capital limits from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly 

statements filed by the company are in agreement with the books of accounts. 

a) As per the information and explanations given to us, the principal business of the coripany 

is to give loans and hence clause iii(a) of the order is not applicable. 

b) As per the information and explanations given to us, the investments made and loans 

provided by the company, are not prejudicial to the company's interest; 

Company has not given any guarantees, security, and advances in the nature of loans. 

c) In respect of the loans/ advances in nature of loan, granted by the company as part of i' t ~~ ..... 

business, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has 
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stipulated by the Company. Having regard to the voluminous nature of loan transactions, 

it is not practicable to furnish entity-wise details of amount, due date of repayment or 

receipt and the extent of delay (as suggested in the Guidance Note on CARO 2020, issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India for the reporting under this clause) in 

this report, in respect of loans and advances which were not repaid/paid when they are 

due or were repaid/paid with a delay, in the normal course of lending business. 

Further, except for those instances where there are delays or defaults in repay"Tlent of 

principal and/or interest as at the balance sheet date, in respect of which the Company 

has disclosed asset classification/staging of loans in note 12.2 to the standalone financial 

statements in accordance with Indian Accounting {Ind AS) and the guidelines issue::! by the 

Reserve Bank of India, the parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and 

are also regular in payment of interest, as applicable. 

d) In respect of the loans/ advances in nature of loans, the total amount overdue for more 

than ninety days (including cases classified as non-performing asset (NPA) as per RBI 

guidelines) as at March 31, 2022 and the details of the number of such cases, are disclosed 

in note 12.2 to the standalone financial statements. In such instances, in our opinion, 

reasonable steps have been by the Company for recovery of the overdue amount of 

principal and interest. 

e) In our opinion and based on the information and explanation given to us, the company is 

in the business of giving loans, hence this clause is not applicable. 

f) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not granted 

any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without 

specifying any terms or period of repayment. 

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments, 

guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of 

the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon. 

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company 

has not accepted any deposits or the amounts deemed to be deposit as per the di~ectives 

issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the 

rules framed. Accordingly, paragraph 3{v) of the order is not applicable to the compa1y. 

vi. The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods. Hence the provisions of ClaLse 3{vi) 

of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

vii. 

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the records of 

the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in 

depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Provi PT£ 
. . ~ 

Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and any ~ r {) ~ 

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!~~* ~ 7 ; 
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statutory dues, wherever applicable. The provisions relating to duty of excise, duty of 

custom, sales tax, value added tax, and service tax are not applicable to the Company. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts 

payable in respect of aforesaid dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2022 for a period 

of more than 6 months from the date they became payable. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no dues in respect 

of Income Tax, Duty of Excise, Duty of Customs, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Go::>ds and Service 

Tax and Value Added Tax which have not been deposited on account of ary dispute. 

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions or income, not 

recorded in the books of account, have been surrendered or disclosed as inc::>me during the 

year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

ix. 

X. 

a. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to LS, the.company 

has not defaulted in repayments of dues from any lender during the year. 

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not declared as 

willful defaulter by any bank or Financial Institution or any lender. 

c. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not borrowed 

new term loans during the year. 

d. According to the information and explanation given to us, the funds raised on short term 

basis have not been utilized for long-term purposes. 

e. The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence clause 

ix(e) of the order is not applicable. 

f. The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence clause 

ix(f) of the order is not applicable. 

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination 

of records of the Company, the company has not raised any money by way of initial public 

offer or further public offer during the year. Hence the reporting requirement under clause 

3(x)(a) is not applicable to the company. 

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination 

of records of the Company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or 

private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally 

convertible) during the year. Hence the reporting requirement under clause 3(x)(b) i 

applicable to the company. 
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G. D. Apte & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

a. According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud on or by the company, 

by its officers and employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit. 

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, no re::)Ort U/s 

143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by secretarial auditor, predecessor 

auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

c. According to the information and explanation given to us, no whistle-blower complaints 

have been received during the year by the company. 

xii. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisio1s of Clause 

3(xii)(a) to 3(xii)(c)of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented 

upon. 

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of 

records of the Company, the transactions entered with related parties are in compliance with 

provisions of section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details of such 

transactions are disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable 

accounting standards. 

xiv. 

a. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has an internal 

audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

b. The reports of the Internal Auditors of the company issued till date for the period under 

audit were considered by us. 

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on 

our examination of records of the Company, the Company during the year has not entered 

into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with the directors :overed 

under the provisions of sec 192 of the Act and accordingly the provisions of clause (xv) of the 

Order are not applicable to the Company. 

xvi. 

a. In our opinion, the Company is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the RBI 

Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) and accordingly the registration certificate is obtained by the 

Company. 

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not conducted 

Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of 

Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of lndi~=;:~ 
1934· ,.,..JI-PTc <f 

/ V 0 
0 
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c. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not a Core 
Investment Company (CIC} as defined in the regulations made by the RBI. Hence the clause 
3(xvi)(c }of the Report is not applicable. 

d. According to the information and explanation given to us, t here is one Core Investment 
Company (CIC} as part of the Group. 

xvii. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not incurred cash 
losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. 

xviii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records, the previous statutory auditors of the Company have resigned during the year 
to comply with the instruction as specified in Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Central 
Auditors (SCAs}/Statutory Auditors (SAs} of Commercial Banks (excluding RRBs}, UCBs and 
NBFCs (including HFCs} dated April 27, 2021 issued by Reserve Bank of India (the "RBI 
Guidelines"} and there were no issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors. 

xix. According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the financial 
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, and our knowledge of 
the BOD and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as 
on the date of the audit report and that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing 
as at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of 1 year from the 
balance sheet date. 

xx. 
a. According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no unspent amount in 

respect of other than ongoing projects which are required to be transferred to a Fund 
specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, within a period of 6 months of the expiry 
of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to Sec 135 (5) of the said Act. 

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no unspent amount in 
respect of ongoing project which are required to be transferred to special account in 
compliance with the provision under section 135(6} of the said Act. 

xxi. The Company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements and hence the 
provisions of Clause of 3(xxi}is not applicable. 

For G. D. Apte & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm R 

Cheta 

Partner 
Membership No: 116952 
UDIN : 22116952AIMWYE8786 
Place : Mumbai. 
Date : May 06, 2022 
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS OF EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE LIMITED 

{Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our 

report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 

3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of EDELWEISS RETAIL 

FINANCE LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting ("the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI}. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and 
the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over finan 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as 
of March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
issued by the ICAI. 

For G. D. Apte & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registratio IJ.l!t:l~:t,..., 515W 

~ 
Chetan R. Sapre 

Partner 
Membership No: 116952 
UDIN : 22116952AIMWYE8786 
Place : Mumbai. 
Date : May 06, 2022 
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 

Balance Sheet as at 3 I March 2022 

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

ASSETS 

Financial assets 
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 
(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 

(c) Securities held for trading 

(d) Trade receivables 
(c) Loans 
(f) Investments 
(g) Other financial assets 

Non-financial assets 

(a) Current tax assets (net) 
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 

(e) Property, plant and equipment 
(d) Intangible assets under development 
(e) Other intangible assets 
(f) Other non-financial assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Financial liabilities 

(a) Trade payables 
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 

enterprises 

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

(b) Debt securities 
(c) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 

(d) Subordinated liabilities 
(e) Other financial liabilities 

Non-financial liabilities 

(a) Current tax liabilities (net) 
(b) Provisions 

(c) Other non-financial liabilities 

Equity 
(a) Equity share capital 

(b) Other equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached. 

For G. D. Apte & Co. 
C hartered Accountants 

!CAI irm Registration Number: 100515W 

pre 

Par er (j 
Membership no: 116952 ,. 

Note 

8 
9 

10 
II 
12 
13 
14 

15 

16 
17 

18 
19 
20 

21 

22 
23 
24 
25 

26 
27 
28 

29 

30 

I to 61 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

166.30 

139.57 

50.29 

19.64 

10,236.43 

1,540.98 

38.96 
12,192.17 

63.96 

I 17.06 
17.50 

92.94 

0.77 
158.22 

450.45 

12,642.62 

0.89 

53.48 
2,804.43 
1,774.29 

2,153.18 
673.75 

7,460.02 

44.02 
11.24 

40.05 
95.31 

429.50 
4,657.79 

5,087.29 

12,642.62 

As at 
Mar:h 31, 2021 

704.40 
~77.19 
59.48 

19.63 
11,923.91 

957.91 
(,65.57 

14,608.09 

151.43 

162.64 
111.48 

52.32 
4.00 

94.87 
576.74 

15,1~4.83 

111.44 
2.923.81 
4,502.60 

2.119.04 
512.51 

10.1 (,9.40 

95.34 

8.74 
12.09 

116.17 

429.50 
4,469.76 
4,899.26 

5, 184.83 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

;.;;;t\C:~h1i 
~ ni Phanindranath Kakarla 

Director Director 

;;~~ --2~L 
Place : Mumbai 

Date : May 06, 2022 

I\Jchernosh Tata 
Chief Ex 'Cuti\'c Officer 

Jigncsh Gaglani 
Company Secreta,y 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 

S tatement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions) 

I. Revenue from operations 
Interest income 

Dividend income 
Fee and commission income 

Net gain on fair value changes 

Tolal revenue from operations 

II. Other income 

Ill. Total Income 

IV. Expenses 
Finance costs 
Impairment on financial instruments 
Employee benefits expense 
Depreciation. amortisation and impainnent 
Other expenses 

Total expenses 

V. Profit before lax 

VI. Tax expenses: 
Current tax 

( I) Current tax 
(2) Short / (Excess) provision for earlier years 

Deferred tax 

VII. Profit for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income 
Items that will not be reclassified lo profit or loss 
Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans 
Less: Income tax relating to items lhat will not be reclassified to 
profil or loss 

Other Comprehensh·c Income 

Total Comprehensive Income 

Earnings per equily share (Face value of Rs. 10 each): 

(I) Basic 

(2) Diluted 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached. 

For G. D. Apte & Co. 

C hartered Accountants 

ICAI ·inn Registration Number: 100515\V 

per C apre 

Partner 

Membership no: I I 6952 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : May 06, 2022 

dAcC 

i'iote 

31 

32 

33 

34 

35 
36 
37 

17 & 19 
38 

39 

39 

42 
39 

41 

I to61 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

1,550.26 

51.29 
162.20 

1,763.75 

35.33 

1,799.08 

827.31 
(117.50) 

215.72 
34.67 

584.87 

1,545.07 

254.01 

23.73 

29.52 
(5.79) 
45.59 

184.69 

(0.39) 

(0.39) 

184.30 

4.30 
4.30 

For the year ended 

Mach 31. 2021 

2.182.99 
208.44 

54.64 

12.74 

2.458.81 

41.92 

2.500.73 

1,349.14 
354.61 
122.08 
41.29 

304.01 

2.I71.13 

329.59 

115.35 

137.87 
(22.52) 
(54.30) 

268.55 

0.43 
(0.11) 

0.32 

268.87 

6.26 
6.26 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 

~~~;~~~ 
MDi~ -i:;K_ 

Mehcrnosh Tata 

Chief Executive Officer 

Jignesh Gaglani 

Company Secretary 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the yenr ended March 31, 2022 
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

(a) 

(h) 

EquitJ' sha re ca)lilal 

Parlkulars 

Issued, Subscribcl.l anJ Pai<l up 

(Eaui1v shares or Rs.10 each. fullv oaid-uo) 
Total 

Other EQuily 

P~rticulars 

Balance at April OJ, 2020 

rrofi1 for 1hc year 
Remeasurement profi t on defined benefit plans 
Total Comurehcnsivr Income for the vcur 
Transfers 10 / (from) retained eam ings 
Balance RI March 3 1, 2021 
P1ofit for the year 
Remcasurcrnclll loss on <lcfincd benefit pl.ins 
Total Comorehcnsive Income for the \'l'ar 
Tran,;;:fc:r~ from retained eaminJ.:.S 
Trnnsfi.•r~ to rctain1:d curnings 

Reversal of ESOPs charges on cancellation 
Baloncc ot Morch 31, 2022 

As per our report of C\'Cn date attached. 

For G. D. i\ptc & Co, 

Place : Mumha1 
Dale : May 06. 2022 

Outst:andinJt Issued dnrin~ 
as on April 01, the year 

2020 

429.50 0 00 

429.50 0.00 

Capital Securities 
Rc~crvc Premium 

Accounl 

8.IH 3,112.08 

- -
- -

8. 18 3,112,08 

-
-

-

-
8.18 .1,112.08 

Outstanding (55ucd during I Outstanding 
fl..(; nn i\1:1.rd, the yc:1.r ns on l\lnrch 

31, 2021 31, 2022 

429.50 0.00 429.50 

429.50 0.00 429.50 

Deemed Special Rcscn·c D,:bcnturc Retained Total 
capital under Section redemption Earnings 

contrihution - 45-lC or the reserve 
Equity shares Rts('n ·e Bank 

of India Act, 
1934 

5.94 262.14 3.17.14 475.41 4,200.89 

- - - 268.55 268.55 
- - 0.32 0.32 

268.87 268.87 
53.72 (269.30) 215.58 (0.00) 

5.94 315.86 67.84 959.86 4,469.76 

- - - 184.69 184.69 

- - - (0.39) (0.39) 

- 184,30 184.30 
36.94 (36.94) 

- 3.7J 3.73 
5.94 352,80 67.84 1,110.95 4,657,79 

For and on bch:.11f of the Board of Directon 

DIN: 05 1247(,3 

i\tehernosh T»ta 
Chief Executive Officer 

Phanindranath Kaknrla 
Dircct.:-r 

DIN: 0207M76 

;E~ 
Company Sccrct:11~ 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Statement of Cash nows for the year ended March 31, 2022 

(Currency: Indian nipees in millions) 

A Cash now from opcrafinJ? activities 

Profi1 before tax 

Adjustments for 

Depreciation. amortisation and impainncnt (refer note 17 & 19) 
lmpainncnl on linancial instruments 
Interest on lease liabilities 

Interest on borrowings 

ESOP and SAR cost reimbursement 

Loss/(Gain) on sale of Propcny. plJ.nl anti equipment 

Opera1ing cash now before working capital clurngcs 

Acid / (Less): Adjustments for working capital changes 
Dccrcasc/( lncrcase) in Trade receivables 

Dccrcasc/(lncrcase) in stock in 1radc 

Dccrcasc/(ln.,;rease) in Loans (net) 

Decrease/(lncrcasc) in Other financial assets 
Dccrcasc/(lncrcasc) in Investments 

Dccrcasc/(lncrcase) in Other non financial assets 
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables 

Increase I (Decrease) in Non financial liabilities and provisions 

Increase / (Decrease) in Other financial liabilities 

Cash g,cncnucd from operations 

Income taxes paid {nel) 

~et cash generated from operating activities -A 

ll Cash now from investing activities 

Purchase of Property, plnnl nnd equipment and Intangible Assets 
Dccrc~1se/(ln.,;rease) in Intangibles under development 

Sale of Property. plant and equipment 

Nel cash used in investing activities - R 

C C.i.sh flow from financing .i.cfh•ities 

Increase I (Decrease) in Debt Sccurities1 

lni;rcase / (Decrease) in Rorrowings other than Ocbt Securities1 

Increase / (Decrease) in Subordinate Debt 

Repayment of lease obligation 
Sct:uritiwtion liability 

lntercsl on borrowings 

'.'let casl1 used in fin:rnc.inJ? activities - C 

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in cash anti cash c11uiv:1lcnts (A+B+C) 

Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the yeor (refer note 8) 

Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year (refer note 8) 

Cash flows from interest and dividend 

Notes: 

Interest paid 

Interest received 

Dividc:nt.l rcccivt:d 

For the yeu ended For the ycnr ended 

March 31. 2022 March 31. 202 1 

254.01 ]29.59 

34.67 41.29 
< 117.50) 354.61 

I 1.34 I 1.05 
(812.56) (1.331.81) 

6.69 3.12 
1.58 6.62 

1621.76) (585.52) 

(0.01) (7.16) 
9.19 82.54 

1,804.98 3,365.47 
764.23 (481 .89) 

1583.07) (486.68) 
(63.36) (4 1.01) 
(60.02) 39.63 

91.14 (5.53) 
(100.78) (26.13) 

1,240.53 1,853.72 

12.43 (31.21) 

1,252.96 1,822.51 

(0.75) (0.16) 
(40.62) (52.32) 

0.63 4.-14 

(40.74) (48.04) 

(100.01) (2,044.81) 
(2,720.41) (3,002.67) 

0.01 0.01 
(26.58) (35.83) 
284.11 

812.56 1,33 1.81 

(1,750.31) (3,751.49) 

(538.10) ( 1,977.02) 

704.40 2,681.42 
166.30 704.40 

828.56. 1,290.86 
1,624.01 2. 126.03 

208.44 

I. Cash receipts and payments for transaction in which the turnover is quick. the amounts are large and the maturities are short are presented on net basis 
in flccordance with Ind AS-7 Sta1cmcnt of Cash Flows. 

2. For disclosure relating 10 changes in liabilities arising from financing ac1ivi1ics. refer note 40. 

3. Cash flow slatcmcnt has been prepared under in<lin:ct mcthu<l as set out in Ind AS 7 prc.scribt:d under the Companii:s ( Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules. 2015 under !he Compani~ Act, 2013. 

The accompanying notes are an integral pan ufthc financial st;nemcnts. 

As per our report of even duh: a1tad1cd. 

For G. D. Aptc & Co. 
Cha tcred Accountants 

ICAI ·ir~ Regi~ 

~ ~~ 
per Ch, n R · tc ~ ~ ~ ' 

Partner :;.□· C'O 
Membership 110: I 16952 <;' :; 

'1 ,~ 
o'7. ~ 

Plm:r;:: Mumbui c-, ~J Accc-S 
Daie : May 06, 2022 
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For and on behalf or the Board of Directors ....... :t···~ b~ 
[)IN: 05124763 

Chief Executive Olliccr 

Ph~nindranath K•karla 

Oircctor 

Jignesh Gaglani 
Company Secrernry 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022 

1. Corporate Information: 

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited ( ' ERFL · or ·the Company') is a public limited company domiciled and 
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The Company was originally 
incorporated on February 18, 1997 as "Aflluent Dealcom Private Limited" which subsequently got converted 
to public limited on January I, 2014 and then the Company's name changed to "Edelweiss Retail Finance 
Limited" with effect from January 6, 2014. The Company is subsidiary of Edel cap Securities Limited. ERFL 
is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RB]) as a Systemically Important Non Deposit Accepting Non­
Banking Financial Company. 

ERFL is primarily engaged in the business of providing loan against prope11y, business loans, loan to real estate 
developers and rural finance loans. 

2. Basis of preparation: 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time :o 
time). 

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments 
such as, derivative financial instruments, and other financial instruments held for trading, which have been 
measured at fair value. The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (IN R) and all values are rounded 
to the nearest million, except when otherwise indicated. 

2.1 Presentation of financial statements: 

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity in compliance with the Division Ill of the 
Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months 
after the reporting date ( current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non-current) is 
presented in "Note 44 - Maturity Analysis of assets and liabilities". 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only 
offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset tte 
recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net 
basis in all the following circumstances: 

• The normal course of business 
• The event of default 

• The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and or its counterparties 

3. Significant accounting policies 

3.1 Recognition of Interest income and Dividend income 

3.1.1 Effective Interest Rate (EIR): 

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for a ll 
financial instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when 
appropriate a shorter period to the gross carrying amount of financial instrument. 

The EIR is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate of return 
that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence, 
it recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and other 
characteri stics of the product life cycle including prepayments penalty interest and charges. 

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other tha.1 
credit risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount cf 
the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income. 
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3.1.2 Interest Income: 

The company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of 
financial assets other than credit-impaired assets. 

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as 'Stage Ill' , the 
Company calculates interest income by applying the EI R to the amortised cost (net of expected 
credit loss) of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, 
the Company reverts to calculating interest income on gross basis. 

Penal interest income on delayed EMI / pre EMI is recognised on receipt basis. 

3.1.3 Fee and Commission Income 

Fee and commission income includes fee other than those that are an integral part of EIR. The 
Company recognises the fee and commission income in accordance with the terms of the 
relevant contracts/ agreements and basis the probability of consideration collection. 

3.1.4 Dividend Income 

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established on 
the reporting date. 

3.1.5. Other Income 

Other Income represents income earned from activities incidental to the business and is 
recognised when the right to receive income is established as per the terms of the contract. 
Other ancillary charges are recognized on realisation. 

3.2 Financial Instruments: 

3.2.1 Date of recognition: 

Financial assets and liabilities except for loans and borrowings are initially recognised on the 
trade date, i.e. the date when Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. This includes regular ways of trade: purchase or salooffinancial assets that reqLire 
delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the 
market place. Loans arc recognised when funds arc transferred to the customers· account. The 
Company recognises borrowing when funds are available for utilisation to the Company. 

3.2.2 Initial measurement of financial instruments: 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities 
( other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added 
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropricte, 
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets 
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or 
loss. 

3.2.3 Classification and Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities: 

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing :he 
assets and the asset's contractual terms. measured at either: 

• Amortised cost 
• Fair value through other comprehensive income [FVOCI) 
• Fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL] 
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The Company measures debt financial assets at amortised cost basis the following conditions: 
that meet the following conditions at amo1tised cost: 

• the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets 
in order to collect contractual cash flows; and 

• the contractual terms of the financia l asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair 
value through profit or loss on initial recognition): 

• the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and 

• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL. 

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC) 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held wit:iin a business model whose 
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual tenns 
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in carrying value of 
financial assets is recognised in profit and loss account. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCl if it is held within a business model whose object:ve 
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in fair 
value of financial assets is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FYTPL. 
The Company measures all financial assets classified as FVTPL at fair value at each reporting 
date. The change in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Profit and loss account. 

3.3 Financial Assets and Liabilities: 

3.3. l Financial assets held for trading: 

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchasec 
primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form pa11 of a portfolio of 
financial instruments that are managed together, for which eviden;;e of recent pattern of short­
term profit is taking. Held-for-trading assets are recorded and mec.sured in the balance sheet at 
fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in net gain on fair value changes. 

3.3.2 Debt securities and other borrowed funds: 

The Company measures debt issued and other borrowed funds at Amortised cost at each 
reporting date. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into acrnunt any discount or premium 01~ 

issue funds, and costs that are an integral pa11 of \he EIR. 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022 

3.3.3 Financial Guarantee: 

Financial guarantees are contract that requires the Company to make specified payments to 
reimburse the holder for loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make peyrr:ent 
when it is due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. 

Financial guarantee issued or commitments to provide a loan at below market in terest rate are 
initially measured at fair value and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the guarantee 
or the commitment. Subsequently they are measured at higher of this amortised amount and the 
amount of loss allowance. 

3.3.4 Loan Commitments: 

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, the Company is required to provide 
a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer over the duration of the commitment. Urxlrawn 
loan commitments are in the scope of the ECL requirements. 

3.4 Reclassification of Financial assets and liabilities 

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from 
the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes off, or terminates a business 
line. The Company has not reclassified any of its financial assets or liabilities in current year and 
previous year. 

3.5 Derecognition of financial Instruments: 

3.5.1 Derecognition of financial asset 

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive contractual cash flows from the 
financial asset have expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both, 
transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition. 

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either: 

• The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or 
• It retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumed 

a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full without material delay to thirci party 
under pass tlu·ough arrangement. 

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights 
to receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset'), but assumes a contractual 
obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the 'eventual recipients'), wher al! of 
the fo llowing conditions are met: 

• The Company has no obligation to pay amount to the eventual recipients unless it has 
collected equivalent amount from the original asset, excluding sho11-term advances with the 
right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates. 

• The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual 
recipients. 

The Company has to remit any cash flow it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without 
material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for 
investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the period between the 
collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients. 
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A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either: 

• The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or 

• The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of 
the asset but has transferred control of the asset. 

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical 
ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability 
unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer. 

The Company also derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been 
renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new financial asset, with the 
difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has 
not already been recorded. 

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification 
does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original 
EIR, the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has 
not already been recorded. 

3.5.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, 
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability 
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the :arrying value of the original 
financial liability and the consideration paid, including modified contractual cash flow 
recognised as new financial liability, is recognised in statement of profit or loss. 

3.6 Impairment of financial assets: 

The Company records provisions based on expected credit loss model ("ECL'') on all loans, other 
financial assets not measured at FVTPL , undrawn loan commitment and financial guarantee contracts, 
in this section all referred to as "Financial instrument". Equity instruments are not subject to impairment 

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. A credit loss is the difference between the cash 
flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects 
to receive discounted at the original effective interest rate. As ECL considers the amount and timing o: 
payments, a credit loss arises even if the entity expects to be paid in full but later than when contractually 
due. 

Simplified Approach 

The Company follows 'simplified approach ' for recognition or impairment loss allowance on trade 
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in 
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting 
date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to detennine impairment 
loss allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed 
default rates over the expected life of the receivables. However, if receivables contain a significant 
financing component, the Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss allowance by 
applying general approach to measure ECL. 

General Approach 

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on 
the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures 
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses 
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(12m ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant 
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of an evide,ce 
of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring. 

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over 
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL 
that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 mor.ths 
after the reporting date. 

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default (PD), loss given 
default (LGD) (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. -=-he 
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by 
forward-looking information. As for the exposure at default (EAD), for financial assets, this is 
represented by the assets' gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan commitments and 
financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date, 
together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date determined 
based on historical trend, the Company·s understanding of the specific future financing needs of the 
debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information. 

Company categories its financial assets as follows: 

Stage I Assets: 
Stage I assets include financial instruments that did not have a significant increase in credit risk since 
initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these assets, 12-month ECL 
(resulting from default events possible within 12 months from reporting date) are recognised. 

Stage II Assets: 
Stage II Assets include financial instruments that have a significant increase in credit risk since ini:ial 
recognition. For these assets lifetime ECL (resulting from default events possible within 12 months from 
reporting date) are recognised. 

Stage III Assets: 
Stage Ill Assets are considered credit-impaired, the Company recognises the lifetime ECL for these 
loans. The method is similar to that for Stage II assets, with the PD set at 100%. 

Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a 
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account. 

The expected credit loss on the uncancellable loan commitment is recognised together with the loss 
allowance for the financial asset. 

The Company·s product offering includes working capital facilities with a right to Company to cancel 
and/or reduce the facilities with one day's notice. The Company does not limit its exposure to credit 
losses to the contractual notice period, but, instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects :he 
Company's expectations of the customer behaviour. its likelihood of default and the Company's future 
risk mitigation procedures, which could include reducing or cancelling the facilities. 

3.7 Collateral Valuation: 

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The 
collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of credit /guarantees, real estate, 
receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as netting agreemer.ts. 
Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the Company's balance sheet. However, the fair value 
of collateral affects the calculation of ECL. It is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re­
assessed on a periodic basis. However, some collateral, for example, securities relating to margin 
requirements, is assessed on a daily basis. 

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets 
collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market value 
using models. 

held as 
are valLed 
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3.8 Collateral Repossessed: 

The Company's policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used fo r its internal 
operations or should it be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal operations are transferred 
to their relevant asset category at the lower of their repossessed value or the carrying value of the original 
secured asset. Assets for which selling is determined to be a better option are transferred to assets held 
for sale at their fair value (if financial assets) and fair value less cost to sell for non-financial assets at 
the repossession date ,in line with the Company's policy. 

In its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or other assets 
in its retail portfolio, hut engages external agents to recover funds, generally at auction, to settle 
outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As a result of this practice, 
the residential properties under legal repossession processes are not recorded on the balance sheet. 

3.9 Write-Offs: 

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has no 
reasonable expectation of recovery besides technical write off as per relevant pol icy. 

3.10 Forborne and modified loan: 

The Company sometimes make concessions or modifications to the original terms of loans as a response 
to the borrower's financial difficulties. rather than taking possession or to otherwise enforce collection 
of collateral. The Company considers a loan forborne when such concessions or modifications are 
provided as a result of the borrower's present or expected financial difficulties and the Company would 
not have agreed to them if the borrower had been financially healthy. Indicators of financial difficLlties 
include defaults on covenants, significant concerns raised by the Credit Risk Department. Forbearance 
may involve extending the payment a1Tangements and the agreement of new loan conditions. Once the 
terms have been renegotiated, any impairment measured using the original EIR as calculated before the 
modification of terms. It is the Company·s policy to monitor forborne loans to help ensure that future 
payments continue to be likely to occur. Derecognition decisions and classification between Stage II and 
Stage Ill are determined on a case-by-case basis. If these procedures identify a loss in relation to a loan, 
it is disclosed and managed as an impaired Stage Ill forborne asset, until it is collected or written off. 

3.11 Determination of Fair Value: 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each reporting dare. 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based 
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either; 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

• In the absence of a principal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would 
use, when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best 
interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's 
abil ity to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to 
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses 
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are avai lable 
to measure fa ir value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are 
classified based on a hierarchy of valuation teclmiques, as summarised below: 

Level I Financial Instruments: 
Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices rrom active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company 
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considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and 
liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes 
available on the balance sheet date. 

Level 2 Financial Instruments: 
Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived directly or indirectly 
from observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument"s life. 

Level 3 Financial Instruments: 
Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole. 
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole) at the end of each reporting period. The Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques 
including the adopted methodologies and model calibrations. 

Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its finan::ial 
instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that estimates the expected 
net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in order to reflect the credit 
risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised financial instruments. 

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and 
reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period. 

3.12 Leases: 

Company as a lessee: 

The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the partial retrospective approach. 

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, 
except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to 
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. 

Right of Use Assets: 

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the 
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cos: of 
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and 
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of­
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated 
useful lives of the assets. 

Lease liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present 
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments 
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments 
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. In 
calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the 
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After 
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest 
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is 
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e g., 
changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease 
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 
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Short term lease 

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use asset and lease liabilities for short term leases of 
property that has lease term of 12 months or less. The Company recognises lease payment associated 
with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over lease term. 

Company as lessor: 

The Company's accounting policy under Ind AS 116 has not changed from the comparative period. As 
a lessor the Company classifies its leases as either operating or finance leases. A lease is classified as a 
finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the 
underlying asset and classified as an operating lease if it does not. 

3.13 Earnings Per Share: 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity 
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year. 

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to 
issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed 
by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by weighted average 
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number 
of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares. 

3.14 Retirement and other employee benefit: 

3.14.1 Provident fund and National Pension Scheme: 

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which 
is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual ba~is and 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

3.14.2 Gratuity: 

The Company·s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company·s net obligation in 
respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit 
that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that 
benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, ·f any, 
is deducted. The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on 
independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. 

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, 
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on 
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are 
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained 
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. 

Remeasurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 

3.14.3 Compensated Absences: 

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their 
annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the 
charge in the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting 
accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cJst of 
providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method. 

3.14.4 Equity-settled share-based payments and Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs): 
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Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are granted by the ultimate parent Company. 
These are measured by reference to the fair value of the equity i:1struments at the grant date. 
These includes Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs) where the right to receive the difference 
between the SAR price and the market price of equity shares of the ultimate parent Com;:iany 
on the date of exercise, either by way of cash or issuance of equity shares of the ultimate parent 
Company, is at the discretion of the ultimate parent Company. These are classified as equity 
settled share based transaction. 

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is 
expensed over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will 
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting reriod, 
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact 
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such trat the 
cumulative expense rellects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the 'ESOP 
reserve·. In cases where the share options granted vest in instalments over the vesting peri,Jd, 
the Group treats each instalment as a separate grant, because each instalment has a different 
vesting period, and hence the fair value of each instalment differs. 

3.15 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE): 

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to-day serv1c111g, less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful l:fe are 
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and trea:ed as 
changes in accounting estimates. 

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the ca~rying 
amount thereof when those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned above. Repairs c.nd 
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets ( other than freehold land and properties 
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is provided on a written 
down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or put to use whichever is earlier. 
In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto the date of disposal. 

As per the requirement of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the Jseful 
lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule II for 
calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are as follows: 

Nature of assets Estimated useful lives 
Furniture and fixtures 10 years 
Vehicles 8 years 
Office Equipment 5 years 
Computers - Servers and networks 6 years 
Computers - End user devices, such as desktops, laptops, etc. 3 years 

Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the 
assets or the period of lease whichever is earlier. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those 
components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of replace1:1ent 
thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment 
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset ar:d is 
recognised in profit or loss. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipme:1t are 
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
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3.16 Intangible Assets: 

Intangible assets are recorded at the coni.ideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are carried 
at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any. Intangibles such as software are amortised 
over a period of 3 years based on its estimated useful life. 

3.17 Impairment of non-financial assets: 

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the 
recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of 
cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is 
reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in 
the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously 
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the assets is reflected 
at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost. 

3.18 Provisions and other contingent liabilities: 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result 
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an 
appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a 
contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising 
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of 
one or more unce11ain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Claims against the 
Company, where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as 
contingent liabilities. 

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition 
of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then 
the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised. 

3.19 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise of cash at banks and in hand and sho11-term 
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less . 

3.20 Income tax expenses: 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

3.20.1 Current tax: 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 
·profit before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income 
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or 
deductible. The Company"s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
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3.20.2 Deferred tax: 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabi lities are· generally recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary 
differences to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against whicb those 
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting periJd and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be availcble 
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax la\\-S) that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would 
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to 
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

3.20.3 Current and Deferred tax for the year: 

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that 
are recognised in other comprehensive income or d irectly in equity, in which case, the current 
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity 
respectively. 

4. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions: 

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the re:,orted 
amount of assets, liabili ties, incomes and expenses. Actual resu lts may differ from those estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, 
information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting 
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the standalone financial statements 
are included are given below: 

4.1 Business model assessment: 

The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how the financial assets are managed 
together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all 
relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance 
measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and hew the 
managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised 
cost that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether 
the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monito~ing is 
part of the Company's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remain ing 
financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has bee:1 a 
change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those instruments. 

4.2 Significant increase in credit risk: 

As explained in note 48.1, ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for Stage I assets. 
or lifetime ECL for Stage II or Stage 111 assets. An asset moves to Stage II when its credit ri sk has 
increased significantly since ini tial recognition. Ind AS 109 does not define what constitutes a significant 
increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the 
Company takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward- looking 
information. Refer to note 48.1 for more details. 
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4.3 Key sources of estimation uncertainty: 

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation 
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as described 
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial 
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, 
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. 
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

4.4 Fair value of financial instruments: 

The Fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using 
valuation techniques. The Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make 
assumptions based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. Judgements and 
estimates include consideration of liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk, f:.mding 
value adjustments, correlation and volati lity. 

4.5 Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method: 

The Company's EIR methodology, as explained in Note 3.1.1, recognises interest income/ expense using 
a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate ofretum over the expected behavioural 
life of loans given/ taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages 
and other characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments and penalty interest and charges. 

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life 
cycle of the instrument, as well expected changes India's base rate and other fee income, expenses that 
are integral part of the instrument 

4.6 Impairment of Financial assets: 

The impairment provisions for the financial assets except assets valued at fair value through Profi: & 
Loss account (FVTPL) are based on assumptions about estimation of the amount and timing of future 
cash flows, collateral values, assessment of a significant increase in credit risk, probability of default 
(PD) and Loss given default (LGD) rates. The Company uses judgements in making these assump:ions 
and selecting the inputs for impairment calculations based on its past history, existing market conditions 
and forward looking estimates at the end of each period. These estimates are driven by number of factors, 
change in which can result in different level of allowance. 

The Company"s expected credit loss (ECL) calculations are output of complex model with number of 
underlying assumptions regarding choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the 
ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include: 

• The Company's internal credit grading model , which assigns PDs lo the individual grades based on 
ageing. 

• The Company's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so 
allowances for financial assets should be measured on a L TECL basis and the qualitative assessment. 

• The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis. 

• Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs Determination 
of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as unemployment 
levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs. 

• Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive 
the economic inputs into the ECL models. 
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It has been the Company's policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience 
and adjust when necessary. 

4.7 Impairment of Non-Financial assets: 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be 
impaired. If any indication exist, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's 
recoverable amount is higher of an asset"s fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where the 
can-ying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered im;Jaired and is written down to 
its recoverable amount. 

4.8 Provisions and contingent liabilities: 

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element 
of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and 
regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of its business. 

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case 
and considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case. Where 
the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made, 
a contingent liability is disclosed. 

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company 
takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical 
evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates. 

4.9 Provisions for Income Taxes: 

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including judgment 
on whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment can 
involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods. 

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and 
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

S. Leases: 

Significant judgements are involved in evaluating if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per :he 
requirements oflnd AS 116. The Company also uses significant judgement in assessing the applicable discount 
rate which is an equivalent to incremental borrowing rate estimated on best effort basis. 

6. Standards issued but not yet effective: 

There are no new standard or amendment issued but not effective. 

7. A Scheme of Amalgamation for merger (Merger by Absorption) of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
("ERFL") with the Company ("Transferee Company") and their respective shareholders under section 230 to 
232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under has been filed with the Hon'ble National 
Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT") on March 26, 2019. Further, on March 25, 2019, the Company had applied 
for approval from the Reserve Bank of India in relation to the said merger, which was approved by the RBI on 
September 27, 2019. The Company is in process to obtain NOCs from all the lending banks. 
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(CuiTcncy: Indian rupees in millions) 

8 Cash and cash equivalents 

Balances with banks 
• in currcnl accounts 
- m fixed deposits with original maturity less than three months 

9 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 

Fixed deposits with original maturity more than three months and less than 12 months 
Fixed deposits with original maturity more than 12 months 

9.1. Encumbrances on fixed deposits with hank held by the Company 
Given ilS credit enhancements towards securitisa1ion 

10 

Given as margin against the bank guarantee issued in favour of 
BSE Limited towards public issuance of non convertible 
debentures. 
Given as collateral agai11st Bank overdraft 

Securities held for trading As at March 31, 2022 
Al fair value through profit and loss account Face value Quantity Amount 

Ocbt Securities 
9.65% EC'L Finance Limited 06.08.2023 Bonds 
0.00% EC'L Finance Limited 04.04.2022 Bonds 
10.00% Edelweiss Housi ng Finance Limited 19.07.2026 NC'D 

10.20% ECL Finance Limited 04.04.2022 Bonds 
9.45% EC'L Finance Limited 06.08.2021 Bonds 
0.00% EC'L Finance Limited 06.08.2023 Bonds 
9.90% EC'L Finance Limtcd 28.1 1.2021 Bonds 
0% EC'L Finance Limited 06.08.2021 Bonds 
I 0.20% ECL Finance Limited 23.08.2022 Bonds 
0.00% ECL Finance Limited 23.08.2022 Bonds 
9.25% EC'L Finance Limited 06-Aug-2023 Bonds 
0.00% EC'L f'inar.ce Limited 23.05.2021 Bonds 
I 0.40% EC'L Finance Limited 04.01.2024 Bonds 
9.90% EC'L Finance Limited 23.05.2021 Bonds 
0.00% ECL Finance Limited 04.01.2024 Bonds 

0.00% Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 19.07.2021 Bonds 

9.75% Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 19.07.2021 Bonds 

0.00% EC'L Finance Limited 23.05.2024 Bonds 
I 0.60% EC'L finance Limited 04.0 1.2029 Bonds 
9.25% EC'L Finance Limited 06-Aug-2023 Bonds 

1,000 
1,000 

1,000 
1,000 

1,000 

1,000 
1,000 

1,000 

1,000 

1,000 
1,000 
1,000 

14,936 16.48 
7,209 9.75 

7,465 8.03 
3,829 4.01 

3,834 4.54 

1,951 2.27 
1,762 2.29 

772 0.79 

218 0.29 

3 0.00 
0.00 

1,853 1.83 

As at As at 
March 3 t, 2022 March 31. 20: I 

166.30 554 (8 
150.:2 

166.30 704 ... 0 

117.56 253.85 
22.01 23.34 

139.57 277.19 

22.06 
22.i9 

15.54 

As at Mar~h JI, 2021 
Face value Quantity Amount 

1.000 14,936 15.72 
1,000 7,209 8.5 1 

1,000 7,465 HS 
1,000 3,829 HS 
1,000 3,540 HI 
1,000 3,834 J.91 
1,000 3,601 3.83 
1,000 2,105 2.5'1 
1,000 1,951 2.20 
1,000 1.762 2.09 
1,000 1.853 1.77 
1,000 1,337 1.59 
1,000 772 0.76 
1,000 453 0.53 
1,000 218 0.21 

1,000 122 0.1~ 

1,000 s O.Ql 

1,000 3 0.0) 
1,000 0.0) 

Total Debi securities 50.29 59.43 =========================~~ 

II 

Note: Please refer note 50.1 Fair Value measurement for valuation methodologies for securities held for trading. 

Trade receivables 

Trade receivables (Unsecured) 
Receivables considered good - non-related party 
Receivables considered good - related party- (Refer note 46) 
Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 

Less : Allowance for expected credit losses 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

0.27 
19.72 
0.14 

20.13 
(0.49) 
19.64 

i\s at 

March 31 , 202 

0.:7 
l9S6 
0.14 

20 . .::7 
(0.84) 
19.f3 
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Reconciliation of impairment a llowance on trade receivables: 

Impairment allowance measured as per simplified approach 
Impairment allowance - Opening Balance 
(Add)/ Less: Change due to receivable balance/bucketing (net) 

Impairment allowance~ Closing Balance 

Note: For disclosure relating to trade receivable ageing/ provision matrix, relCr note 51 

11 (a) Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule 

As at March 31, 2022 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

Outstanding for March 31, 2022 # 

(0.84) 
0.35 

(0.49) 

Particulars Less than 6 6 Months - 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 
years 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant 
increase in credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase 
in credit risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired 
Receivable (A) 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant 
increase in credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase 
in credit risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
ECL Provision on receivables ( B) 
Receivables net of provision= (A)-(B) 

As at March ) I, 2021 

Particulars 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant 
increase in credit risk 

(i ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase 
in credit risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
Receivable (A) 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant 
increase in credit 1isk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good 
( v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have s1g111licant 111crease 
in credit risk 

( vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

ECL Provision on receivables (B) 
Receivables net of provision = (A)-(B) 

" Unbilled amount due of March 2022 is Nil (March 2021- Nil). 

Months I Year 

19.97 O.D2 

0.14 

19.97 0-02 0.14 

0.34 0.01 

0.14 

0.34 0.01 0.14 
19.63 0-02 

Outstanding for March 31, 2021 11 

Less than 6 6 Months - I 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 
Months Year years 

20.33 

0.14 

20.33 0.1 4 

0.70 

0.14 

0.70 0.14 
19.63 

For the year encec 
March 31, 2C1 I 

Total 

T~tal 

(0 .4) 
(0 7Q) 

(0 84) 

19., 9 

0.14 

20.13 

0.)5 

0. 14 

0.49 
19.'4 

20.:;3 

0. 4 

20.<-7 

0. 14 

O.S4 
19.f} 
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12 Loans (At amortised Cost) 
A. Term Loans 
(i) Retail loans 
(ii) Wholesale loans 

Total (A) - Gross 
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 
(including on loan commitment) 
Total (A) - Net 

B. Term Loans 
(i) Secured by tangible assets (refer note 49.1.2) 
(ii) Unsecured 
Total (B) - Gross 
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 
(including on loan commitment) 
Total (B) - Net 

C. Term Loans 
C.I Loans in India 
(i) Public Sectors 
(ii) O thers 
Total (C.I) - Gross 
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 
( including on loan commitment) 
Total (C.I) - Net 

C.11 Loans outside India 
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 
( including on loan commitment) 
Total (C.11) - Net 

Total: (C.I and C.11) 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

4,996.09 
5,723.13 

10,719.22 
(482.79) 

10 236.43 

6,028.04 
4,691.18 

10,719.22 
(482.79) 

10 236.43 

10719.22 
10,719.2~ 

(482.79) 

10,236.43 

10 236.43 

As at 
March 31, 20~ I 

6/ , 10.03 
5,938.60 

12,548.63 
(624.72) 

11 ,923.91 

8.'.!28. 16 
4,320.47 

12.548.63 
(624.72) 

I l.'l23.9 I 

12.548.53 
12.548.53 
(624.72) 

1 f.023 .11 

11 5 23 9 1 

12.1. Loans or advances in the nature of loans arc granted to promoters, directors, KM Ps and the related pa,tics (as derined under the Companies Act, 20 I J). 
either severally or j ointly with any other person that arc: 
(a) repayable on demand or 
(b) without specifying any terms or period o f repayment 

As at March 31 , 2022 As al March 3 1, 202 1 

Type of Borrower 
Amount of Loan/Advance in % to the total loan and Amount of Loan/Advance in % to the total ll'an 
the nature of Loan advance in the nature the nature of Loan and advan~c i, lhe 
outstanding of loans outstanding nature of loans 

Promoter - - - -
Directors - - - -
KMP's - - - -
Related Parties: 
ECL Finance Limited - - 2000 17% 
Total - - 2000 17% 
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12.2. Credit Quality of Assets 

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on year-end stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of 
impainnenl allowances. Details of the Company's internal grading system are explained in Note 49.1 and policies on ECL allowances are set out in l'-ole 3.6. 

Refer note 49. 1.3 for modified and forborne loans. 

(a) Gross carrying amount of loan assets allocated to Stage I, Stage II and Stage Ill 

As at March 31, 202-Z As at March 3 I, 202 I 

Particulars Stage I Stage II Stage lfl Total Stage I Stage II Stage Ill Total 

Loans (at amortised cost) 
Performing 

High grade 7,469.23 7,469.23 7,686. 17 7,686.17 

Standard grade 3,001.94 3,001.94 3,301.29 3,301.29 

Non-performing 
Impaired* 248.05 248.05 1,561.17 1,561.17 

Total 7,469.23 3,001.94 248.05 l0,719.22 7,686.17 3,301.29 1,561.17 12,548.63 

• Total nwnbcr of borrowers as on 31st March 2022 are 102 borrowers. 

(b) Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL in relation lo loan assets is as follows: 

Non-credit impaired Credit impaired 
Total 

Stage I Stage II Stage Ill 

Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Allowance 
Particulars carrying for carrying for carrying for carrying for 

amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL 
For the i::ear ended March 31, 2022 

Opening Balance 7,686.17 94.41 3,301.29 247.31 1,561.17 279.81 12.548.63 621.53 

Transfers: 
Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage I) 1,212.85 115.10 (81461) (57.25) (398.24) (57.85) 

Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage II) (333.88) (3.00) 772.91 83.89 (439.03) (80.90) 
Transfers to lifetime ECL - Credit (179.69) ( 1.82) (24.97) (4.3 1) 204.65 6.13 
impaired (Stage Ill) 

Remeasurement of ECL arising from (86.08) 59.16 24.02 (2 90) 
transfer of stage (net) 
Net new and further lending/ (repayments) (867.57) (72.68) (207 83) 74.99 (224.03) (58.18) (1,299.45) (55 87) 

Amounts written off (48.64) (5.7 1) (24 85) (14.19) (6.0 1) (3.25) (79.50) (23 15) 
Loan sold to Asset Recontruction (450.46) (56.97) (450.46) (56.97) 
Company Trust and AIF 
Closing Balance 7,469.23 40.22 3,001.94 389.61 248.05 52.81 10,719.22 482.64 

For the :tear ended March 3 I 2021 

Opening Balance 12,442.48 88.65 3,31294 328.81 381.38 75.20 16,13680 492.66 
Transfers: 

Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage I) 70.48 11.62 (68.50) (I0.07) ( 1.98) ( 1.54) 
Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage II) (646.69) (9.72) 658 44 17.94 ( 11.76) (8.22) 
Transfers to lifetime ECL- Credit (I, 171.19) (5.27) (241.43) (26.14) 1,412.61 3 1.41 
impaired (Stage Ill) 

Remeasurement of ECL arising from (8.77) 71.69 46.06 108.98 
transfer of stage (net) 
Net new and further lending,' (repayments) (2,952.34) 26.42 252.64 (2.15) 20.98 176.48 (2,678.72) 200.75 

Amounts written off (56.57) (8.5 1) (92.15) (45.89) ( 15.87) ( 12.41) ( 164.59) (66.81) 
Loan sold to Asset Recontruction (520.65) (86.88) (224.2 1) (27.17) (744.86) ( 114.05) 
Company Trust 
Closing Balance 7 686.17 94.41 3 301.29 247.3 1 1,561.17 279.81 12,548.63 621 .53 

Notes: 
I . Contractual outstanding amount is written off. 
2. Changes in loss allowance is due to change in portfolio composition and movement in loan outstanding as the year end. 
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(Cum:ncy : Indian rnpees in millions) 

12.3. Credit Quality of exposure (Loan Commitment) 

(a) Gro~s carrying amount of loan commitment allocated to Stage I, Stage II and Stage Ill 

As at March 31 , 2022 
Particulars Stage I Stage II Stage Ill Total 
Loans (at amortised cost) 
Performing 

I ligh grade 55.55 55.55 
Standard grade 
Substandard grade 

Non-performing 
Impaired 0.04 0.04 

Total 55.55 0.04 55.59 

As at March 31 . 2021 
Stage I Stage II Stage Ill Tctal 

:7.00 l7~'lC 
42.38 42.38 

17.00 42.38 59.38 

(b) Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL in relation to of loan commitment is as follows: 

Non-credit impaired Credit impaired 
Total 

Stage I Stage II Stage Ill 

Particulars Gross Allownncc Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Allonan ~c 
carrying fol" carrying for ca,-rying for carrying ro,· 
amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL 

For the Year Ended March 31, 2022 

Opening Balance 17.00 0.49 42.38 2.70 59.38 3 .• 9 
Transfers: 
Transfe1s to 12 Month EC L (Stage I) 34 .89 (34.89) 
Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage II) (0.54) 0.54 
Transfers to lifotime ECL - Credit 
impaired (Stage Ill ) 

Remeasurement of EC L arising from 
transfer of stage (net) 
Net new sarn .. tions and (disbursement) 4 .20 (0 35) (8.03) (2.70) 0.04 (3.79) H 'S) 
Closing Balance 55.55 0.14 0.04 55.59 o.; 4 

For the Y car Ended March 3 I. 202 1 
Opening Balance 155.16 0. 13 155. 16 0.13 
Transfers: 
Transfers to 12 Month ECL(Stagc I) 
Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage II ) 
Transfers to lifetime ECL- Credit impaired 
(Stage Ill) 
Remeasurement of EC L arising from 
u-ansfer of stage (net) 
Net new sanctions and (disbursement) (1 38. 16) 0 36 42.38 2.70 (95.78) 3.0S 

Closing Balance 17.00 0.49 42.38 2.70 59.38 3. l'l 
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(Currency : Indian rupees in millions) 

13 Investments 

As at March 31, 2022 At fair value 

At 
Amortised Through Through 

Particulars cost (I) OCI (2) P&L (3) 

Security receipts - - 1,246.14 
Units o f AIF - - 300.76 

Total - Gross (A) - - 1,546.90 

(i) Investments outside India - -
(ii) Investment in India - - 1,546.90 
Total (8) - - 1,546.90 

Less: Allowance for impairment (C') - - (5.92) 
Total Net (A-C) - - 1,540.98 

As at March 3 I 202 1 At fair value 

At Amortised 
Paniculars cost ( I) 

Through OCI Through 
(2) P&L (3) 

Security receipts - - 714.03 
Units of AIF - - 249.80 

Total - Gross (A) - - 963.83 

(i) Investments outside India - -
(ii) Investment in India - 963.83 
Total (B) - 963.83 

Less: Allowance for impairment (C) - - (5.92) 
Total Net (A-C) - 957.91 

Note: 

Designated at Subtotal Total 
fair value 

5 = (2+3+4) 
At cost (6) m= 11+5+6> 

through Profit 
or loss (4) 

1,246.14 - 1,246.14 
300.76 - 300.76 

- 1,546.90 - 1,546.90 

-
- 1,546.90 - 1,546.90 

- 1,546.90 - 1,546.90 

- (5.92) - (5.92) 
- 1,540.98 - 1,540.98 

Designated at 
Subtotal To:al 

fair value 
5 = (H3+4) 

At cost (6) 
(7)~ ( I ~5+6) 

through Profit 
or loss (4) 

- 714.03 - 7 14.03 
249.80 249.80 

963.83 9:,3.8} 

- -
963.83 - %3.83 
963.83 %3.83 

(5.92) '.5.92) 
- 957.91 - 957.91 

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company sold financial assets amounting to Rs. 370.80 million (net of losses & prnvisi:ms) to 
various asset reconstructions company trusts(' ARC Trusts') and acquired security receipts (SR) amounting to Rs. 315.48 million from these 
ARC Trusts. Ind AS 109 - ' Financial Instruments', prescribed under section 133 o f the Companies Act, 2013, requires substantially al risks 
and rewards to be transferred for the purpose of de-recognition of such financial assets from the Company's financial statements. Ede weiss 
Financial Securities Limited (EFSL), the holding Company had undertaken substantially all risks and rewards in respect of such fin~ncial 
assets. As a result. these financial assets were de-recognized in the Company's financial result. 

13.1 Investments Details 

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 3 1, 202 1 
Face Value/ Face Value/ 

NAV Quantity Amount NAV Quantity Amo-:Jnt 

Security receipts 
EARC Trust SC 373 432.16 2,25,250 97.35 722.37 2,25,250 62.71 
EARC Trust SC 385 653.96 2,76,590 180.88 895.72 2,76,590 247.75 
EARC Trust SC 416 989.33 1,52,065 150.44 - - -
Omkara PS 04 Trust 978.50 2,75,506 269.58 921.5 1 3,23,000 297.65 
Omkara l'S34/202 1-22 1000.00 63,920 63.92 - -
EARC Trust SC - 378 504.29 22,780 11.49 -
EARC Trust SC 374 727.74 63,106 45.93 - - -
EARC Trust SC 4 I 7 877.72 3,65,925 321.18 -
CFMARC Trust - 94 1000.00 99,450 99.45 - -

1,240.22 7)8.11 

Units of AIF 
Real Estate Credit Opponunitics Fund II 99 17.09 22,400 222.14 10000.00 22,400 224.00 
LICHFL I lousing & Infrastructure Fund 100.00 7,86, 180 78.62 100.00 2,58,000 25.80 

300.76 249.80 

1,540.98 957.91 

~o~ a <,) < I-~ ~-, 
~ ;;;· 

C, <.· 
1/0 ~ , ~ 
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(Cun-ency: Indian rupees in millions) 

14 Other financial assets 
(unsecured, considered good) 

Security Deposits 
Advances to others 
Deposits- others 
Margin placed with broker 

15 Current tax assets (net) 

Advance income taxes 

(net of provision for tax Rs. 86.23 million, previous year Rs. 176.42 
million) 

16 Deferred tax assets (net) 

Deferred tax assets 
Loans 

Provision for expected credit loss 
Unamo1tised processing fees - EIR on lending 

Prope1ty, plant and equipment and intangibles 
Difference between book and tax depreciation 

Employee benefit obligations 
Provision for compensated absences 
Disallowances under section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 

Lease liability 
Others 

Deferred tax liabilities 

Investments and other financ ial instruments 
Unamottised loan origination costs - EIR on lending 
Recognition of Interest Strip on assignment deals 
Accrued Interest on Stage 111 receivables 

Botrnwings 

Effective interest rate on financial liabilities 
Right-of-use Asset (ROU) 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

13.96 
23.93 
0.10 
0.97 

38.96 

63.96 

63.96 

121.51 
6.00 

10.03 

0.64 
0.01 
4.06 
8.67 

150.92 

5.77 
13.44 

11.37 
3.28 

33.86 

117.06 

Note: For disclosure relating to movement in defen-ed tax assets/ liabilities, refer note 39.3. 

As at 
March 3 I , 202 I 

56.69 
538.69 

0.09 
70. 10 

665.57 

151.43 

151.43 

149.92 
6.54 

9.97 

0.18 
9.57 

27.91 
20.17 

224.26 

7.60 
13.74 
0.24 

14.35 
25.69 

61.62 

162.64 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2022 (Co11ti11ued) 

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions) 

17 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Gross Block 

As at Additions Disposals 
Description of Assets 

April 01, during the during the 
2021 year year 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Land* 0.37 - -

Leasehold improvements 8.56 0.32 4.99 

Furniture and Fixtures 4.08 0.02 1.70 

Vehicles - -

Office equipment 7.55 0. 11 2.92 

Computers 23 .78 0.30 6.96 

Right-of-use Asset (ROU) 180.67 37.34 98.42 

Total 225.01 38.09 114.99 

18 Intangible Assets Under Development 

(i) Intangible Assets Under Development Ageing Schedule:-

As at 
March 

31, 2022 

0.37 

3.89 

2.40 

4.74 

17.1 2 

119.59 

148.11 

Amount in Intangible Assets Under 

Intangible Assets Under 
Development for a period of March 31 , 2022 

More Development Less than 
1-2 Years 2-3 years than 3 

I year 
vears 

Project in oro!!ress 
Digital Lending Platfonn (OLP)* 40.62 52.32 - -
Total 40.62 52.32 - -

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment Net Block 

As at Charge Disposals As at 
As at March 

April 01, for the during the March 31, 
3 1, 2022 

2021 year year 2022 

- - - - 0.37 

5.77 1.55 4.07 3.25 0.64 

2.36 0.40 1.13 1.63 0.77 

- - - -

6. 19 0.53 2.57 4.15 059 

20.69 0.94 6.59 15.04 2.08 

78.52 28.02 - 106.54 13.05 

113.53 31.44 14.36 130.61 17.50 

Total 

92.94 

92.94 

(ii) For Intangible Assets Under Development, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan. refer 
helow schedule:-

To be completed in 
Intangible Assets Under 

Less than 
More 

Total 
Development 

I year 
1-2 Years 2-3 years than 3 

\ 1ears 
Digital Lending Platfonn (OLP)* 125.00 - - - 125.00 
Total 125.00 - - - 125.00 

Note: 
• The company is developing a Digital Lending Platform (OLP) for automation of retail loan origination process. The original projected cost of the 
sofiware was estimated at Rs. 95.00 million with a variation of 10%. During the development phase, Co- Lending Model (CLM) module was identified 
as an additional module for development, accordingly the project cost is revised and estimated to be Rs. 125 million. Further, timcline for completion of 
the project is also revised and expected to be completed by FY 2023 

19 Other Intangible Assets 

G ross Block Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment Net Block 

Description of Assets As at Additions Disposals As at As at Charge Disposals As at 
April 01 , during the during the March April 01, for the during the March 31, 

As at March 
3 1, 2022 

2021 year year 31, 2022 2021 year year 2022 

Other Intangible Assets 

Software 15.78 - 15.78 11.78 3.23 - 15.01 0.77 

Total 15.78 - - 15.78 11.78 3.23 - 15.01 0.77 
Note: 

• Charged against secured redeemable non-convertible debentures 
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17 Property, Plant and Equipment (Previous Yenr) 

Gross Block 

Dcscri pt ion or Assets 
As at Additions Disposals 

April 01, during the during the 

2020 year year 

Propc11y, Plant and Equipment 

I.and• 0.37 - -
Leasehold improvements 21.40 - 12.84 

Furniture and Fixtures 9.43 0.05 5.40 

Vehicles 3.46 3.46 

omre equipment 20.49 - 12.94 

Computers 26.02 0.11 2.35 

Right-of-use l',sset (ROU) 165.85 89.26 74.44 

Total 247.02 89.42 111.43 

18 Intangible Assets Under Development 

(i) Intangible Assets Under Development Ageing Schedule:-

As al 
March 31, 

2021 

0.37 

8.56 

4.08 

7.55 

23.78 

180.67 

225.01 

Amount in Intangible Assets Under Development 

Intangible Assets Under Development 
for a period of March 31 , 2021 

Less than I 
1-2 Years 2-3 years 

More than 
year 3 years 

Project in progress 
Digital Lending Platfonn (OLP)• 52.32 - - -
Total 52.32 - -

Accumulated Depreciation and lmpainnent Net Blod 

As at 
Charge for 

Disposals As at As a1 
April 01, during the March 31, March 31, 

2020 
the year 

year 202 1 2021 

- - - - 0.37 

10.62 3.33 8.18 5 77 2.79 

4.44 1.07 3.15 236 1.72 

2.31 0.07 2.38 -
14.34 2.03 10.18 619 1.3~ 

20.47 2.26 2.04 20 69 3.0:J 

49.95 28.57 - 78 52 102. · s 

102.13 37.33 25.93 113.53 11 l.4~ 

Total 

52.32 
52.32 

(ii) For Intangible Assets Under Development, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared 10 its original plan, refer below schedule·-

To be completed in 
Intangible Assets Under Development Less than I More than Total 

1-2 Ycars 2-3 years 
year 3 years 

Digital Lending Platfonn (OLP)• - - - - -
Total - - - - -

I 9 Other Intangible Assets (Prcviou~ Year) 

Gross Block Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment Net Blot.c 

Description of A~se1s Asat Additions Disposals Asal As at 
Charge for 

Disposals l\s at Asat 
April 01, during the during the March 31, April 0 1, dunng the March 31. March 31, 

2020 year year 2021 2020 
the year 

year ~021 2021 

Other Intangible Assets 

Software 15.78 - 15.78 7.82 3.96 - 11.78 4.0() 

Total 15.78 - 15.78 7.82 3.96 11.78 4.00 

Note: 
•Charged ~gainst secured redeemable non-convenible debentures 

~ 
<)' 

c,' 

* 'J 
~ 

'?'er~d A 
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20 Other non-financial assets 

Input tax credit (Goods and Services Tax) 
Control Accounts 
Prepaid expenses 
Advances to vendors 
Advances to employees 

21 Trade Payables 

Trade payables to non-related pa1ties 
Trade payables to related pa,ties (Refer note 46) 

Note: 
(i) Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

(ii) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

110.71 
0.11 

23.41 
23.75 

0.24 

158.22 

42.86 
I I.SI 

54.37 

53.48 

0.89 

As at 
March 3 I, 2021 

61.08 

28.81 
4.59 
0.39 

94.87 

I 03.44 
8.00 

111.44 

111.44 

Trade Payables includes Rs.0.89 million (Previous Year Nil) payable to "Suppliers" registered under the Micro, Small and Medium 

Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Interest paid by the company during the year to "Suppliers" registered under this Act is Rs.0.06 million 

(Previous year: Nil). The aforementioned is based on the responses received by the company to its inquiries with suppliers with regard to 
applicability under the said Act. 

21.1 Trade Payable Ageing :­

As at March 31, 2022 

Outstanding for March 31, 2022 # 

Particulars 
Less than I 

1-2 Years 2-3 years Year 

(i) MSME 0.89 - -
(ii) Others 47.83 1.22 2.72 
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - -
Total 48.72 1.22 2.72 

As at March 31, 2021 

Outstanding for March 3 I, 2021 11 

Particulars 
Less than I 

Year 
l-2Years 2-3 years 

(i) MSME - - -
(ii) Others 106.71 2.77 0.83 
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - -
Total 106.71 2.77 0.83 

11 
Unbilled amount due or March 2022 is Rs. 31.18 million (March 2021- Rs.14.87 million). 

22 D<'bt securities (In India) 
(At amortised cost) 

Non-convc1tiblc redeemable debentures (Secured) 
Privately placed non-conve,tible debentures 
Publicly placed non-convertible debentures 

Note: For disclosure relating to repayment and other terms, refer note 53 

T 

(<
;<) / - '\~' 

C'I / l'* ,~ ,,, ~ 

)' .. 1-~ 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

1,040.74 
1,763.69 

Total 
More than 3 

years 

- 0.89 
1.71 53.48 

- -
- -

1.71 54.37 

Total 
More than 3 

years 

- -
1.13 111.44 
- -

-
1.13 111.44 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

1,166.27 
1,757.54 
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23 Borrowings other than debt securities (In India) 
(At amortised cost) 

Term Loan (secured) 
From Banks 
From Financial Institution (SIDBI) 

Note: For disclosure relating to repayment and other tcnns, refer note 52 

Bank overdraft (Secured) 
[Secured by charge on receivables from financing business) 
Bank overdraft is in nature of committed Cash Credit lines repayable on demand (Interest 
rate range, March-22: 7.95% • 11.55%, March-21: 8.30% • I 0.85%) 

Loan from related parties (Unsecured) 
Repayable on demand (Interest rate range, March-22: 11.41 % . 13.90%, March-21: 
11.39% · 13.05%) 
Working capital demand loan (WCDL) 

[Secured by charge on receivables from financing business] 
WCDL is in nature of short tcnn loan. (Interest rate range, March-22: 7.75% . 8.90%, 
March-2 1: 8.30% · 8.90%) 

23(a) Wilful Defaulter 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

1,101.59 
298.59 

1,400.18 

374.11 

374.11 

1,774.29 

The company is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender. 

23(b) Compliance to the borrower's terms & periodical filling of statements of current assets 

As at 

March 31, 2021 

3.012.33 
840.13 

3,852.46 

490.27 

9.87 

150.00 

650.14 

4,502.60 

Company has borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets as mentioned in Note 23 above 
(i) Company has filed quarterly retums or statements of current assets in timely manner and are in agreement with the books of 
(ii) There are no material discrepancies in quaterly retums or statements lilied. 

24 Subordinated liabilities (In India) 
(At amortised cost) 

Non-convertible subordinated debentures 

Non-convertible perpetual debentures 

Note: For disclosure relating to repayment and other tem1s, rcfor note 54 & 55 

25 Other financial liabilities 

Securitisation liability 
Investor payable on assigned loans 

Lease liabilities 

Payable to employees 
Book overdraft 
Debenture application money received pending allotment 

Other payable 

1,694.54 
458.64 

2,153.18 

284.11 
164.04 
16.12 
47.17 
41.11 

0.13 
121.07 
673.75 

1,660.46 

458.58 

2,119.04 

328.13 
I 10.87 
30.74 

0.11 

42.66 

512.51 
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26 Current tax liabilities (net) 

Provision for taxation 
(net of advance lax Rs. 528.31 million, previous year Rs. 363.67 million) 

27 Provisions 

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 43) 
Gratuity 
Compensated leave absences 

28 Other non-financial liabilities 

Revenue received in advance 
Payable to others 

Payable to related party (refer note 46) 
Statutory dues payable 

~m 
~ -

6 
* 
" '?:: 
~- ~'>; 

%redAcco-:S 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

44.02 

44.02 

8.71 

2.53 

11.24 

0.06 
8. 16 

0.66 
31.17 
40.05 

As at 
March 3 I, 2021 

95.34 

95.34 

8.01 
0.73 

8.74 

0.01 
0.70 
3.12 
8.26 

12.09 
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29 Equity share capital 

Authorised : 

5.00.00,000 (Previous year: 5,00,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up: 

4.29,50,000 (Previous year: 4.29,50,000) Equity shares of Rs . I 0 , fully 
paid-up 

(a) Movement in share capital : 

Particulars 

Outstanding al the beginning of the year 
Sharcs issued during the year 
Outstanding al the end of the year 

(h) Terms/rights attached to equity shares : 

As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 202 1 

500.00 500.00 

500.00 500.00 

429.50 429.50 

429.50 429.50 

As at As at 
March 31, 2022 Marci, 3 I, 202 I 

No of shares Amount No of shares Amount 

4,29,50,000 429.50 4,29.50.000 429.50 

4,29,50,000 429.50 4,29,50.000 429.50 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value or Rs. 10/-. Each holder or equity shares is entitled to one vote per share 
held . In the event o f liquidation of lhe Company. the holders of equity shares will be entitled to 1\.-ceive remaining assets o r the Comrany. after 
distribution or a ll preferential amounts. 

(c) Shares held by Promoters/holding/ultimate holcliug company and/or their subsidiaries 

Particulars 

Edclcap Securities Limited (I lolding company) 

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (Ultimate holding company) 
Edel Finance Company Limited (Fellow subsidiaty) 
Edel Land Limited (Fellow subsidiary)• 

% Change 
during the 

year 

22.57% 

22.57% 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

No of sha res % 

3,02,58,333 70.45% 

30,00,000 6.98% 
96,91,667 22.57% 

4;291501000 l00.00% 

As ,tt 
March 31. 202 1 

No of shares % 

3.02,58.333 70.45% 

96.9 1,667 22.57% 

30,00.000 6.98% 

4 .29,50.000 100.00% 

•On fone 9, 2021 Edelweiss Financial Services Limit~d has translcm:d 96,91,667 equity shares of the company to Edel Land Limited r,._sulting 
to change of shareholding o r the company. 

(d) There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/ commitments for the sale of shares/ disinvestment. 
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30 Other Equity 

Capital reserve 

Securities premium 

Statulmy reserve under section 45-IC 
Debenture redemption rese,ve 

Deemed capital cont1ibution - Equity 
Retained earnings 

Note: For movement in Other Equity, refer 'Statement of changes in Equity'. 

30.1. Nature and purpose of Reserves 

(a) Capital reserve 

Capital reserve represents the gains of capital nature which is not freely available for distribution. 

(b) Securities Premium 

As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 3 I, 2021 

8.18 8.18 
3,112.08 3,112.08 

352.80 315.86 
67.84 67.84 
5.94 5.94 

1,110.96 959.86 

4,657.79 4,469.76 

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. Balance in Securities premium can be utilised only for limited purposes 
such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(c) Special Reserve under Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 

Rese,ve created under section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as 
disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared. 

(d) Debenture Redemption Reserve 

The Company being an NBFC is required lo create and maintain debentw·e redemption rese,ve (ORR) equivalent to 25% of the public issue of 
debentures, as required by Companies Act, 2013. The amounts credited to the ORR may not be utilised except on redemption of su~h debentures. 
On redemption of debentures, the amount may be transferred from debentw·e redemption rese1ve to retained earnings. However, as per :he recent 
amendment to the Companies Act 2013, NBFC's are no longer required to create and maintain ORR. Accordingly, the Company has not created 
incremental ORR on existing public issue of debentw·es, post the said amendment, though the Company continues to maintain the ORR created 
earlier till the maturity of these debentures. 

( c) Deemed capital contribution - Equity 

This rcse1ve relates to share options granted to eligible employees of the Company by the parent company under its employee share option plan. 

(I) Retained Earnings 
Retained earnings comprises of the Company's undistributed earnings after taxes. 
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31 Interest Income (at amortised cost) 

Interest on Loans 
On loans and Credit substitutes 
On Loan to subsidiaiy companies (for finance company) 

Interest income on secu1ities held for trading 
Interest on deposits with bank 
Other interest income on direct assignment 

32 Fee and commission income 

Fee and commission income 

33 Net gain on fair value changes 

On trading portfolio 
Profit / (loss) on trading of securities (FVTPL) 
Profit on sale of mutual fund units (FVTPL) 
Profit & Loss on trading in Futures & Options (FVTPL) 
On Others 
Gain on buy back o f debt securities (at amortised cost) 
Gain / (loss) on Security Receipts 

34 Other income 

Other non operating income 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

1,492.00 
1, 190.28 

301.72 
6.1 7 

10.79 
41.30 

1,550.26 

51.29 

51.29 

158.94 
3.26 

162.20 

35.33 

35.33 

For the year ended 
March 3 I, 202 I 

2,068.47 
1,784.98 

283 .49 
22.97 

24.86 
66.69 

2,182.99 

54.64 

54.64 

18.5 1 

(0.02) 

0. 17 
(5.92) 

12.74 

41.92 

41.92 
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35 Finance costs (at amortised cost) 

Interest on bon-owings 
Interest on debt secu1ities 

Interest on subordinated liabilities 
Other interest expense (including bank charges) 
Interest on lease liabilities 

36 Impairment on financial instruments 

Loss on sale of loan assets sold to assets reconstrnction company (trnst) 
Bad- debts and advances w1itten off 

Provision for expected credit loss (at ammtised cost) 
(including on loan commitments) 

37 Employee benefit expenses 

Salaries and wages 

Conttibution to provident and other funds 

Gratuity expense (refer note 43) 

Share based payments to employees (Refer note below) 
Staff welfare expenses 

Note: 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

352.25 
255.19 
205.12 

3.4I 
11.34 

827.31 

35.89 
(9.08) 

(144.31) 

(I 17.50) 

197.23 
7.80 
l.99 

2.96 
5.74 

215.72 

For the year ended 
March 31 , 2021 

677.22 

453.40 
201. 19 

6.28 

11.05 
1,349.14 

45.35 
148.62 
160.64 

354.61 

110.71 

2.95 
2.27 

3.12 

3.03 

122.08 

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (" EFSL" ) the ultimate holding Company has granted an Employee stock option plan 
(ESOP)/ Stock Appreciation Rights (ESAR) option to acquire equity shares of EFSL that would vest in a graded manner to 

Company 's employees. Based on group policy / ammgcmcnt, EFSL has charged the fair value or such stock options /rights , 
Company has accepted such cross charge and recognised the same under the employee cost. 
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38 Other cxpc11scs 

Adver1isement and husiness promotion 

Commission and brokerage 
Communication 
Directors' sitting fees 
Legal and professional fees 
Printing and stationery 
Rent, Rates and taxes (net of recovery) 
Repairs and maintenance 
Compu1~r expenses 
Corporate social responsibility (refer note 38.2) 
Rating supp011 fees 
Office cxpcn~es 
Postage and courier 
Goods & Service tax expenses 
Stamp duly 
Auditors' remuneration (refer note 38.1) 
Travelling and conveyance 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Loan origination costs amor1iscd 

38.1 Auditors' remuneration 

A~ an Auditor 
Statutory Audit 
Limited Review 
Cer1ification 

Towa1ds reimbursement of expenses 

38.2 Details or CSR Expenditure: 
As per the provisions of Section 135 of Companies .A.cl 2013 

(a) A mount required lo be spent by the company dming the year 
(b) Amount of expenditure incum:d 

Amount spent (paid in cash) 

(iJ Constn,ction/ Acquisition of any assets 
(ii) For purpose other than (i) above 

Amount to be spent (yet to be paid in cash) 
(i) Construction/ Acquisition of any assets 

(ii) For puqiose other than (i) above 
(c) Shortfall al the ~nd of the year 
(Cl) Total of previous years sh011fall 
(c) Reason for shMfall 
(I) Details ofrclat!'d par1y transactions 

Name of Rclalcd Patty 
Relationship 

(g) Where a provision is made with respect lo a liability incmTed by 
entering into a contractual obligation 
(h) Nature of CSR activities 

For the year ended March, 31 2022 and March, 3! 2021 

For the year ended For lh~ year ended 
March 31, 2022 March JI, .202 1 

280.05 68.60 

4.46 8.83 

2.91 2.96 

0.48 0.58 

62.85 105.65 

0.77 0.86 

(2.84) (57.03) 

1.18 2.26 

8.40 7.97 

7.00 7.86 

0.06 0. 11 

I I.SO 43.18 

1.06 0.62 

41.88 34.24 

1.34 1 .. 13 
3.41 2.82 
3.34 1.09 

131.44 23. 15 
25.58 48 93 

584.87 304.01 

0.96 0.65 
1.35 1.05 
1.08 1.08 
0.02 0.04 

3.41 2.82 

7.00 7.86 
7.00 17.93 

7.00 17.93 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Edclgivc Foundation 
Fellow Subsidiary 

Education Working to enhance child lcaming through work with system and community and suppmt to the development 
of contextual literature for children 
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39 Income tax 

39.1 . The components of income tax expense: 

Current tax 
Short/(excess) provis ion for earlier years 
Deferred tax 

Total tax charge 

Current tax 

Deferred tax 

39.2 Reconciliation of total tax charge 

Accounting profit before tax as per financial statements 

Tax rate (in percentage) 
Income tax expense calculated based on this tax rate 
Short/(cxccss) provis ion for earlier years 
Effect of non- deductible expenses: 

Others 

Tax charge for the year recorded in P&L 

Effective tax rate 

For the period ended 
March 31 , 2022 

29.52 
(S.79) 
45.59 

69.32 

23.73 
45.59 

For the period ended 
March 31 , 2022 

254.01 

25.17% 
63.93 
(5.79) 

I 1.18 

69.32 

27.29% 

For the period ended 

March 3 1, 2021 

137.87 
(22.52) 
(54.30) 

6 1.05 

115.35 
(54.30) 

For the period ended 
March 31, 202 1 

329.59 

25.17% 
82.95 

(22.52) 

0.62 

61.05 

18.52% 
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39 Income tax 

39.3. Movement of Deferred Tax assets/ liabilities 

Deferred tax Deferred tax 
asset/ In profit or 

InOCI 
Directly in Total asset/ 

(liability) loss equity movement (liabilitf• 
(Ol!ening) (Closing· 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 
Deferred taxes in relation to: 
Deferred Tax Assets 

Provision for expected credit loss 149.92 (28.41) (28.41) 121 51 
Retirement Benefits 9.75 (9.10) (9.10) 0 65 
Difference between book and tax WDV 9.97 0.06 0.06 10 03 

(including intangibles) 
Lease liability 27,l)) (23.85) (23.85) 4 06 
Others 20.17 ( 11.50) ( 11.50) 8 67 
Effective interest rate on financial assets (1.06) 1.29 1.29 0 23 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 
Stage Ill Income recognition (0.24) 0.24 0.24 
Interest spread on assignment transactions (13.74) 0.30 0.30 (13.44) 
Effective interest rate on financial Liabilities (14.35) 2.98 2.98 (11.37) 
Right-of-use Asset (ROU) (25.69) 22.41 22.41 (3.18) 

Total 162.64 (45.58) (45.58) 117.06 

For the year ended March 3 I, 2021 

Defen-ed taxes in relation to: 
Defen-ed Tax Assets 

Provision for expected credit loss 124.03 25.89 25.89 149.92 
Retirement Benefits 0.34 9.52 (0.11) 9.41 9.75 
Difference between book and tax WDV 7.39 2.58 2.58 9.97 

(including intangibles) 
Lease liability 35.06 (7.15) (7.15) 27.91 
Others 0.04 20.13 20.13 20.17 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 

EfTective interest rate on financial assets (4.65) 3.59 3.59 (1.C6) 
Stage Ill Income recognition (0.24) (0.24) 
Interest spread on assignment transactions (3.68) (I0.06) (I0.06) (13.74) 
Effective interest rate on financial Liabilities (20.67) 6.32 6.32 (14.35) 
Right-of-use Asset (ROU) (29.17) 3.48 3.48 (25.69) 

Total l 08.45 54.30 (0.11) 54.19 162.64 
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40 Cash Flow Disclosure 

Change in Liabilities arising from financing acitivics 

Particulars As at April 
Cash Flows 

Changes in 
Others* 

As at March 
01, 2021 Fair value 31,2022 

Debt Securities 2,923.81 (100.01) (19.37) 2,804.43 
Boffowings other than Debt Securities 4,502.60 (2,720.40) (7 .9 1) 1,774.29 
Subordinated Liabilities 2,119.04 0.01 34.13 2,153.18 
Securitization liability 284.11 284.11 

9,545.45 {2,820.40} 290.96 7,016.01 

Particulars As at April 
Cash Flows 

Changes in 
Others* 

As at March 
01, 2020 Fair value 31, 2021 

Debt Securities 4,939.06 (2,044.82) 29.57 2,923.81 
Boffowings other than Debt Securities 7,499.12 (3,002.67) 6.15 4,502.60 
Subordinated Liabilities 2,089.06 0.01 29.97 2,119.04 
Securitization liability 

14,527.24 {5,047.48) 65.69 9,545.45 

*Includes the effect of accrued but not paid interest on boffowing, amo1tisation of processing fees etc. 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year cntic<i March 31, 2012 (Co11ti11ul!ll) 

(Currency: Indian rup.::cs in millions) 

41. Earnio1gs per Share 
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit allributablc to equity shareholders or the Compa;iy by the 
weighted average number or equity shares outstanding du; i11g the period. 

Net Profit attributable to Equity holders of the Company - A 

Weighted average Number of Shares 
- Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 
- Number of equity shares issued during the year 

Total number or equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (based 
on the date of issue of shares) - B 

Nominal value of equity shares 
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in rupees) (A/B) 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 

184.69 

42.95 

42.95 

42.95 

10.00 
4.30 

For the year ended 
March 31. '.!021 

268.55 

42.95 

42.95 

41.95 

1().()() 

6.26 

The basic and diluted earnings per share arc the same as there arc no dilutive/ potential equity shares issued or outstanding as 
at the year end. 

42. Contin::cnt Liability and Commitment: 

{a) Cor.tingrnt Liability 

Taxation matters 

Litigation pcndi11g against the company 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

Nil 

Nil 

As at 

March 3 i, 2021 

Nil 

Nil 

The Company's pending litigations mainly comprise of claims against the Company pertaining to proceedings pending with 

Income Tax and other authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has ad'.X)ualely 

provided for where provisions arc required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable. in the financial statement,. 

The Company lJdieves that the outcome of these proceedings wi ll not have a material adverse effect on the Compan,· s 

linancial position and results of operntions. 

(b) Commitment: 

Estimat<..-<l amount of contracts remaining to be executed on caj)ital account 

Loan sanctioned pending disbursements 

AIF Fund pending commitments 

Asal 
March 31. 2022 

16.95 

5559 

127.31 

March 31, 7.021 

9.82 

59.38 

174.20 
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43. Retirement and other employee benefits 

{a) Defined contribution plan - Provident funds 

In accordance with Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the 
provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which, both the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a determined rate. These contributions arc made to 
a recognized provident fund administered by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The employees contribute 12% o f their basic salary and the Company 

contributes an equal amount. 

The Company recognised as of March 31,2022 Rs. 8.98 millions {March 31, 2021 : Rs 4.69 millions) for provident fund in the Statement of profit and loss. 

(b) Defined benefit plan - Gratuity 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering all employees. The plan provides a !Ump 
sum payment to vested employees at retirement or termination of employment in accordance with the rules laid down in the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 The 

b'fatuiry benefit is partially provided through funded plan and annual expense is charged to the statement of profit and loss on the basis of actuarial valuation. 

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation (080) for gratuity were carried out as at March 31, :::J22. 
The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected l,;nit C·edi: 

Method. 

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Comp::ny's 

financial statements as at balance sheet date: 

Present value of defined benefit obligations (A) 

Fair Value of plan assets (B) 

Present value of defined benefit obligations (A-B) 

Net deficit / (assets) arc analysed as: 
Liabilities 
Assets 

Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability: 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

8.71 

8.71 

8.71 

As at 

March 31. 2021 
8.01 

8.01 

8.01 

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability and its compone:its: 

Present value of defined benefit obligations (opening) 
Current service cost 
Pasl service cost 
Interest cost 

Other comprehensive Income 
Remeasurement Actuarial loss (gain) arising from : 
Experience 

Financial assumptions 

Expected return from plan assets 

Others 
Transfer In/ (Out) 

Contributions by Employer 

Benefits paid 

C losing Balance (i) + (ii) + (iii) 

Represented by 
Net defined benefit asset 
Net defined benefit liability 

'r~)J 
\ p 

," 
, 

Defined benefit obligation Fair value of plan assets 
Net defined benefit (asse:J 

liability 

March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021 March 31, 2022 March 3 I 2021 March 31. 2022 \'1arch ll 20 I 

8.01 1.09 8.01 I 09 
1.60 1.87 1.60 187 

0.39 0.40 0.39 C4;J 
10.00 3.36 10.00 3 35 

(0.08) (0.24) (0.08) (0.2"-) 
(0.32) 0.23 (0.32) 0.23 

0.79 (0.42) 0.79 (0.4~) 
0.39 (0.43) 0.39 (0.43) 

(0.20) 6.19 (0.20) 619 

(1.48) (I.I I l ( 1.48) (I. 1 1) 

( 1.68) 5.08 (l.68) 5.08 

8.71 8.01 8.71 8.0 1 

8.7 1 8.JI 
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Components of defined benefit plan cost: 
for the year ended For the year ended 

(i) Recognised in Statement of profit or loss 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Expected return on plan assets 
Past service cost 

(ii) Recognised in other comprehensive income 
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability/(assel) 
Return on plan assets excluding net interest 

Total (i) + (ii) 

Actuarial assumptions: 
The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date: 

Discount Rate 
Salary Growth Rate 
Withdrawal/Anition Rate (based on categories) 
Expected return on plan Assets (p.a) 
Mortality Rate 

Expected weighted average rernainin working lives of employees 

Sensitivity analysis: 

MarchJl.2022 March 31,202 . 

1.60 
0.39 

1.99 

0.39 

0.39 

2.38 

As at 
Marrh 31. 2022 

5.90% 
7.00% 

16.00% 
NA 

IALM 2012-
14(Ultimate) 

4 Years 

1.s~ 

0.40 

2.27 

(0.43) 

(0.4:) 

1.84 

As at 
March 31. 2021 

5.00% 
7.00% 

25.00'),, 
NA 

IALM 2012-
14(Ultimate) 

3 Years 

As at March 31, 2022 i\s at March 31, 2021 

Salary Growth Rate(+/- 1%) 
Discount Rate(+/- 1%) 
Withdrawl Rate(+/. 1%) 
Mortality (increase in expected lifetime by I year) 
Mortality (increase in expected lifetime by 3 year) 

Increase 

0.57 
(0.53) 
(0.03) 

Decrease 

(0.53) 
0.59 
0.03 
0.00 
0.00 

Increase Decrease 

0.38 (0.36) 
(0.36; 0.39 
(0.03; 0.03 

0.00 
0.00 

The sensitivity is perfonned on the DBO at the respective valuation date by modifying one parameter whilst retaining other parameters consianl. There are no 
changes from the previous period to the methods and assumptions underlying the sensitivity analysis. 

Asset liability comparisons: 

Present value of DBO 
Fair Value of Plan assets 
Net (Assets)/Liabili tiy 

(c) Compensated absences: 

As at As at 
Marrh 31, 2022 March 31. 2021 

8.71 8.01 

8.71 8.01 

The Company provides for accumulated compensated absences as at the balance sheet date using projected unit credit method based on actuarial valuation. The 
leave encashmenl on separation is paid on basic salary. 
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44. Maturity Analysis of assets and liabilities 

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or scllled. With 
regard to loans and advances to customers, the company uses the same basis of expected repayment behaviour as used for contractual 
maturity analysis. 

As al March 31, 2022 As al March 3 1, 202 1 

Particulars 
Within 12 After 12 

Total 
Within 12 After 12 

Total 
months months months months 

Financial Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 166.30 166.30 704.40 704.40 
Bank balances o ther than cash and cash 
equivalents 139.57 139.57 277. 19 277. 19 
Securities held for trading 50.29 50.29 59.48 59.48 
Trade receiveables 19.64 19.64 19.63 19.63 
Loans 6,495.39 3,741 .04 10,236.43 5,767.72 6,156. 19 11,923.91 
Investments 1,540.98 1,540.98 957.91 957.91 
Other financial assets 25.00 13.96 38.96 457.00 208.57 665.57 

Non-financial assets 
Current tax assets (net) 63.96 63.96 150.73 0.70 151.43 
Deferred tax assets (net) 11 7.06 117.06 162.64 162.64 
Property, Plant and Equipment 17.50 17.50 111.48 111.48 
Intangible assets under development 92.94 92.94 52.32 52.32 
Other Intangible assets 0.77 0.77 4.00 4.00 
Other non-financial assets 47.5 1 11 0.7 1 158.22 33.78 6 1.09 94.87 

Total Assets 6,943.71 5,698.91 12,642.62 7.469.93 7,7 14.90 15,1 84.83 

Financial Liabilities 
Trade payables 54.37 54.37 111.44 111.44 
Debt securities 1,928.83 875.60 2,804.43 183.01 2,740.80 2,923.8 1 
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 1,774.29 1,774.29 3,093.43 1,409. 17 4,502.60 
Subordinated Liabilities 73.75 2,079.43 2, 153.18 73.69 2,045.35 2,119.04 
Other financial liabilities 637.37 36.38 673.75 430.26 82.25 5 12.51 

Non-financial liabilities 
Current tax liabilities (net) 44.02 44.02 95.34 95.34 
Provisions 11.24 11.24 8.74 8.74 
Other non-financial liabilities 40.05 40.05 12.09 12.09 

Total Liabilities 4,563.92 2,991.41 7,555.33 4,008.00 6,277.57 10,285.57 

Net 2,379.79 2,707.50 5,087.29 3,461.93 1,437.33 4,899.26 
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45. Segment reporting 

The Company is registered with Reserve Bank of India as a Non Banking Financial Company cng:.1ged in the business of lending and financing . All other activities of the compary 

revohe around the main business. Accordingly. there is no separate reportable segment and hence no disclosure is made under Ind AS 108 - 'Operating Segment Reporting'. Furuer. 
segmentation based on geob,n1phy has not been presented as the Company operates only in India. 

46. Related Party Disclosures 

(i) List of related parties and relationship: 

Namt! of related parties by whom control is exercised 

Fellow Subsidiaries 
(with whom transactions have taken place) 

Fellow Associates (From March 26. 2021) 

Key Managcme111 Personnel 

(ii) T ransactions with related parties: 

Nature orTrans.1c1ion 

C apital Act·ount TransarHorn: 

Loans l~ken fiom 

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited- Ult imate holding Company 
Edelcap Securities Limited (I lolding company) 

ECL Finance Limited 
Edel Finance Company Limited 
Edelweiss ln\'CStmcnts I imitcd 
Edel Land Limited (Formerly known as Ecap Equities Limited) 

EdelGive Foundation 
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 

Edelweiss Asset Rcconstruc1ion Company Limited 
Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited 
Edelweiss I-lousing Finance Limited 
Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited 
Edelweiss Rurnl & Corporate Services Limited 
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 
Edelweiss lnveslrnenl Advisors Limited (Up to March 26. 2021) 
Edelweiss Broking Limited (Up to March 26. 202 1) 

Edelweiss Securities Limited (Up to March 26. 202 1) 
Edelweiss Finance & lnvcslmcnls Limited (Up lo March 26. 2021) 
Edelweiss Custodial Services Lirnitcd (Up 10 March 26. 2021) 

Edelweiss Investment Advisors Limited 
Edelweiss Broking Lirnited 
Edelweiss Securities Limited 
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Li1nitcd 
Edelweiss ru,1odial Services Limited 

Mr. Krishnaswarny Siddhanh (uplo May 14. 2020) 
Ms. Shilpa Gauani (wer Fcbmary 6. 2020) 
Mr. Shrikanl Subbarnyan (uplo Aug 12. 2020) 
Mr. Phanindranath Kakarla (wefSep 15. 2020) 

Mr. Deepak Mundra (wcf' Sep 15. 2020 uplo Oct 13,2021) 
Mr. Mitul Shah (upto Feb 19. 2021) 
Mr. Sunil Phatarphckar (wer Apr 12, 2020) 
Dr. Vi nod Juneja (wcr May 15. 2021) 

Mr. Mchemosh Tata (wefJul 3. 2020) 
Mr. Shailendrn Dhupiya (wcr Jul 3. 2020 upto Feb 28.2022) 
Mr. Amit Pandey (wof Aug 24. 2019 up10 Aug 4. 2021) 
Mr. Jignesh Gaglani (wef Aug 4, 2021) 

Related Party Name 

Afaxi11111111 1ra11sac1io11 during lhe year 
Edelweiss Rural & Co1pora1e Services Limited 
ECL Finance Limited 
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 
Edel Land Limited (f onncrly known a;, Ecap Equities Limited) 

1 ·otume of tnmsac1io11s t!urinK the _;1, ar 
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 
ECL Finance Limited 
Edelweiss I lousing Fina:,ee Limited 
Edel Land Limited (fonnerl)• known as Ecap Et1uitics Limited) 

Non Exccuttvc Director 
Non Executive Director 
Non Ex<..-cutive Din..-ctor 
Non Executive Director 

Non Executive ()i1cctor 

Independent Director 
Independent Director 
l11dcpcndcn1 Director (Add,tonal Director) 

Chief Executive Orficcr 
Chief Financial Officer 
Company Secretary 
Company Secretary 

for the year ended 

March 31, 2022 

960.00 
790.00 

2.500.00 

1,740.00 
879.16 

6.500.00 

For lilc year ended 
March 31. 20~ I 

l.'J00.00 
41)()0.00 

1.400 00 

I 000.0) 
20.8.l0.0·) 

2.400.00 
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46. Related Party Disclosures 

Nature of Transaction 

Loans repaid to 

Loans given to 

Loans repaid by 

Loan porfolio purchase under di reel assignment 

Loan portfolio sold under direct assignment 

Securities Purchase 

Bonds sold to 

Related Party Nam,· 

Maximum transaction d11ri11g the year 
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 
ECL Finance Limited 
Edelweiss I-lousing Finance Limited 
Edel Land Limited (Fonnerly known as Ecap Equities Limited) 

Volume of transactions during the J'ear 
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 

ECL Finance Limited 
Edelweiss llousing Finance Limited 
Edel Land Limited (l'onncrly known as Ecap Equities Limited) 

1'vfaxim11m transaction d11ring the year 
Edelweiss llousing Finance Limited 

ECL Finance Limited 
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 
Edel Land Limited (Fonnerly known as Ecap Equities Limited) 

Ede leap Securities Limited 

Vo/11me of transactions d11ring the year 
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 
ECL Finance Limited 
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 
Edel Land Limited (Fonnerly known as Ecap Equities Limited) 
Edelcap Securities Limited 

Maxim11m transaction during rite year 
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 
ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 
Edel Land Limited (Fonnerly known as Ecap Equities Limited) 
Edelca1i Securities Limited 

Vo/11me of transactions d11ri11g the year 
Edelweiss llousing Finance Limited 
ECL Finance Limited 
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 

Edel Land Limited (Fonnerly known as Ecap Equities Limited) 
Edelcap Securities Limited 

ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss I-lousing Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 
ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss llousing Finance Limited 

ECL Finance Limited 
Edel Land Limited (Fonnerly known as Ecap Equities Limited) 

Redemption of Non convertible debenture held by (Face Edelweiss I lousing Finance Limited 
Value) 

Redemption of Non convertible debenture held in (Face 

value) ECL Finance Limilcd 

Loan sale to ARC 

Investment in Security Receipt issued by 

C 

Edelweiss I-lousing Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited (EARC Trusts) 

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 
EARC Trust SC' 416 

for the year ended 

March 3 1. 2022 

960.00 
790.00 

2,500.00 

1,740.00 

879.16 
6.500.00 

250.00 
2.000.00 
2,640.00 

250.00 
7,640.00 

11,530.00 

130.00 
2.710.00 

1.750.00 

250.00 
9.560.00 

8.060.00 

282.82 

378.65 

I 1.04 

0.13 

178.86 

152.07 

For the y·ear ended 
March 31. D21 

1.000.00 

4.000.00 
1.400.00 

. . 000.00 
20.830.!JO 

1.400.'.lO 

1.500.'.lO 
250.'.)0 

2.200.'.)0 

2.4 10.'.lO 

2.035.00 
250.00 

4.397.70 
2.6IO.ij0 

13.110 

35.00 
2.400.00 
2.4 10.00 
u10.:o 

13.(10 
70.00 

2.400.C•O 
4.397.:0 
2.610.(·0 

l.784.t9 

1.769.t-7 

0.C8 
36.77 

I 02.01 
132.78 

250.0J 
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46. Related Party Disclosures 

Nature of Transaction 

Current Account Transactions: 

S hared premises cost received from (net) 

Interest income on loan to 

Interest Income on Non convertible Debentures 

Service charges received 

Reimbursement of ARC management fee from 

Shared premises cost paid (net) 

Cost reimbursement paid 10 (net) 

Cost reimbursement received from (net) 

Management Fees paid to 

Interest Expense on loan from 

Interest Expense on Non conveniblc debentures 

Interest Expenses on Sub-debt 

Brokerage paid 

Clearing charges 

Enterprise Service charge paid to 

Relaccd Party Name 

ECL Finance Limited 
Edelweiss I-lousing Finance Limited 
Edelweiss Asset Rcco nstmction Company Limited 
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 
Edelweiss Broking Limited 

Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 
ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 
Edel L.1nd Limited (Fonnerly known as Ecap Equities Limited) 

Edelcap Securities Limited 

ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss I-lousing Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 

Edelweiss Securities Limited 
Edel Land Limited (Fonnerly known as Ecap Equities Limited) 
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 

Edelweiss Broking Limited 

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 

Edel L.111d Limited (Fonnerly known as Ecap Equities Limited) 

Edelweiss Securities Limited 

ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited 

Edelweiss I-lousing Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 

Edelweiss Broking Limited 

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 
ECL Finance Limited 

Edel L.1nd Limited (Fonnerly known as Ecap Equities Limited) 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 

Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 
Edel Finance Company Limited 
ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 

Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 

Edelweiss Securities Limited 

Edelweiss Investment Limited 

Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 

For the year ended F~r the year cr<led 

March 3 1, 2022 March 31. 2021 

0.90 4660 
8.66 2397 

OJ7 
014 

018 
o.u; 00'1 
O.IC 

2.08 028 

108.3C 43 

19l.3~ 134.9Q 

57.92 

86.00 

5.36 22.70 

0.81 024 

1.49 0.~6 

29.17 8.)5 

0.)t 

2.4'.! 
1.56 
0.)1 

0.28 

0.38 9.n 
0.50 19.30 

0.41 0 07 

o.~s 
1.29 o.~8 

0.02 

0 . 12 

0.00 

0.00 

19.68 2 1.?9 

4.84 

19.32 32SI 
1.29 l.~7 

2.50 

1.64 1.64 
0.00 O.C I 
6.94 6.95 
1.56 3. 17 

10.!!5 

3.70 

30.46 27.32 

0.03 0.00 

0.01 0.00 

O.oJ 

0.63 
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46. Related Party Disclosures 

Nature of Transaction 

Advisory fees paid to 

Guarantee tee paid 

Service Fee paid to 

Risk & Reward Fees on Security Receipt sale paid 

CSR Expenses Paid to 

ESOP cost reimbursement 

Rating support fees paid to 

Director Sitting fees 

Remuneration paid to 

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 

Purchase of Capital work in progress (software) 

Purchase of Property. plant and equipment 

Related Party Name 

Edelweiss Housing: Finance Limited 

Edel L1nd Limited (Fonnerly known as Ecap Equities Limited) 
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 

Edelweiss Housing Finance Li1nited 

ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 

EdelGivc Foundation 

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 

Mr. Mitul Shah 

Mr. Vinod Juneja 
Mr. Sunil Phatarphckar 

Mr. Jignesh Gaglani 
Mr. Amit Pandey 

Mr. Mehemosh Tata 

Mr. Shailendra Dhupiya 

ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Broking Limited 
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 
Edelweiss Securities Limited 

Edelweiss Investments Limited 

Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 

ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 
ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Broking Limited 

Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 

For the year ended For the year e:>ded 
March 31, 2022 March 31. 2:J21 

4.30 9.00 

0.00 0.00 
0.00 

0.02 
1.3 1 

2.32 
0.86 C.81 

7.00 17.93 

2.96 3.12 

0.)4 
0.06 0.08 

0.32 
0.26 

0.22 0.2~ 

1.26 

0.13 0.85 
20.23 8 62 
4.81 2 84 

0.00 0 03 
0.00 0 : 6 

0.04 
0.30 0.01 

0.02 

0.02 
0,03 

0.00 

24.28 

0.02 O.C I 
0.02 on 

0.~0 
0.J I 
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46. Related Party Disclosures 

Nature of Transaction 

Balances with related parties: 

Interest acc11.1cd on loans taken from 

Loans given to 

Interest accrued on loan given to 

Non convertible debentures (Face Value) held by 

Subordinated debenture (Face Value) held by 

Perpetual debenture (Face Value) held by 

Non convc11ible debentures (Face Value) held in 

Interest accrned on Perpetual dcbe111ures held by 

Interest accrued on Subordinated debentures held by 

Interest accrned on Non convertible debentures held by 

Interest accrncd on Non convertible debentures held in 

Trade Payables 

ESOP cost payable to 

Trade Receivables 

Other Receivable 

Other Payable 

Related Party Name 

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 

ECL Finance Limited 

ECL Finance Limited 
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 

Edelweiss llqusing Finance Limiled 
ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 

Edel Land Limited (Fonnerly known as Ecap Equities Limited) 
Edelcap Securities Limited 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 
ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Tokio Lili. Insurance Company Limited 

Edel Finance Company Limited 

ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limiled 

Edel Finance Company Limited 

Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 
ECL Finance Limited 
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 
Edel Finance Company Limited 

ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss I lousing Finance Limited 

Edelweiss I-lousing Finance Limited 
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 

ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Securities Limited 

Edelweiss Broking Limited 

Edel Land Limited (Formerly known as Ecap Equities Limited) 
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 

ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Br0king Limited 
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 

Edelweiss I lousing Finance Limited 
Edelweiss Financial Scrv"ices Limited 
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 
ECL Finance Limited 

For the yc,1r ended 
March JI, 2022 

80.00 

3,470.00 

1.87 

32.69 

20.88 

17.92 

0.13 

17.44 

140.00 

71.00 

36.37 

7.47 

155.34 

0.04 

0.07 

U.00 

1.86 

1.24 

0.52 

3.70 

0.90 

0.53 

5.50 

0.02 

0.13 

0.02 

0.73 

0.66 

6.34 

6.22 

7.29 

0.01 

0.19 

0.08 

0.31 

For the year C7dcc 

March 3 I. 2011 

8.14 

l.7J 

2.00C.00 

}.2'9 

?-.37 

4.48 

17.9~ 

0.5} 

17."-4 

140.0·} 

7 1.Cl 

47.4} 

7c) 

I 82 

124 g., 

004 

0 0' 
000 

1.6 

o.s: 

0.6~ 

1.0: 

4.40 

0 7: 
0JL 

0.4f 

0.7: 

3.J: 

8.3, 
0.)C 

0.7C 

1.87 

8.'./C 
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46. Related Party Disclosures 

Nature of Transaction 

Margin receivable 

Investment in Security Receipts issued by 

Corporate Guarantee taken from 

Risk & Rewards sharing arrangement 

Notes: 

Related Party Name 

Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 

Edelweiss Securities Limited 

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 

EARC Trust SC 373 

EARC Trust SC 385 

EARC Trust SC 416 

Edel Land Limited (Fonnerly known as Ecap Equities Limited) 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 

Edelweiss f inancial Services Limited 

As at As,_ 
March 31, 2022 March 31. 202 . 

0.47 0.47 

20.50 70.10 

97.34 162.71 

180.88 2'-7.75 

150.44 

31.57 ;4.22 
32.49 

1,102.83 6'-8.97 

As part of fund based activities. intergroup company loans and advances are voluminous in nature and carried en at ann 's length and in the ordinary course of business. Pursuant 
to Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures. maximum amount of loans given and repaid along\vith the transact:on volume are disclosed above. Interest inc:llne a·1d expenses oo 
such loans and advances are disclosed on the basis of full amounts of such loans and advances given and repaid. 

2 Infonnation relating to remuneration paid to key managerial person mentioned above excludes provision made for gratLity. leave encashment. bonus and deferred bonus which 
are provided for group of employees on an overall basis. These are included on cash basis. l11e variable compensation included herein is on cash basis. 

3 The above list contain name of only those related parties with whom the Company has undertaken transactions for the year ended March 31. 2022 and March 31. 2021. 
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47. Lenses 

47.1. Set out below arc the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the 
movements 

Balance as at April I 

Addition 

Lease pre-closure 

Amortisation for the year 

Balance as at March 31 

47.2. Set out below arc the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements 

Balance as al April I 

Additions/ reversal (net) 

I nterest on lease liabilities 

Lease pre-closure 
Repayment of lease obligation 

llalancc as at March 31 

47.3. Amounts recognised in profit or loss: 

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 

Interest expense on lease liabilities 
Reversal of lease pre-closure 

Total 

47.4. Total cash outnow for leases: 

Cash out now o f long tenn leases 

Cash out now o f short tcnn leases 

Total 

47.5. Details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities, on an undiscountcd 

basis 
Less than I year 

1-3 years 

3-5 years 

More than 5 years 

Total 

48. Cost sharing 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 3 I. 2021 

102.15 115.Q0 

37.34 89.26 

(98.42) (74.44) 

{28.02} (28.57) 

13.05 102.15 

110.88 139.32 
26.12 89.26 

11.34 11.05 

(105.64) (92.92) 

{26.58} (35.83) 

16.12 110.88 

28.02 28.57 

11.34 11.05 
(7.22) ( 18.48) 
32.14 21. 14 

27.61 3 1.t9 
0.06 0.27 

27.67 31.96 

As at March 3 I, 2022 As al March 3 I , 202 I 

7.21 35.37 

6.42 52.94 

2.49 42.98 

2.36 

16.12 133.65 

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, being the ultimate holding Company along with fellow subsidiaries incurs expenditure like 
common senior management compensation cost, Group mcdidaim, insurance, rent, electricity charges etc. which is for the common 
benefit of itself and its certain subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries including the Company. This cost so expended is reimbursed by the 
Company on the basis of number of employees, time spent by employees of other Companies, ac tual identilications etc. On the same 
lines, employees' costs expended (if any) by the Company for the benclit of fellow subsidiaries is recovered by the Compar.y. 
Accordingly, and as identilied by the management, the expenditure heads in note 37 and 38 include reimbursements (received)/ paid 
and are ne t of reimbursements paid/(rceeived). Based on the management's best estimate Rs. (8.02) million is received during the 
year (Previous year Rs. (38.39) million). 
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(Cn:n·n ~y :!11dia11 nipees in mill ions) 

49. R isk Manag,·mcnt 

{a) lnt,·o,!uction :ind risk profile 

·rhc Company's ovc,;.il objective is to manage its busiue&s. and t!le associated risks. in a manner that balances serving. the i•itcrc51s of ts 

cu~tom-cr,; and investors and protects the safety and sound:,css ,Jfthe '.:'ompany. 

·1 he Con'.prn:· follows folt..>wing for effective risk managemen1: 

I ) Acceptance ,,fresponsiliility, including identofication anti escalation of risk iss•1cs, by all individuals within the Company; 
2) Ownership of, isk identification, assessment, data and management within each of the lines ofbusine~s and Corporate; and 

3) Firmwidc strnctures for tisk governance 

The Company eusure improvement through effo11s to enhance controls, ongoing employee training and development and o.i1er mcasur.:s. 

(b) Risk Managcm~a! Stnicturc 

The C"10pany ha:, a risk mmiagemc,11 policy framework fo1 ro~k 1dentitication. assessment and control to effectively mam,gc riol--s ass,)ciated 

with the various business acllvities. The risk frn1ction is monitorcd primarily by the business risk group. The Com;,any ha, a lso est,iblished a 

Risk Commiltcc thar is respons ible for m1naging the 1isk arising llUt of various business activities. 

C 0mpa:1y's risk rnanagcm:nt policy ensures that tile margin requirements arc able to withstand marke t volalllity r.nd scenarios of shaiµly 

dcclini,,g price,. The Comp~ny centralises the risk monitoring systems to monitor it's c!ieni's credit exposure which is in addition I<• the 
monitmi,1g untlc,1akc11 by ,he re,pective businesses. 

I he Cn,:-pan/s bo:1rd 1,J directors has overall responsibility for the cstablishm,·Ht a:id oversight of !he Company•~ ns!< nmnagcmL ,1 
framework. Tl1c hoara has established the Risk Managem~nl t~o nmittce, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Lompan•, · •: 

risk management. policies. The Commil1cc !iolds regula , :n"ctings and repo11 lo board on its activuics. 

fhe atidit con1111i11ec oversees how management monitors ccmpliance with the Company's risk management policies and proccd:11cs. anl 

reviews the adequ~cy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Judit commiuce i; a~sistcd in i s 

oversight role by internal audit. lntemal audit undertake, hoth r~gulJr and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and proccdun:s, th: 
results of which <1re repo11ed to the audit commillce. 

(c) Risk miligation nr:d risk culture 

The 1'umpany's business processes ensure complete indepcndrncc of function£ and a segregation or responsibilities. Credit appraisal & credi, 
control r,roccsses, centralised operations unit, independent a11dit unit for checking compliance with the pr~scribcd policies and approvirig 
lnans .1t lransac1ion level as well as our risk management proces~es and policies allow layers of multiple checks and venficatilln:, Ccmp?ny~ 

key busir.ess processes arc regularly monitored by the busin,~ss and/or operation heads. Company's loan approval and :i,.:mi;,::;11-n1100 

procedures, collection and enforeemclll procedures arc de,igned to minimise delinquencies and maxi1111se recoveries. 

At all levels of operations, specifically tailored risk reports a.-e prepared and distributed in order to ensure that all businc.,, div.~1<.111s has<. 
access to extensive. necessary and upto date infonnation. · 

It is the Company's policy that a monthly briefing is given 11) the Board or Directors and all other relevant stakeholder ()11 the utii!Sation , r 
market limits, proprietary investments and liquidil>, plm any other risk developments. 

It is the Company's pGlicy to ensure that risk awareness is embedded in its organisational risk culture. Employees arc expected to take 

ownership and be accountable for the risks the Company is c:,poscd to. that they decide to take on. The Company's continuous trainmg an:! 
development e111phasises that employees are made aware •>f the Compan} ' s risk appetite and they are supponcd 111 their ro!-:s and 

responsibilities 10 monitor and keep thci1 exposure to risk within it's ,isl,, appetite limits. Compliance breaches and internal audit I indings ar ~ 

important elements of employees' annual ratings and rcmunera11011 reviews 

(d) Types ()f Risks 

The Company's risks arc generally ca:cgorized in the following risk types. 

-·•-------,-----,------,-,--,-----T"""----,-----------.--------------=--------, 
Risk Exposuri: Ari:.ing from Measurement Management of risk 

Credit Risk 

Cash equivalents, trade receivables. 

financial assets measured at amo1tised 

cost. 

'\ging Analysis, Credit Ratings 
Credit limits and reg,.la.­

monitoring. 

f--------+-----------------·----------------+--------------------! 
Liquidity Risk Bo1rnwings and other liabiliucs 

fnwstn,cnts in Govcrnent Secuiitcis 

Mdrket Risk Trcdsury Bilis . .::.qui:y Shmls Futures 
& Options 

Rolling cash 11<,w 

forecasts 

Cash :low fon~castini; 
Smsi11v1ty am:lys1s 

Availability of surplus c'1sh, committed 

credit lines and bon·o~1ini; f.icilitiPs 

I Rcguldr monit,,ring to kc~p :he .exposure at 

I an ~cceptable level. with option of tak;ng 

I Interest Rate Swdps' futnre· ii c!t;.med I 
necessary. __ __J 
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49.1. Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company iF a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's loans and trade receivables.The Company has a policy of dealing 
with creditworthy counterparties and obtains suflicient'collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk or finan::ial loss 
from defaults. In case the loans are to be restructured, similar credit assessment process is followed by the Company. · 

The Company"s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management 
also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in 
which customers operate. 

The Company manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual 
counterparties/Groups (Single Borrowing Limit/Group Borrowing Limit) and for industry concer:trations, and by monitoring exposures 
in relation to such limits. 

Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on its credit worthiness and historical dealings with the Company and market 
intelligence. Outstanding customer receivables arc regularly monitored.The credit quality review process aims to allow the Company to 
assess the potential loss as a result of the risks to which it is exposed and take corrective actions. 

(a) Impairment Assesment: 

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impainnent loss. The expected credit loss allowance is computed 
based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking infonnation. 

The expected credit loss is a product of exposure at default, probability of default and loss given default. The Company has devised an 
internal model to evaluate the probability of default and loss given default based on the parameters set out in Ind AS. Accordir.gly, the 
loans are classified into various stages as follows: 

Internal rating grade 

Performing 
High grade 
Standard grade 

Credit Impaired 
Individually impaired 

*Excluding non performing asset (NPA) 

Internal grading description 

0 dpd and I to 30 dpd* 
31 to90dpd* 

NPA* 

**Represent loan assets classified as NPA as per the extant RBI guidelines 

(b) Expected Credit Loss 

Stages 

Stage I 

Stage II 

Stage Ill 

Credit loss is the difTerence between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the cash 
flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 
computation is not driven by any single methodology, however methodology and approach used must reflect the following: 

- An unbiased and probability weighted amount that evaluates a range of possible outcomes 

- Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost and effort at the reporting date about past events, current 
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions; 

- Time value of money 

While the time value of money element is currently being factored into ECL measurement while discounting cash flows by the 
Effective Interest Rate (EIR), the objective of developing a macroeconomic model using exogenous macroeconomic variables (MEVs) 
is to address the first two requirements. This has been achi.:ved by using the model output to adjust the PD risk component in order to 
make it forward looking and probability-weighted. 

. ' 
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(c) Significant increase in credit risk (SICR) 

Company considers a financial instrument defaulted, classi!ied as Stage I[[ ( credit-impaired) for ECL calculations, in all cases when the 
borrower becomes 90 days past due or classified as non performing asset (NPA) as per RBI guidelines. Classification of assets fonn 
Stage I to Stage II has been carried out based on SlCR criterion. Accounts which are more than 30 days past due have been identi!ied as 
accounts where significant increase in credit risk has been observed. These accounts have been classified as Stage II assets. When such 
events occur, the Company carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the customer as defaulted anj therefore 
assessed as Stage Ill for ECL calculations or whether Stage II is appropriate. 

(d) Probabilitv of Default 

Probability of default (PD) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. PD estimation process is done based on 
historical internal data available with the Company. While arriving at the PD, the Company also ensures that the factors that affects the 
macro economic trends are considered to a reasonable extent, wherever necessary. Company calculates the 12 month PD by ttking into 
account the past historical trends of the Loans/portfolio and its credit performance. In case of assets where there is a significant increase 
in credit risk/ credit impaired assets, lifetime PD has been applied. 

(c) Loss Given Default (LGD) 

The LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among other attributes, the 1:iitigating 
effect of collateral value at the time it is expected to be realised and the time value of money. The Loss G iven Default (LGD) has been 
computed with workout methodology. Along with actual recoveries, value of the underlying collateral has been factored in tc estimate 
future recoveries in LGD computation. Workout LGD computation involves the actual recoveries as well as future recoveries (as a part 
of the workout process) on a particular faci lity, as a percentage of balance outstanding at the time of Default/Restructuring. The 
assessment of workout LG D was then performed. Principal outstanding each loan was assessed, which went into the denominator of the 
LGD calculation. LGD computation has been done for each segment and sub-segment separately. 

(I) Exposure at Default (EAD) 

The amount which the borrower will owe to the portfolio at the time of default is defined as Exposure at Default (EAD). Whi le the 
drawn credit line reflects the explicit exposure for the Company, there might be variable exposure that may increase the EAD. These 

exposures are of the nature where the Company provides future commitments, in addition to the current crediL Therefore, the exposure 
will contain both on and off balance sheet values. The value of exposure is given by the following fonnula: 

EAD = Drawn Credit Line+ Credit Conversion Factor* Undrawn Credit Line 

Where, 

Drawn Credit Line= Current outstanding amount 

Credit Conversion Factor (CCF) = Expected future drawdown as a proportion ofundrawn amount 

Undrawn Credit Line= Difference between the total amount which the Company has committed and the drawn credit line While the 
drawn exposure and limits for the customer are available, the modelling ofCCF is required for computing the EAD 

(g) Forward looking adjustments 

"A measure of ECL is an unbiased probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes and 

using reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, 
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions." 

To fulfil the above requirement Company has incorporated forward looking infonnation into its measurement of ECL. The objective of 
developing a macroeconomic model using exogenous macroeconomic variables (MEVs) is to address the requirements of unbiased, 
probability weighted outcomes while taking into account current conditions as well as future economic conditions. This will be 
achieved by using the model output to adjust the PD risk component in order to make it forward looking and probability-weigh:ed. 

Exogenous macroeconomic parameters were used as independent (X) variables to predict the dependent (Y) variable. The Company 
fonnulates base case view of the future direction of relevant economic variable as well as a representative range of other possible 
forecast scenario. This involves developing two or more additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities of 
each outcome. 
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(h) Data sourcing 

The Company is expected to obtain reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort. Keeping in 
mind the above requirement macroeconomic infonnation was aggregated from various research database like Economic Intelligenc-~ 
Unit (EJU), Bloomberg, World Bank, RBI database etc. The EIU data has a database of around I 50 macroeconomic variables as well as 

their forecasted values. Beyond 2022 macro-economic vari3bles are forecasted by mean reverting the values to their long term average. 
External infonnation includes economic data and forecasts published by governmental bodies and monetary authorities in the country, 
supranational organisations such as the OECD and the IMF, and selected private sector and academic forecasters. 

(i) Probabilitv weighted scenario creations: 

To incorporate macroeconomic impact into probability-weighted, each scenario has an associated probability. In order to ensure 
consistency across macroeconomic models, these probabilities were calculated at an overall level for both Retail and Non-Retail 
portfolios, considering the impact of a scenario across different portfolios may differ based on endogenous factors, the probability of a 
scenario unfolding is purely exogenous, and hence should not vary. 

The Company has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio of financial instruments and 

using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationship between marco-cconomic variables and credit risk and credit losses. 

Predicted relationship between the key indicators and default and loss rates on various portfolios of financial assess have been 
developed based on analysing historical data over the past years. 

(j) ImpactofCOVID-19 

The uncertainty on account of COVID-19 outbreak continues to have adverse elfoct across the world economy includi11g India. 

However, ra:cnt results from the industry is showing signs of revival signaling a return in economic growth. The impact of the COVID-

19 pandemic. on Company's results, including gain/loss on fair value changes, investment, remains uncertain and dependent on actua. 

visibility of growth over coming quarters and steps taken by the governmcnl and other regulators to mitigate the economic impact ano 

foster speedier growth. Further, the Company has assessed the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on its liquidity and ability to repay 

its obligations as and when they are due. Management has considered various financial support from banks and other limdraising 

opportunities in determining the Company's liquidity position over the next 12 months. Based o:i the foregoing and necessary stress 

tests considering various scenarios, management believes that the Company will be able to pay its obligations as and when these 

become due in the foreseeable future. In assessing the rec:overability of loans, receivables, deferred tax assets and invesll'lents, the 

Company has considered internal and external sources ofinfonnation, including credit reports, economic forecasts and industry report~ 

up to the date of approval of these financial results. Since the situation continue to evolve, its effect on the operations of the Company 

may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial results. The Company will continue to closely monitor 

material changes in markets and future economic condition~. 
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49.1. Credit Risk 

49.1.1. Analysis of risk concentration 

The following table shows the risk concentration by industry for the components of the balance sheet. 
Additional disclosures for credit quality and the maximum exposure for credit risk per categories based 
on the Company's internal credit assessment system and year-end stage classification are further 

disclosed in Note 12. 

Industry analysis 

As at March 31, 2022 
Financial 

Retail Construction Wholesale Total 
services 

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalent 305.87 305.87 
and other bank balances 

Securities held for trading 50.29 50.29 
Trade receivables 19.64 19.64 
Loans 4,078.68 4,781.22 244.14 1,132.38 10,236.43 
Investments 300.76 1,140.77 99.45 1,540.98 
Other financial assets 38.96 38.96 

4,794.20 5,921.99 244.14 1,231.83 12,192.17 
Loan Commitments 55.59 55.59 
Total 4,794.20 5,977.58 244.14 1,231.83 12,247.76 

As at March 31, 2021 
Financial 

Retail Construction Wholesale 
services 

Total 

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalent 981.59 981.59 
and other bank balances 
Securities held for trading 59.48 59.48 
Trade receivables 19.63 19.63 
Loans 2,445.91 6,152.83 131.21 3,193.96 11 ,923.9 1 
Investments 708.11 249.80 957.91 
Other non financial assets 595.47 70.10 665.57 

4,102.08 6,931.04 131.21 3,443.76 14,608.09 
Loan Commitments 59.38 59.38 
Total 4 102.08 6 990.42 131.21 3.443.76 14,667.47 
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49. l. C, edit Risk 

4'.>. l .2. Collateral held imcl other credit enhancements 

(a) The tables on the following pages show the maximum cx(Josure to credit l'is~ by cia,s of linancial asset along witl1 
detail, of !)rincipal type of collatcml: 

(b) 

Financial assets 
Loans (at anwrtiscd cost) 
(i) Retail loans 
(ii) Wholesale loans 

Total (A} 

Loan commitments 
Total (B) 

. Total (A + B} 

Maximum exposure to credit risk (carryin~ 
amount before ECL) 

As at As at 
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 

4,305.45 
1,722.59 

6,028.04 

53.52 
53.52 

6,081.56 

5,307.40 
2,920.71\ 

S,228.16 

45.23 

45.23 

8,273.39 

Principal type of collateral 

Propctty; book receivables 
Property; book receivables 

Prope1•y: book receivables 

FinaHdal assets that are Stage Ill and rclatcri collaternl held in order to mitigate potential losses arc given bclo,, 

~s a: Ma,·cb 31. 2022 
Maximum exposure to Associated ECL Carrying amount Fair value of 
credit risk (can ying collateral 
amount before ECL} 

Financial assets 

Lo:ins (at amortised cost) 
(i) Retv ii loan~ 225.20 37.56 187.64 415.57 
(iiJ 'Vhoicsalc loans 

Total (A} 225.20 37.56 187.64 415.57 

loan commitments 

Tl'tal (13) 

Total (A+ B) 225.20 37.56 187.64 415.57 

As a: Mar,;h 3 I 202: 

Financial as~c!s 

Loans lat amortise'.! cost) 
(i) Retail loans 503.46 94.98 408.48 754.22 
(ii) \Vholcsalc loans 1,057.'ll 184.82 872.89 1,074.,3 

Tota! (A) 1,561.17 279.80 1,281.37 1.828.35 

Loan commitments 

Total (B) 

fotal (A+ R) 1,561.17 279.80 1,281.37 1,828.35 
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49.1. Credit Risk 

49.1.3. Overview of modified and forborne loans 

The table below includes assets that were modified and, therefore, treated as forborne during the year, with the 
related modification gain/ (loss) suffered by the Company. 

Particulars 

Amortised costs of financial assets modified during the year 
Net modification gain/ (loss) 

49.1.4. Transfer of financial assets 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

561.23 
23.49 

Transferred financial assets that are not derccognised in their entirety 

For the year ended 
March 3 I, 202 1 

1,2 19.23 

38.90 

The following tables provide a summary of financial assets that have been transferre<i in such a way that part 
or all of the transferred fi nancial assets do not qualify for derecognition, together with the associated liabilities. 

As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Securitisations 

Carrying amount of transferred assets 297.37 86.73 
(held as Collateral) 

Carrying amount of associated liabilities 315.55 

Fair value of assets 277.89 83.64 

Fair value of associated liabilities 315.55 

Net position at FV (37.66) 83.64 
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49.2. Liquid ity ltisk 

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk thal the Company will cncoun1c1 difficulty in meeting oblig.11ions a~:lled w11.h financial liabili1ies that arc set1lcd ~y de)i\·e1-,g c:tsn or 
another financial asset. Liquidi1y risk arises because of the possibihty that the ('ompany mi!!hl be un.1blc to meet i1s payment oblig;u;ons ,, hen the}' fall due JS a rc,;,uh of 
mismaiches in the timing of the cash !lows undc, both nonnal and stress circumstances. 

The company has financin~ arr:mgcment from banks/ financial institutions m fonn o f committed credit lines. 

49.2.1. Analysis of 11011-clcriv:uivc financi:al assets and li;:,bilitics by remaining rontr.artual 1m1turitit's 

As at March J I. 2022 On ch·mand I to 14 dafs 
l!i days to 1 1 monlh to 2 2 months to 3 monlhs lo 6 mouths to 1 :-earlo3 3}Hr'SI05 

o,er ~ )tars Tolal 
mon1h months .J monlhs 6 months lyur ~•f'ars ,caN 

A. Finiancbl Assets 
lash and cash equivalent and other 
bank balances 166.30 112 . ..6 5.15 22.06 30S.67 
Securities held for tradin~ 1.1.77 4.~6 .11.96 50.29 
Trade rcccivahlcs 19.64 19.6-l 
Loans 997 59 128.20 670.'i~ 358.9.1 427.87 4.t.J.,.3 , Z.262.87 699.94 .l..106 11 IJ,785.41 
Investments 1.240."2 .100.76 1,5-10.98 

Other financial assets 24.05 0.86 0.09 1.196 .18.96 

·1 otal undiscounted llmrnrhll 

assets 166.JO 997.59 152.25 816.32 359.81 437.67 4,la!7.J5 2,276.8] t .9-10.16 J.606.87 1~.741.tS 

B. F inancial Liabilities 
·1 rndc payables ,4.)7 ~4.,7 
Dcbl securities 4.81 4.1,5 4.81 14.33 2.0-7.7(, 11,.1.01 ,62.17 1,049.26 3,501.00 
Borr<'wi11gs (olhcr tha11 debt 
securi1ics) 149.79 )9.60 412.82 454.77 8C•5.45 1,852.43 

Subordir.at~d financial 
liabilities 22.20 1"8.94 H~.28 8"8.07 1.775.52 3,167.M 
Other financial liabilhc~ 21.06 366.70 43.oJ 28.81 66.93 I 0.24 33.89 2.49 67.1 75 

Tolal undiscouutcd fin~mcial 
liabilities 25.87 516.49 132.25 446.44 558.23 3,IH.39 539. 18 1,042 94 2.814.78 9,248.56 

Nft fimmch1I assNs I 
(liab ilitil•S) 166.30 971.72 (364.24) 684.07 (86.63) (120.56) 1,824.96 1.737.65 897.22 782.09 ~.49?.59 

Note• '111c company h.t~ fi,1ancini; arrangcmcn1 from banks/ financial mstilutlons in form etf commitlcd credit lines. Undrawn conmittcd crcd1l lines a~ at March '3 I. 2012 is Nil. 

49.2.2. The table bt"low 'ihowi. the e:-.1>~c1et.l maturily o r the C"omJ):rny1s lonn commitments 

U11drawn loan ..:ommitmcms 55.59 55.59 

Tolal 55.59 55.59 

As at M.1rch .\ I. 2021 On demand I to 14 days 
I 'i days 10 I I mon!h to 2 2 months 10 , 3 months 10 6 6 montl~ 10 I I }eat 10 ., 3 >·ears to 5 

Over "i yc.irs ro:al 
monlh mo11ths months months y<Y )cars )c:3,S 

A. FinatK:i.il Assc{S 

Cash and cash equivalent and 01hcr 
bank balances ll4.v8 253.Rl 17.1.66 9~1 ~<; 

Securitic. held for trading 59.48 19.4S 
Trade rccet\ able-: 19.62 19.62 
Loans JJl.54 52.11 1..113.16 478.56 l.]11..lS .1.2l0.6I 4.146.49 1.269.~6 1.78"-46 16.111.84 
lm•c.c;tmc111s 957.fl( "H.QI 
01hc."!' fi11ancial as.sels 4.10.().1 26.~.\ 0.1.1 56.54 •~2.02 (,6:,_5,6 

To1al und1scountcd financial :t.'-SCIS 554.0S .HS.54 482.15 1.64)..1/, 711.70 I .J l I 18 3.21:J.61 4.401.0] 1.421.5~ 4.742.,7 U16.00 

e riu3ncial Liabih1ics 

Trade pa)'3blcs 111.44 I l IA• 
Debt s«11 ril1C$ 4.81 4 (15 4.81 1•6 IS 21'i \2 2 201.:-;s l():!.9"i 9:,'UJ ,.7ll"i 60 
BorrowinJ,!s (oth1..-r thom debt 
sccuritu:s) 164.06 "-0.UJ 567 82 812.80 1.77125 I 481.4.1 ot.84 6,C)-l 

Subordinalcd financial hab1li11cs 22.20 14).94 '42.28 758.IJ7 2 . .!.l/.80 ;.509.2Q 
Other financial liabilitic:. 361.10 2.J~ 2 .. 18 7,14 IHO .17.16 25 16 469.9'."' 

Total u1\lhscoun1cd tinancaal 
liab1li1it:S 4.81 525 )6 169.10 575.01 988.29 2.141.91 4.088.45 946.IS .\.1Q7. I.' l~.64\ .24 

Net fu,anci.:il ~ts I (hab1ht~} 550.08 .130.7.1 (4).21) 1.474.16 136.69 J2~.19 Ul6 ;o 1 14.:-;S H540 '--~~.N /,.172.76 

Note•• The c0mpany has financing, arrangcn,cnt from banls/ financial institutions in form of commilled credit lines. Undrawn coru:111ted credil lines as nt M:urh 11. 2021 1s Rs. 2 ·.,9. 70 
million. 

·111c table hdow !\hows 1hc expeMcd nwturny of 1he Cornpanr 's loan commnmt nts 

Und!awn loan l'Onuni1mcn1s 59.38 59.38 

Total 59.'8 
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49.2. Liquidity Risk 

49.2.3. Financial assets available to support future funding 

Following table sets out availability of company's financial assets to support funding 

Encumbered Unencumbered 
As at March 31, 2022 Pledge as Contractually/ legally Available as Others 

collateral restricted assets collateral 

Cash and cash equivalenl 37.01 268.86 
including bank balance 

Securi!ies held for trading 50.29 
Trade receivables 19.64 
Loans 4,783.51 149.84 5,303.08 
lnveslments 1,240.22 300.76 
Property, Plant and Equipment 0.37 
Other financial assets 0.97 37.99 
Total assets 4,820.89 1,391.03 5,980.62 

Encumbered Unencumbered 
As at March 31, 2021 Pledge as Contractually/ legally Available as Others 

collateral restricted assets collateral 

Cash and cash equivalent 
including bank balance 23.39 958.20 
Securities held for trading 59.48 
Trade receivables 19.63 
Loans 7,900.49 1,018.59 3,004.83 
Investments 714.03 243.88 
Property, Plant and Equipment 0.37 
Other financial assets 152.90 51267 
Total assets 7,900.86 1,908.92 4,798.69 

Notes:-

Total carrying 
amount 

305.87 

50.29 
19.64 

10,236.43 
1,540.:)8 

0.37 
38.:), 

12,192.54 

Total carryirg 
amount 

981.59 

59.48 
19.63 

11,923.91 
957.91 

0.3':' 
665.57 

14,608.46 

I Represents assets which are not pledged and Group believes it is restricted from using to secure funding for legal or other 

2 Represents assets which are no! restricled for use as collateral, but that !he group would not co:1sider readily available to 
secure fund ing in !he nonnal course of business 
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49.3. Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk associated with the effect o f changes in market factors such as interest rates, equity prices, credit spreads or 

implied volatilities, on the value of assets and liabilities held resulting in loss of future earnings. The objective of the Company's market 
risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters. The Company separates its exposure to 

market risks between trading and non-trading portfolios. 

Exposure to market risk- Non trnding portfolios 

Interest rate risk - The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios arc exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash 

nows or fair values of financial instruments because of a change in market interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed principally through 

monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-approved limits for repricing bands. 

ALCO is the monitoring body for compliance with these limits. ALCO reviews the interest rate gap statement and the mix of floating 
and fixed rate assets and liabilities. Balance Sheet Management Unit is in-charge for day to day management of interest rate risk. 

49.3.J Total market risk exposure 

The fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates. The 

Company classifies its exposures to market risk into non-trading portfolios. 

As at March 31 , 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

Particulars 
Primary risk 

Carrying Traded risk Non-traded Carrying Traded risk Non-traded sensitivity 
amount risk amount risk 

Financial Assets 
Cash and cash equivalent and other 305.87 305.87 98 1.59 98 1.59 Interest rate 
bank balances 
Securities held for trading 50.29 50.29 59.48 59.48 Interest rate 

Loans 10,236.43 I0,236.43 11,923.91 11 ,923.91 Interest rate 
Investments 1,540.98 1,540.98 957.91 957.91 Interest rate 
Trade receivables 19.64 19.64 19.63 19.63 

Other financial assets 38.96 38.96 665.57 665.57 

Total 12,192.17 50.29 12,141.88 14,608.09 59.48 14,548.61 

Financial Liability 

Debt securities 2,804.43 2,804.43 2,923.8 1 2,923.8 I Interest rate 
Borrowings {other than Debt 1,774.29 1,774.29 4,502.60 4,502.60 Interest rate 
Securities) 
Subordinated Liabilities 2,153.18 2,153.18 2,119.04 2,119.04 Interest rate 
Trade payables 54.37 54.37 111.44 111.44 
Other liabilities 673.75 673.75 469.85 469.85 

Total 7,460.02 7 460.02 10,126.74 10,1 26.74 

,.,..t,,.P Ii: 

~ 
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-19.3. Mark1·t Risi-: 

4').3.2 Interest rate ?"isk 

Interest ratt: r isl, arises from :he pos,ibility tlrnt changes in intere~t rnlc~ will affect future cash flows of 
finar.cial i·1stru,ncn1s. Th,; ;cnsitivity 0f the statemc~t of profit ar,d los~ ii: the effect of the assumoo 
changes i:1 intcrcsl ral<-'S on !he profit or loss for a year, based on the floating rate non-trading financiai 
assets and financial liabiliti~ held as at year end. 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity lo a re,asonably possible change in interest rates (all 
oth,·r variab!cs being constant) of the Company's statement of profit and loss and equity 

For the year ended 

INR Loans 

March 31, 2022 
March 3 I, 202 _I 

INR Borrowings 

March 3·1, 20Z2 
M ~rch 3 I , 2021 

Increase/ 
(Decrease) in 
basis points 

25/(25) 
25/(25) 

25/(25) 
25/(25) 

Increase in 
profit after 

tax 

6.72 
9.(,0 

(3.34) 
([;A!) 

Decrease in 
prnfit after 

tax 

(6.7?.) 
(9.00) 

3.34 
8.41 

Increase in 
Equity 

6,72 
9.00 

(3.34) 
(8.41 ) 

(Decrease) in 
Equity 

(6.72) 
(9.00) 

3.34 
8.41 
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SO.I. Fair Value measurement: 

A. Valuation principles 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or mos: 
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether that price ,s directly 

observable or estimated using a valuation technique. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based or 
a hierarchy of valuation techniques: 

Level I - valuation technique using quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in acti-,c markets that 
company can access at the measurement date. 

Level 2 - valuation technique using observable inputs:Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directl> 
or indirectly observable market data avai lable over the entire period of the instrument's life. 

Level 3 - valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: Those that include one or mere unobservable input that is significant IO the 
measurement as whole. 

Refer note 3.1 I for more details on fair value hierarchy 

B. Valuation governance framework 

The Company's fair value methodology and the governance over its models includes a number of controls and other procedures to ensure appropriate 
safeguards arc in place to ensure its quality and adequacy. All new product initiatives (including their valuation methodologies) are subject to 
approvals by various functions of the Company including the risk and finance functions. 

Where fair values are determined by reference to externally quoted prices or observable pricing inputs to models, independent price detenninati~n or 
validation is used. For inactive markets, Company sources alternative market information, with greater weight given to information that is considered 
to be more relevant and reliable. 

The responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with the business and product line divisions. However finance department is also responsib e for 
establishing procedures governing valuation and ensuring fair values are in compliance with accounting standards. 

C. The following !able shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of rhe fair value hierarchy 

As at March 31, 2022 

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis 

Financial Assets held for trading 
Other debt securities 

Total financial instruments measured at fair value - A 

Other financial assets 
Security Receipts (SR) 

Total financial instruments measured at fair value - B 

Other financial assets 
Units of AIF 

Total financial instruments measured at fair value - C 

Total (A+B+C) 

As at March 3 I, 202 I 

Assets measured a t fair value on a recurring basis 

Financial Assets held for trading 

Other debt securities 

Total financial instruments measured at fair value - A 

Other financial assets 
Security receipts 

Total financial instruments measured at fair value - B 

Other financial assets 

Units of AIF 

Total financial instruments measured at fair value - C 

Total (A+B+C) 

Level I Level2 Level 3 

50.29 

50.29 

1,240.22 

1,240.22 

300.76 

300.76 

50.29 1,540.98 

Level I Level 2 Level 3 

59.48 

59.48 

708.11 

708.11 

249.80 

249.80 

59.48 957.91 

Total 

50.29 

50.29 

1,240.22 

1,240.22 

300.76 

301.76 

1,59'. .27 

Total 

50.48 

59.48 

708.11 

708.11 

24, .80 

24, .80 

1,0 17.39 
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D. Valuation Techniques: 

Debt Securities 

Whilst most of these instruments are standard fixed rate securities, however nifiy linked debentures have embedded derivative charactcnstics. Fai· 
value of these instruments is derived based on the indicative quotes of price and yields prevailing in the market as at the reporting date. Company ha, 
used quoted price of national stock exchange wherever bonds arc traded actively. In cases where debt securities are not activity traded Company ha. 
used CRISIL Corporate Bond Valuer model for measuring fair value. 

Security Receipts 

The market for these security receipts is not active. Therefore, the Company uses valuation techniques to measure their foir values. Since the securit:­
receipts arc less liquid instruments therefore they are valued by discounted cash now models. Expected cash now levels are csti:nated by using 
quantitative and qualitative measures regarding the characteristics of the underlying assets including prepayment rates, default :ates and othe­
economic drivers. Securities receipts with significant unobservable valuation inputs are classified as Level 3 

E. There have been no transfers between levels during the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021. 

F. The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening balances and the closing balances for fair value measurements in 

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. 

Financial year ended March 2022 

Investments - at April I, 2021 

Purchase 
Sale/Redemption proceeds 

Profit for the year recognised in profit or loss 

Investments- at March 31, 2022 

Unrealised gain/(Loss) related to balances held at the end of the year 

Financial year ended March 202 I 

Investments - at April I, 2020 

Purchase 
Sale/Redemption proceeds 
Profit for the year recognised in profit or loss 

Investments- at March 31, 2021 

Unrealised gain/(Loss) related to balances held at the end of the year 

Security Rcceiets 

708.11 

694.08 
( 161.97) 

1,240.22 

Security receipts 

471.23 

323.00 
(80.20) 

(5.92) 

708.11 

(5.92) 

Units of AIF 

249.80 

52.82 

-1.86 

300.76 

Units of AIF 

249.80 

249.80 

Total 

957.91 

746.90 
( 163.83) 

1,540.98 

Total 

471.23 

572.80 
(80.20) 

(5.92) 

957.91 

(5.92) 
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SO. I. Fair Value measurement: 

G. Im pact on fair value of level 3 financ ia l instrument of changes to key unobservable inputs 

The below table summarises the valuation techniques together with the significant unobservable inputs used to calculate the fair value of the Company's Level 3 Instruments i.e. Securities receipts. The range of values 

indicates the highest and lowest level input used in the \'aluation technique and, as such, only reflects the characteristics of the instruments as opposed to the level of uncertainty to their valuation. Relationships between 
unobservable inputs have not been incorporated in this summary. 

Type o f Financ ia l 

Instruments 

Security Receipts (SR) 

U11its of AIF 

Type of Financial 

lnstrnments 

Security Receipts 

Units of AIF 

Fa ir value of 

asset as on 3 I Valuation techniques 
March 2022 

Discounted Cash flow. The present value 

1,240.22 of expected future economic benefits to 
be derived from the ownership of the 
underlying investments of the Trust. 

300.76 Net Asset approach 

Fair value of 
asset as on 31 Valuation techniques 
March 2021 

Discounted Cash flow. The present value 

708.11 of expected future economic benefits to 

be denved from the ownership of the 
underlying investments of the Trust. 

249.80 Net Asset approach 

~

y!~t \-. 

L,,,.---;i,. 
;: 
<.? 

~ 
~'>i 

•J Ace~'>'. 

Significant unobservable 
Range o f estimates 
for unobservable 

input 
input 

Expected future cash flows 7,353.23 

Risk-adjusted discount rate 12.00% 

Fair value of underlying 
300.76 

investments 

Significant unobservable 
Range of estimates 
for unobservable 

input 
input 

Expected future cash flows 949.72 

Risk-adjusted discount rate 1200% 

Fair value of underlying 
249.80 

investments 

Increase in the Change in fair Decrease in the Change in fa ir 
unobscn ·able input value unobsen·abie input value 

5% increase in 5% Decrease in 
Expected future Cash 31.5 1 Expected future (31.51) 

flow Cash flow 
0.5% Decrease in 0.5% increase in Risk-

(0.55) Risk-adjusted 0.56 
adjusted discount rate 

discount rate 

5% Increase in Fair 5% Increase in Fair 
value of Underlying 15.04 value of Underlying (15.04) 

Investment Investment 

lncrease in the Change in fair Decrease in the Change in fair 
unobservable input value unobservable input value 

5% increase in 5°/4, Decrease in 
Expected future Cash 37.87 Expected future (37.87) 

flow Cash flow 

0.5% Decrease in 0.5%, ini.:rease in Risk-
(3.17) Risk-adjusted 3.20 adjusted discount rate 

discount rate 

5% Increase in Fair 5% Increase in Fair 
value of Underlying 12.49 value of Underlying ( 12.49) 

Investment Investment 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 3 I, 2022 (Co11ti11ued) 

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

50.2. Financial instruments not measured at fair value 

The following table sets out the fair values of financial instruments not meascrcd at fair value and analysing them by the level in the fair value hiecarc-iy 
into which each fair value measurement is categorised. 

As on March 3 I, 2022 

Financial assets 
Loans 
Total 

Financial liabilities 
Debt securities 
Subordinated liabilities 
Other financial liabilities 
Total 

As on March 31. 2021 

Financial assets: 
Loans 
Total 

Financial liabilities 
Debt securities 
Subordinated liabilities 
Other financial liabilities 
Total 

Total Carrying 
Total fair value 

Amount 

10,236.43 9,603.89 

10 236.43 9 603.89 

2,804.43 3,131.63 
2,153.18 2,182.55 

673.75 673.75 

5 631.36 5 9117.93 

11,923.91 11,512.39 

11 923.91 11 512.39 

2,923.81 3,226.45 
2.119.04 2. 153.64 

512.51 512.51 

5 555.36 5 892.60 

Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value 

Level I Level 2 Level 3 

9,'.i03.89 

9 lj03.89 

3,131.63 
2,182.55 

673.75 

5 987.93 

11.:- 12.39 

11.:-12.39 

3,226.45 
2,153.64 

512.51 

5 892.60 

Below arc the methodologies and assumptions used lo dctennine fair values for the above financ ial instruments which arc n:>t recorded .-id 
measured al fair value in the Company's financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The below 
methodologies and assumptions relate only to the instrnments in the above tables a-id, as such, may dilTer from the tcdmiquc·s and 
assumptions explained in notes. 

Short term financial assets and liabilities 

For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short-tem1 maturity (less than twelve months). the carrying amounts ue a reasonable 
approximation or their fair value. Such instruments include: Trade receivables, trade payables and contract liability withcul a 5pcci'ic 
maturity. Such amounts have been classified as Level 2 on the basis that no adjustments have been made to the balances in the balance sheet. 
Cash and cash equivalent and Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents have been classified as Level I. 

Financial assets at amortised cost 

The fair values or financial assets measured at amortised cost are estimated using a disc:iunted cash now model based on c:irtractua cash 
flows using actual or estimated yields and discounting by yields incorporating the countcrpartics' credit risk. In case or floating interest me 
linked loans, since such loans arc subject lo repricing periodically (less than twelve months). with the interest rate reflecting current markc: 
price. Hence carrying value or loans is deemed to be equivalent or fair value. 

Issued debt 

The fair value or issued debt is estimated by a discounted cash now model incorporating the Company"s own credit risk. 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 

The fair values of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost arc estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual c~h 
flows using actual or estimated yields and discounting by yields. In case of floating interest rate linked borrowings, since such bonowini:s a~e 
subject to repricing periodically (less than twelve months). with the interest rate reflecting current market price. Hence carrying \alue of such 
borrowings is deemed to be equivalent o f fair value. 
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5 I. Trade receivables 

Provision matrix for Trade receivables 

Particulars 
Trade receivables days past 

1-90days 91-180 days 181-365 days due 

ECL rate 1.66% 16.61% 31.56% 

As at Estimated total gross canying 
March 3 I, 2022 amount at default 19.91 0.06 0.02 

ECL - Simplified approach (0.33) (0.01) (0.01) 
Net canying amount 19.58 0.05 0.02 

As at Estimated total gross canying 
March 31, 2021 amount at default 19.92 0.41 0.00 

ECL- Simplilied approach (0.64) (0.06) 
Net canying amount 19.28 0.35 

more than 
Total 

365 days 

100.00% 

0.14 20.13 
(0.14) (0.49) 
0.00 19.64 

0.14 20.47 
(0.14) (0.84) 

19.63 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements (Continued) 

(Currency :Indian rupees in millions) 

52. Details of the loan taken from Banks and other parties 

Nature of Security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings 
All Secured long tenn borrowings arc secured by way ofhypothecation of receivables i.e.loans & advances. 

(a) Details of term loan taken from Banks (excluding of Interest accrued on Term loans and EIR impact) 

As at March 31 2022 

Rate of Interest 
Month of Maturity/Repayment 

<= 10% > 10% Grand Total 

March-2023 14.62 80.69 95.3 1 
Dccember-2022 75.90 140.61 216.51 
September-2022 153.12 196.88 350.00 
July-2022 - 31.25 31.25 
June-22 153.1 2 196.88 350.00 
May-2022 - 18.75 18.75 
April-2022 17.86 31.25 49.11 
Total 414.62 696.31 1,110.93 

As at March 3 1 2021 

Month of Maturity/Repayment 
Rate of Interest 

<= 10% > 10% Grand Total 
March-2023 97.88 - 97.88 
Deccmber-2022 154.02 62.49 2 16.5 1 
September-2022 287.50 62.50 350.00 
July-2022 - 31.25 3 1.25 
Junc-2022 287.50 62.50 350.00 
May-2022 18.75 - 18.75 
April-2022 17.86 31.25 49. 11 
March-2022 287.50 93.75 381.25 
February-2022 18.75 - 18.75 
January-2022 17.86 3 1.25 49.11 
Deccmber-202 1 287.50 93.75 38 1.25 
Novcmber-202 1 18.75 - 18.75 

October-2021 17.86 31.25 49.1 1 
September-202 1 287.50 93.75 38 1.25 
August-2021 18.75 - 18.75 
July-202 1 17.86 3 1.25 49. 11 
Junc-202 1 390.87 93.75 484.62 
May-2021 18.75 - 18.75 
April-202 1 17.86 3 1.25 49. 11 
Total 2,263.3 1 749.99 3,013.30 

(b) Details of term loan taken from SIDBI (excluding of Interest accrued on Term loans and EIR impact) 

As at March 31 2022 

Month of Maturity/Repayment Rate of Interest 
10.00% to 10.99% Grand Total 

March-23 52.50 52.50 
December-22 52.50 52.50 
September-22 52.50 52.50 
June-22 52.50 52.50 
April-22 89.00 89.00 
Total 299.00 299.00 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements (Continued) 
(Currency :Indian rupees in millions) 

Details of term loan taken from SIDBI (excluding of Interest accrued on Term loans and EIR impact) (continued) 

As at March 31 2021 

Month o f Maturity/Repayment Rate of Interest 
10.00% to 10.99% Grand Total 

Mar-2023 52.50 52.50 
Dcc-2022 52.50 52.50 
Sep-2022 52.50 52.50 
Jun-2022 52.50 52.50 
Apr-2022 89.00 89.00 
Mar-2022 52.50 52.50 
Jan-2022 83.00 83.00 
Dec-202 1 52.50 52.50 
Oct-202 1 83.00 83.00 
Sep-2021 52.50 52.50 
Jul-202 1 83.00 83.00 
Jun-2021 52.50 52.50 
Apr-202 1 83.00 83.00 
Total 84 1.00 841.00 
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53 Repayment terms of Secured Non-convertible Debentures arc as follow: 

The debentures arc secured by way of pari passu charge on an immovable properly and standard loan assets to the extent or I 00% of :he 
outstanding amount of the debentures, unless otherwise stated. 

As at March 31 2022 

Description of Secured Redeemable Non 
Rate Issue Date Redemption Date No. of NCDs Amount* 

Convertible Debentures (NCD) 
ERFL/Public NCD/Serics VI 9.25% 22-Mar-2018 22-Mar-2028 4,83,173 483.17 
ERFL/Public NCD/Scrics V 8.88% 22-Mar-2018 22-Mar-2028 4,09,205 409.ZI 
ERFL/Public NCD/Series IV 9.00% 22-Mar-2018 22-Mar-2023 6,38,802 638.80 
ERFL/Public NCO/Series Ill 8.65% 22-Mar-2018 22-Mar-2023 2,33,785 233.i9 
El<FL/NCO/07Nov22 8.50% 07-Nov-2017 07-Nov-2022 1,000 I 000.CO 

2,764.97 

As al March 31 2021 
Description of Secured Redeemable Non 

Rate Issue Date Redemption Date No. ofNC'Ds Amount• 
Convertible Debentures (NC'D) 
ERFUPuhlie NC'D/Series VI 9.25~~ 22-Mar-20 18 22-Mar-2028 4,83, 173 483.17 
ERFU Public NC'D/Serics V 8.88% 22-Mar-2018 22-Mar-2028 4,09,205 409.2 1 
ERFUPublic NC'D/Serics IV 9.00% 22-Mar-2018 22-Mar-2023 6,38,802 638.80 
ERFUPublic NC'D/Scries Ill 8.65'l-o 22-Mar-2018 22-Mar-2023 2,33,785 233. 7<, 

ERFUNC'D/07Nov22 8.50% 07-Nov-2017 07-Nov-2022 1,000 1,000.00 
ERFUNC'D/ 29Jul2 I 0.00% 03-Aug-2018 29-Jul-2021 100 100.00 

2,864.97 

*Excluding of Interest accrued 011 Term loa11s a11d EIR impact 

54. Repayment terms of Unsecured non-convertible redeemable ~ubordinatc debentures arc as follow: 

As at March 31 2022 

ISIN number Rate Issue Date Redemption Date No. of NCOs Amount* 
INE528S08043 9.25% 06-0ct-2017 06-0ct-2027 1,000 1,000.0t 
IN E528S08035 9.25% 31-Jul-2017 31-Jul-2027 240 240.08 
li'iE528S08027 9.95% 10-0ct-2016 09-0ct-2026 120 120.00 
IN E528S08019 0.00% 25-May-2015 26-May-2025 140 140.00 

1,500.01 

/\s at March 3 1 202 1 

ISIN number Rate Issue Date Redemption Date No. ofNC'Ds /\mount• 
INE528S08043 9.25% 06-Oct-2017 06-0ct-2027 1,000 1,000.0C 
INE528S08035 9.25~~ 31-Jul-2017 31-Jul-2027 240 240.0C 
INE528S08027 9.95% I 0-Oct-20 16 09-Oet-2026 120 120.00 
INE528S08019 0.00% 25-May-2015 26-May-2025 140 140.0(1 

1,500.0C 
*Excluding of/11teresr accrned 011 1'erm loa11s and EIR impact 

55. Repayment terms of Unsecured non-convertible redeemable perpetual debentures arc as follow. 

As at March 31 2022 

ISIN number Rate Issue Date Redemption Date No. of NCOs Amount* 
IN E528S08050 9.75% 26-Dcc-2017 Perpetual 200 200.00 
INES28S08068 10.00% 07-Feb-2018 Perpetual 250 250.00 

450.00 

As at March 31 2021 

ISIN number Rate Issue Date Redemption Date No. of NCDs Amount• 
INE528S08050 9.75% 26-D~-c-20 17 Perpetual 200 200.00 
INE528S0806~ I0.00% 07-Fcb-2018 Perpetual 250 250.00 

450.00 
*Excluding of l11terest accrued 011 Term loa11s and EIR impact 
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56. Capital Management 

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy arc to ensure that the Company 
complies with externally imposed capital requirements from its regulators and maintains strong credit ratings 
and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value. 

(a) The Pillars of its policy arc as follows: 

a) Maintain diversity of sources of financing and spreading the maturity across tenure buckets in order to 

minimize liquidity risk. 

b) Maintain investment grade ratings for all its liabilities issuances domestically and internationally by 
ensuring that the financial strength of their balance sheets arc preserved. 

c) Manage financial market risks arising from Interest rate, equity prices and minimise the i111pac1 of market 

volatility on earnings. 

d) Levernge optimally in order to 111aximise shareholder returns while maintaining strength and flexibility of 
balance sheet. 

This framework is adjusted based on underlying macro-eco110111ic factors affecting business e-ivironment, 
financial market conditions and interest rates environment 

(b) Regulatory Capital 

The below rcgulato1y capital is co111puted in accordance with RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 - Master Direction 
DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-l 7 September 01, 20 16 (updated time to time) read with RBl/2:ll9-20/ l 70 
DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/20 19-20 - l111plemcntation of Indian Accounting Standards dated 
March 13, 2020 issued by Reserve Bank of India on Ind AS financ ial s tatements. 

As at As at 
Pai1iculars l\1arch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Capital Funds 
Common Equity Tier I (CET I) capital 2,106.88 3,181.02 
Other Tier 2 capital instruments (CET2) 1,083.35 1,566.91 

Total capital 3,190.23 4,747.93 

Risk weighted assets 8,644.62 11 ,9 15.15 

CETI Capital ratio 24.37% 26.70% 
CET2 Capital ratio 12.53% 13.15% 

Total Capital ratio 36.90% 39.85% 
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57. 01 her Disclosures 

(i) Details of dues to micro enterprise and small enterprise 

Trade Payables includes Rs.0.89 million (Previous Year Nil) payable to "Suppliers'' registered under the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006. Interest paid by the company during the year to "Suppliers'' registered under this Act is Rs.0.06 million (Previous ye~.r: 
Nil). The aforementioned is based on the responses received by the company to its inquiries with suppliers with regard to applicability unjer tlle 

(ii) Disclosure under regulation 53(f) of SEBI (Listing obligations and disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 202 1 

Loans to advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries - -
Loans to advances in the nature of loans to associates - -
Loans to advances in the nature of loans to !inns/companies in which directors are 
interested - -
Investment by the lonee in the share of parents company and subsidiary company, when 
the company has made a loans & advances in the nature of loans 

- -

(iii) Relationship with Struck off Companies 

Below are the transactions with the companies stmck off under section 248 of Companies Act. 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 
1956 

Name of the struck off company Nature of Rclalionship with Balance outstanding Balance outstanding 
transactions with the Struck off as on March 31 , as on March 3 1, 202 1 
struck-off Company company, if any, to be 20;:2 

disclosed 

Zedpack Pvt Ltd Receivables None 0.01 2.35 
E Factor Enteitainmcnt Pvt Ltd Receivables None - 0.05 
Shellz India Pvt Ltd Receivables None 0.02 2.16 
Total 0.03 4.56 

' fA 
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57. Other Disclosures 

(iv) Disclosure Large Corporate ns per the applicability criteria given under the SEBI circular 
SEBI/IIO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated November 26, 2018. 

Initial Disclosure to be made by an entity identified as a Large Corporate 

Sr. No. Pmticulars 

1 Name of the company 

2 C IN 
3 Outstanding borrowing of company as on March 31. 2022 
4 I I ighest Credit Rating Duiing the previous FY along with name of the Credit 

Rating Agency 

5 Name of Stock Exchange in which the fine shall be paid. in case of shortfall in the 

required borrowing under the framework 

Table 1 
Product Credit Rating 
Bank Borrowings CRIS IL AA-/Negattvc 

Bank Bmrnwings (ICRA) A+/Ncgativc 

Commercial Papers CRISILAl + 

Co111111crcial Papers CARF Al+ 

Long Tenn Sub-Debt CRISIL AA-/Negativc 

Long Tenn Sub-Debt [ICRA] A+/ Negative 

Long Tenn Sub-Debt CARE A+/Stable 

Long Tenn NCD CARE A+/Stable 

Long Terrn-NCD CRISIL AA-/Ncgative 

Long Tenn-NCD BWR AA-/stable 

Long Tcnn-NCD [ICRA) A+/Negative 

Perpetual - Debt BWR A+/stablc 

Perpetual - Debi ACUITE AA-/Negalive 

(iv) Octails of incremental borrowings during the year ended March 31, 2022 

Particulars 

2-ycar block period 

Incremental borrowing done in FY (a) 

Mandatmy bo1rnwing to be done through issuance of debt securities (25% of a) = (b) 

Actual borrowings done through debt securities in FY (c) 

Shmtfall in the manclato1y borrowing through debt securities, if any (bi - (c) = (cl) 
{lfthe calculated value is zero or negative. write "nil"} 

Quantum of (d), which has been 111et from (c) (e) 

Shortfall, if any, in the mandatmy bcrrowing through debt securities for FY 202 l-22{after 

adjusting for any sho11fall in bo1rnwing for FY 2020-21 which was carri~-d forward to FY 
2021-22} (f) =(b)-[(c)-(e)) 

(v) Details of penalty to be paid, if any, in respect to previous year ended March 31,2021 

Particulars 

2-ycar block period 

Atnount of fine to be paid for the block, if applicable Fine = 0.2% of {(d)-(e)} 

Details 
EDELWEISS RETAIL FlNA~CE LIMITED 

U67120MII 1997PLC285490 

6,731.90 

As per Table I below 

BSE LIMITED 

Name of Rating Agency 
CRISIL 
ICRA Limited 

CRISIL 

CARE Limited 
CRISIL 

ICRA Limited 
CARE Limited 

CARE Limited 

C'RlSIL 

Brickwork Ratings 

ICRA Limited 

Brickwork Ratings 

ACUITE Ratings 

Details 

FY 2021-22. FY 2022-23 

Nil 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

Oetails 

FY 2020-21, FY 2021-22 

Nil 
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57. Other Disclosures 

(v) Disclosure of Ratios 

Sr. No. Particulars 

I Debt-equity Ratio (rcfcrnotc I) 

2 Debenture redemption reserve (Rupees in Crorcs) 

3 Net worth (Rupees in Crores) (rcfcrnotc 2) 

4 Net profit alter tax (Rupees in Crores) 

5 Earnings per share (not annualised) 

5.a Basic (Rupees) 

5.b Diluted (Rupees) 

6 Total debts to total assets (rcfernotcl) 

7 Net profit margin(%) (rcfcrnot, 4l 

8 Sector specific equivalent ratios as on March JI, 2022 

(a) Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR) (%) 

(b) Tier I CRAR (%) 

(c) Tier II CRAR (%) 

(d) Stage Ill ratio (gross)(%) (refer note 5) 

(e) Stage III ratio (net)(%) (refer note 6) 

9 Liquidity coverage ratio(rcfer note I) 

March 31,2022 March 3 1,202 1 

I.JS 2.02 

6.78 6.78 

497.02 473.67 

18.47 26.85 

4.30 6.26 

4.30 6.26 

0.53 0.63 

10.47% 10.74% 

36.90% 39.85% 

24.37% 26.70% 

12.53% 13.15% 

2.31% 12.44% 

1.82% 10.2 1% 

N.A N.A 

The company being a retail finance company, disclosure of current ratio, long tenn debt to working capital, Bad debts to Account 
receivable ratio, Current liability ratio, Debtors turnover, Inventory turnover, Operating margin are not applicable 

I. Debt-equity Ratio = Total Debt (Debt Securities+ Borrowings (other than debt securities)+ Subordinated Liabilities) / Net wo11h 

2. Net worth = Share capital+ Share application money pending allotment + Reserves & Surplus - Deferred Tax Assets 

3. Total debts to total assets = Total Debt / Total assets 

4. Net profit margin(%)= Net profit alter tax / Revenue from Operations 

5. Stage 111 ratio (gross) = Gross Stage II I loans / Gross Loans 

6. Stage Ill ratio (net) = (Gross Stage Ill loans - impairment loss allowance for Stage Ill l / Gross Loans 

7.As per RBl guidelines on Liquidity Risk Management Framework, all non-deposit taking NBFCs with asset size of Rs. 5,000 
crore shall maintain the required level of Liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) starting December I, 2020 in plrnsed manner from 30% to 
I 00% by December I, 2024. As at March 3 1, 2022, the Company's asset size is less than Rs. 5,000 crores and hence minimum 
LCR maintenance is not mandato1y for the Company. 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 3 I, 2022 (Continued) 
(Currency : Indian mpecs in millions) 

57. Other Disclosures 

(vi) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC) 

No charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period by the company. 

(vii) Compliance with number of layers of companies 

The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with 

Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 20 17. 

(viii) Uti lisation of Borrowed funds and share premium: 

(A) During the year, the company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any o:hcr person(s) or entity(ics), 
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

(i) di rectly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) o r 

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf o f the Ultimate Benefi ciaries 

(B) During the year, the Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Funding Pany) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Fundini; Pany(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(i i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

(ix) Details of Bcnami Property held 

There are no proceedings which have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any bcnami propeny 
under the Bcnami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

(x) Undisclosed income 

The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or 

disclosed as income durini; the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 

(xi) Rounding of amounts 

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded ofTto the nearest million as per the 

requirements. 

(xii) Details of C rypto Currency or Virtual Currency 

The Company has not 1raded or invested in crypto currency or vinual currency durini; the financial year 202 1-2022. 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2022 (Co11ti1111ed) 

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

58. Regulatory Disclosures 

(i) Foreign currency 
The Company has not undertaken any foreign currency transaction during the year ended March 31, 2022 (Previous year: Rs Nil). 

(ii) Investments 

As at 
Sr. No Particulars March 3 1, 2022 

Value of Investments 

(i) Gross value of Investments 
(a) In India 1,546.90 

(b) Outside India . 
(ii) Provisions for Depreciation 

(a) In India (S.92) 
(b) Outside India . 

(iii) Net value of Investments 

(a) In India 1,540.98 
(b) Outside India . 

Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments 

(i) Opening balance (S.92) 
(ii) Add: Provisions made during the year . 

(iii) Less: Write-off / Written-back of excess provisions during the year . 
(iv) Closin~ balance (5.92) 

(iii) Derivatives 
(a) Forward Rate Agreement/ Interest Rate Swap 

As at 
Sr. No PMl'ticulars March 31, 2022 

(i) The notional principal of swap agreements Nil 
(ii) Losses which would be incurred if countcrpartics failed to fulfill their obligations under the Nil 

agreements 

(iii) Collateral required by the applicable NBFC upon entering into swaps Nil 

(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swap.S Nil 

(v) The fair value of the swap book " Nil 

Note: Nature and terms of the swaps including information on credit and market risk and the 
accounting policies adopted for recording the swaps should also be disclosed. 

5 Examples of concentration could be exposures to particular industries or swaps with highly 
geared companies. 

Ii' If the swaps are linked to specific assets, liabilities, or commitments, the fair value would be 

the estimated amount that the applicable NBFC would receive or pay to terminate the swap 
agreements as on the balance sheet date. 

(b) Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derh•atiYes 

Sr. No Particulars 

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during the year (instrumentwise) 

a) 
(ii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as on March 31, 2022 (instrument-wise) 

a) 
(iii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective" (instrument-wise) 

a) 
(iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective" (instrument-wise) 

Asat 
March 31, 2021 

963.83 
. 

(5.92) 
. 

957.91 
. 

. 

(5.92) 
. 

(5.92) 

As at 
March 31. 2021 

Nil 
Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

l\il 

Amount 

Nil 

Nil 

Ntl 
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Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2022 (Co11tin11ed) 
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58. Regulatory Disclosures 

(c) Qualitative Disclosures 
The Company has a process whereby periodically all long tenn contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year end. the Compmy has reviewed 
and ensured that adequate provision as required under any law I accounting standards for material foreseeable losses on such long term contracts has been made 
in the books of account. The Company has not entered into any derivative contracts during the year. (Previous year Rs. Nil) 

(d) Quantitative Disclosures 

Sr. No Particulars 
Current Interest Rate 

Derivatives Derivatives 
(i) Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount) Nil Nil 

For hedging Nil Nil 

(ii) Marked to Market Positions [I] Nil Nil 

a) Asset(+) Nil Nil 

b} Liability(-} Nil Nil 
(iii) Credit faposure [2] Nil Nil 
(iv) Unhedgcd Exposures Nil Nil 

(iv) Asset liKbility management 

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities 

As at March 31, 2022 

Buckets Deposits Advances Investments* Borrowings 
Foreign Cu rreney Forcigr. Currency 

Assets Assets 

I day to 7 days 52.82 
8 day to 14 days 956.76 62.44 
15 days to 30/31 days (One month) 281.16 129.5 1 
Over I month upto 2 months 67 1.31 13.77 18.75 
Over 2 months upto 3 months 480.43 402.50 
Over 3 months upto 6 months 941.99 4.56 448.59 
Over 6 months upto I year 3.444.82 31.96 2.716.45 
Over I year upto 3 years 1.568.75 
Over 3 years upto 5 years 72.24 1.240.22 371.28 
Over 5 years 2,248.94 300.76 2,582.38 

Total I0,719.22 1,591.27 6,731.90 

*Includes securities held for trading 

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities 

As at March 3 I . 2021 

Buckets Deposits Advances Investments• Borrowings 
Foreign Currency Foreign Currency 

Assets Assets 

I day to 7 days 275.19 
8 day to 14 days 18.22 15.72 
15 days to 30/31 days (One month) 142.87 133.60 
Over I month upto 2 months 1,260.90 18.75 
Over 2 months upto 3 months 406.80 59.48 537.12 
Over 3 months upto 6 months 972.02 877.49 
Over 6 months upto I year 2.861.59 1.767.46 
Over I year upto 3 years 3.377.92 3,285.09 
Over 3 years upto 5 years 664.30 207.85 
Over 5 years 2,568.82 957.91 2.702.36 

Total 12.548.63 1.01 7.39 9,545.44 

*Includes securities held for trading 

(v) Capital to risk assets ralio (CRAR) 

Sr. No Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021 

(i} CRAR (%) 36.90% 39.85% 
(ii) CRAR - Tier I capital (%) 24.37% 26.70% 

(iii} CRAR - Tier U Capital (%) 12.53% 13.15% 
(iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-II capital - -
(v) Amount raised bv issue of perpetual debt instruments - -



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financia l s tatem ents for year ended M:lrch 31, 2022 (Co11li11ued) 

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

58. Regulatory Disclosures 
(vi) Direct assignment & Sccuritisation 

(:1) Disclosures in the notes to the accounts in respect of sccuritisation transa,·tions as required under revised gmdclincs on sccuritiz.11ion 

transactions issued by RBI vide circularno.DNBS. PD.No.301/J.10.0112(•12-13 dated August 21. 2012 

As at 
Sr. No Particulars 

March 3 1, 2022 
I No. ofSPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transaction, 1.00 

2 Total amount of'securitiscd assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored by the NBFC 3 14.47 

3 Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date 
of balance sheet 53.46 

a) Off-balance sheet exposures 

- First loss -
-Others -

b) On-balance sheet exposures 

- First loss 22.01 
- Others 31.45 

4 Amount of exposures lo assignment transactions other than MRR 
a) Off-balance sheet exposures -

i) Exposure to own securitisations -
- First loss -
-Others -

ii) Exposure lo third party sccuritisalions -
- First loss -
- Others -

b) On-balance sheet exposures -
i) Exposure to own sccuritisations -

- First loss -
- Others -

ii) Exposure to third party sceuritisations -
- First loss -
- Others -

•only the SPVs relating to outstanding seeuritisation transactions may be reported here 

(b) Disclosures in the notes lo the accounts in respect of assignment transactions 

Sr. No Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2022 
I No. of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for assignment transactions JO 
2 Total amount ofsecurilised assets as per books oflhe SPVs sponsored by the NBFC 1,573.29 

3 Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date 194.48 
of balance sheet 

a) Off-balance sheet exposures 
- First loss -
- Others -

b) On-balance sheet exposures 
- First loss -
- Others 194.48 

4 /\mount of exposures to assigruncnl transactions other than MRR -
a) Off-balance sheet exposures 

i) Exposure to own sccuritisations 
- First los~ -
- Others -

ii) Exposure lo third party securitisations 
- First loss -
- Others -

b) On-balance sheet exposures 

i) Exposure to own securitisations 
- First loss -
- Others -

ii) Exposure to third party securitisations 
- First loss -
- Others -

As at 
March 3 1, 2021 

-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-

-

-

As al 
March 31. 2021 

R 
2.124.24 

258 31 

-
-

-
258.31 

-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-
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58. Regulatory Disclosures 
(c) Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction 

Sr. No Particulars 

{i) No. of accounts 
(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC .1 RC 
(iii) Aggregate consideration 
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years 

(v) Aggregate gain / (loss) over net book value 

(d) Details of Assignment transactions undertaken 

Sr. No Particulars 

(i) No. of accounts 
(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC / RC 

(iii) Aggregate consideration 
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years 
(v) Aggregate gain / (loss) over net book value 

(e) Details of Sccuritization transactions undertaken 

Sr. No Particulars 

(i) No. of accounts 
(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold 
(iii) Aggregate consideration 
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years 
(v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31. 202 I 

25 171 
393.49 197.03 
370.84 184.85 

- -
(22.65) ( 12. I 8) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 3 I , 2022 March 3 1, 2021 

33 Nil 
3 14.24 Nil 

282.82 Nil 

- Nil 
(31.42) Ni l 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31 , 2022 March 31. 2021 

358 -
282.82 -
314.47 -

- -
31.65 -



E d elwe is s Reta il Fina nce Limited 

Notes to the financial stateme nts for year e nded Mar c h 3 1. 2022 (Co11ti1111ed) 

(Ct!n'cncy : l11diu11 rupees i11 m illio11s) 

58. R egulatory Disclosures 

(vi) Details of non-performing financials assets purchased / sold 
During 1hc year the Company hai,; not purchased non-pcrfo11n i11g linarwials a~scts. (Pn.:.v ious year: Nil) 

A. Dcrn,ls o . I Non ocr onnml! I mancia h d assets mare asc : 
S r. 

No Par ticulars 

(a) No. of accoun1s purchased during the year 

(b) Aggregate outstanding 
(a) Of these, number of accounts restniclUred during the year 
(b) Acgrcgate outstanding 

B D ·1 fN cta1 so on ncr onnmc manc,a as!;cts , o r, S Id : 
S r. 
No 

Particula rs 

(a) No. of accounts sold 
(b) Aggregate outstand ing 
(c) Aggregate considerat ion received 

(vii) E xposure to r eal estate sector, both direct and indirect & exposure to capital market 
a) Exposure to real estate s ector, hoth direct and indirect 

Sr. Particulars 
No 
A Direct exposure 
(i) Resid en tial mo rti:ai:es -

Lending fully secured by mongages on resident ml propcny that is or will be occupied by the 
borrower or that i~ rented 

(ii) Commercial r eal estate -
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings. retail space, 
multipurpose commercial premises. multi-family residential buildings. multi-tcnanccd 
commercia l premises. industrial or wa rehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development 
and ..:onstruction, ck). 

Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other sccuritiscJ exposures -

- Residenual 
- Commerc ial real cslatc 

B Indirect exposure 
Fund ba,cd and non-fund based exposures on National I lousing Bank (NHB) and Housing 

Finance Conrnanics (I IFCs) 

b) Exposure to capita l ma rket 

Sr. 
No Parliculars 

i) direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds. convertible debentures and units of 

equi1y-0riented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively investee.I in corpornte 
debt 

ii) advances agains1 shares/ bonds/ debentures or other securities or on clean basis to 
individuals for invcsuncnt in shares (including IPOs I ESOPs), com·crtiblc bonds. 
convertible <lcbentures. and units of equity-uricnted mutual funds 

iii) advances for any other purpo,;cs where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures 
or units of equity oricnled mutual funds arc taken as p rimary security 

iv) advances for any other purposes lo the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or 
convenible bonds or conveniblc debentures or uni1s of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. 
where the primary security other than shares I con vertible bonds/ conv<•11iblc debenture~ / 
uni ls of equity 0 1 h.:nte<l mutual funds '<loes not fu lly cover the advances 

v) st::curc<l an<l unsccurc<l advances to stockbrokers and gu:mmtci.:s issued on behalf of 
stockbrokers and market mnkcrs 

vi) loans sanctioned lo corporates against the security of shares / bonds/ drbcnlures or other 
securilies or on clean basis for meeting promoter's contribution 10 the equity of new 

companies in an1icipation of raismg resources 

vii) bridge loans to compan ies against expected equity flows/ issues 

viii) all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregislered) 

Total Exposure to Capital Market 

For the year ended 
M arch 31, 2022 

i\'il 
~ ii 
M l 
Ml 

For the year ended 
March 3 1, 2022 

25 
393.49 
370.8 4 

As at 
March 3 1 2022 

1,480.77 

2,957.30 

-
-

-

As at 
March 31, 2022 

-

-

727.47 

-

-

-

-
-

727.47 

For the year ended 

March 3 I, 2021 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

For the year ended 
March 31. 2021 

17 1 
197.03 
184.85 

As at 

March 31. 202 1 

1,675.49 

5,180. 15 

-

As at 
March31,202 1 

-

-

882.83 

-

882.83 
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58. Regulatory Disclosures 

(viii) MoYemcnts in non performing advances: 
The following table sets forth. for the periods indicated. the <letails or movement of gross Stage Ill loans. Net Stage Ill and ECL provision 

S r. As at As at 

No 
Particulars 

March 31, 2022 March 3 I, 2021 

i) Net NPAs to ncl advances (•/o) 1.83% 10.44% 

ii) Movement of NP As (Gross) 
a) Opening balance 1,561.18 381.38 
b) Additions during the year 204.65 1,571.23 

c) Reductions during the year (1,517.77) (391.44) 

<l) Closing balance 248.06 1.561 17 

iii) Movement of net NPA 
a) Of)<!ning balance 1,281.37 306.19 

b) Addit ions during the year 174.50 1,298.57 
c) Reductions during the year ( 1,260.62) (323.40) 
d) Closing balance 195.25 l,2Xl.36 

Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provision on St•ge I & II loans) 

iv) 
a) Opening balance 279.81 75.20 

b) Additions during the year 30.15 272.6.5 
c) Reductions <luring the year (257.15) (68.04) 
d) Closing halance 52.81 279.81 

(ix) Details of single borrow,•r limit and group borrower limit exceeded b) the Company: 
During the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31. 202 1, the Company's credit exposure to single borrowers and groui: borrowers were within the limits prescribed by 

the RBI. 

(x) Unsecured Ad,••nccs 
The company has not taken any charges over the rights.liccnccs,authorisation etc against unsecured loan given to borrowers. 

(xi) Fr•ud Reporting 
There were no instances of fraud identified and reported during the year (Previous Year Nil) as required in tenm of Chapter II paragraph 5 of Monitoring of frauds in 
NRFCs (Reserve Rank) Direct inns, 2016. 

(xii) Remuneration of Directors 
The company has not entered into any transaction with non~xccutivc directors during the year (Previous Year Rs. Nil) cxccpl disclosur-.! made m table bclm\: 

Details oftrnnsaction with non cxecuthes directors 

Name of Directors Nature of trans~ction For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31 , 2022 March 3 I, 2021 

Mr. Mitul Shah Sitting fee~ - -
Mr. Vinocl Juneja S itt ing fees - 0.32 

Mr. Sunil Phatamhekar Silling fees 0.26 . 

(xiii) Net profit or loss for the period . prior period items and changes in •ccountin~ policy 
There are no prior pcriocl items (previous year Rs, Nil) and there arc no changes in accounting policies during the year. except as disclose note 46.1 . 

(xiv) Details o f 'pro, is ions and continJ?cncies' 

Break u1> of 'provisions and contingencies' shown under the head expenditure For lhc year ended For the year ended 
in sratemcn1 of profit and loss. March 3 t , 2022 Mar.h : I, 2021 
(i) Provbions for <lcpn-..·ciation on inV(.."Stmenl 5.92 5.92 

(ii) Provision towards NPA (Stage Ill loans) (226.99) 204.61 

(iii) Provision made towards income tax 23.73 115.35 
,(i\') Prm is1on for Standard loans (Sta~e I & II loans) 83.04 (72.69) 

(xv) Draw down from Reserves 
The Company has drawn Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. 269.30 million) from the debenture redemption rcscnc and tran~fcrrcd to retained earnings on rcccmption of 
debentures till l\forch 31. 2022. Further, pursuant to 1hc amendments in the Companies /\ct, 2013. debenture redemption reserve is not required to be created for 

debentures issued by Non-Banking Finance Companies (including I lousmg F,nancc Companies) regulated by Rc$cr,•c Ba1,k of India. 
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58. Regulatory Disclosures 

(n i) Concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPA< 

A) Concentration of Deposits (for deposit taking NIIFCs) 

Total Deposits to twenty largeSI depositors 
% of Dcoosits oftwc111v lamest dcoositors to total Deoosit taking NBFC 

B) Concentration of advances 

Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 
% of adv~1nccs to twenty largest borrowers to total a<lvam:~s 

C) Concentration of exposures (includes Off balance sheet l'XJ>osure-) 
Total exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers 
% of exposures to 1,,cnty largest borrowers / customers to total Exposure 

D) Concentration of NP As 
Total exposures to top four NPAs 

E) Sector-wise N PAs 

Agriculture & allied activities 
2 MSME 
3 Cofl)orntc borrowers 

4 Services 
5 Unsecured personal loans 
6 Auto loans 
7 Other pcrson:tl loans 

(nii) Custumer complaints 

Particulars 

(a) No. nf complaints pending at the beginning of 1hc year 
(b) No. or complaints rccC"ivcd during 1hc year 
(c) No. of complaints redressed during the year 
(d) No. ofcompl;,ints pending at the end of the year 

(wiii) Details of ratings assigned by credit ratinl! ai:encies 

As at March 31, 2022 
(a) Instrument catcj?or y CRISIL ICRA 

i) 
Long te rm instruments 

1.T-NCD, I.T - Su~ LT-NCU, LT - Sub 
Dt'hl ~nd BLR Debt and BLU 

Rating CHISII.. AA-
ICRA A+/f'\eg:aliH 

/N,·eati\'e 

Amount 1.202.00 3,020.17 

ii) S hort term instruments C P,-ST 

R:tting CRISILAI+ NA 
Amount 200.00 NA 

(h) t h e migration of r a tini:,s duriug the year are Nil 

(a) As "I M.ird1 31, 2021 
Instrument category t'RISIL IC R,\ 

I i) Long tern, instrnmcn1s 
LT-NCO. LT-· Sub LT-NCO. LT-Sub Ucbt 

Debt and BLR and BLR 

CRISILAA-
ICRA A -/Ncg.= I•\'..: Rating INl·galivc 

Amount I K.Oll0.00 JJ.(,00.0G 

ii) Short tcnn instrumenls CPs-ST 
Rating CRISIL Al ' NA 

Amount s.000.00 NA 

(b) Following arc the migration ofrnungs during 1hc year: 

As al As al 

March 31, 2022 March 3 I. 2021 
NA NA 
NA NA 

As al Asat 
March 3 1, 2022 March .11. 2021 

7,060.21 7,2(,4_69 

65.86% 57.89°, 

7,060.21 7,264.03 

6S.S3% 57.Q6°o 

94.13 1,)99.29 

% of NP As to total advances in th Rt sector 

As al As at 

March 3 1, 2022 March 3 I. 2021 
0.00% 0.02°. 
7.81¾ 2.9 1"{. 
1.42% 0. 17°1

0 

0.39% 18.76",o 
0.00% 0.00% 
0.00% 0.00% 
6.29% 13. 18°. 

For the yc~r ended For the yc•r ended 
March 31, 2022 Man.:h 3 I. 2021 

- -
118 15 
118 75 
- -

CARE Orkk\\orks ilrkk"'orh Acuilc 

I .T-NCll and I.T -
Sub Uchl 

I.T-1\Cll Per1lelu:1I Oehl l'cr11c.•:1I Uchl 

CARE A+/Stable B\\'R AA-l<tahlc BWP A+IJt:1ble AIUITE AA.Jr-;t>j!ati\ e 

525.00 SU.OU 100.00 ICU.00 

CPs-~T 

CAl(E Al+ ,,A NA NA 
500.00 :-;A Ni\ ~A 

CAR[ BrH,...,ork:; Orid,wtiri..s 1\1..u11c 

LT-NC.:D and LT LT-N('I) Peq>cwal Ocbi 
L T-NCD. Perpetual 

Sub Dl'bt Debt 

CARE A+/S1ahlc UWR AA-/stahk BWR A-/,1ahi1.: ACUITF. AA- iNcgal1\c 

5,250.IMI 4.500.00 1.000.00 J.500.00 
CPs-ST 

CAR~ Al• NA NA NA 
,.000.00 NA NA NA 

(i) ICRA Rarings revised the ratings on Long Tenn Debi from AA- to A+ Ot! 5th M:ty'2020 while keeping, lht.: outlook unchanged a1 Ncgativl.! :ind also the Sho11 term rdlings from 
ICRA Al < lo ICRA Al. 

(ii) CARF Ha:ings rcvi~cd the outlook 011 Long Term Debt raungs from Stable I<- Nr gative on 7th May· 20~0 :rnd Kcvisc tht Wng tcnn Dell' r.·uing"- from CARr AA• IC CARF A .. 

and re\ i-.ed the.. nutlool from Stahle lo Nega1ive on 8th \)ct' 2020. 

(iii) Rrickwork Ratings revises the 1a1tngs on Long Tenn ll<bt from AA to AA- 011 I O•h r>:ov· 2020 and revis,· the outlook Stable from Negati"c. 

(h) C RISIL Ratings revised the outlook on Long 1cnn Deb• ratings from Stable to Ncgam-c on 25th May' 2020. 
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58. Regulatory Disclosures 

(xix) Disclosure of Restructured Accounts 
(as requirrd by RBI guidelines under reference DNBS. CO. PD. No. 367 / 03.10.01 / 2013-14 dated January 23, 2014 read with RBI circular RBl/2019-20/160 DOR.No.BP.BC.34/21.04.048/2019-20 dated February 11. 2020 & RBV2020-21/ l7 
DOR.No.BP.BC/4/21.04.048/2020-2I dated August 6, 2020). 

Type of Restructur ing Under CDR Mechanism Under SME Debi Restructur ing Mecha nism Others Total 
Sr No Asset C lassification Sul>- Sul>- Sub- Sub-

Details Standard standard Doubtfu Loss Tora! Standard standard Doublfu Loss Total Standard standard Doubtful Loss Tola! Standard standa rd Doubtful 
I Restructured accounts a,;; on 1st April. No. of borrowers - - - - - - - - - - 55.00 7.00 - - 62.00 55.00 7.00 -

2021 (Opening figures) (refer nore I) Amount outstanding - - - - - - - - - - 1,054.49 92.31 - - 1,146.80 1,054.49 92.31 -
Provision thereon - - - - - - - - - 123.01 16.58 - - 139.59 123.01 16.58 -

2 Fresh rcstrucruring during the year No. of borrowers - - - - - - - - 56.00 - - - 56.00 56.00 - -
(refer note 2) Amount outstanding - - - - - - - - 740.89 - - - 740.89 740.89 - -

Provision thereon - - - - - - . - 47.06 . - - 47.06 47.06 . -

3 Upgradations of rcs1ructurcd accounts No. of borrowers - . - - . . . 1.00 (1.00) - . . 1.00 (1.00) . 
to Standard category Amount oulstanding . - . . . . - - . 70.82 (70.82) . - - 70.82 (70.82) . 

Pro,·1s1on thereon - - - . - - . . . . 9.87 (9.87) - - - 9.87 (9.87) . 
4 Restructured advances which ceases to 

attract higher provisionjng and/ or No. of borrowers . . - . . . . - . . . . . . 
(8.00) (8.00) (8.00) 

additional risk weight at the end of the 
financial year and hence need not he Amrnmt outstanding - - - . . - - . - 171.24 0.86 . - 172.10 171.24 0.86 -
shown 3S restnictured standard 
advances at the beginning of the next Provision thereon . . . . . - - -financial year 

. . 34.19 3.42 - . 37.61 34.19 3.42 . 

5 Oown1,rradations of restructured No. of borrowers . - - . . . . - - (13.00) 13.00 . . 13.00 (13.00) 13.00 -
accoW1ts during 1he FY Amount outslanding . . . . . . . . . - (51.71) 51.71 . . 51.71 (51.71) 51.71 -

Provision thereon - . - - . . . . . (9.10) 9.10 . . 9.10 (9.10) 9.10 -

6 \Vrite-ofTs o f restructured accounts No. of borrowers - . . . . - - - . . (9.00) (3.00) . - (12.00) (9.00) (3.00) . 
during the FY 21-22 Amount outstanding . . - . . . . . - - (8.75) (4.87) . . ( 13.62) (8.75) (4.87) -

Provision !hereon . . . . . . - . . (5.47) (3.80) . . (9.27) (5.47) (3.80) . 

7 Restructured accounts as on 31 SI !\far, No. of borrowers . . - . . . 82.00 16.00 . . 11 1.00 82.00 16.00 . 
2022 (Closing figures) I Amount outstanding - . . - - - - . 1,976.98 69.19 . . 2.097.88 1,976.98 69.19 . 

Provision thereon . . - . . . - . . 199.56 15.43 . . 224.09 199.56 15.43 . 

Note: 
I. Excluding the figures ofS1andard Restructured Advances which do not attract higher provisioning or risk weight (if applicable) 
2. Amount outstanding of fresh restructuring during the year is the amount outstanding as on the date of restruc1uring. 
3. Tht: above tablt: excludes the recoveric::s madt: on n::structurc::d accounts. 

Loss 

. 

4. Above disclosure also includes loan accounts,~ hich are restructured Wldcr RBI circular on 'Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector - Restructuring of Advances' dated January I, 2019 which arc reflecting under 'Sub-Standard (i.e. Stage Ill) category as per 
classifica1ion under Ind AS. 

r;-r,:· 
,u,,,,,-· ....... <-\ 

I (.1 

'* ' \ ct. ... .. .;;.., ,~"Y. ~-
·~re,• t-, •,o'!,,, .._._..._,.,, 

Total 
62.00 

1.146.80 
139.59 

56.00 
740.89 
47.06 

. 

. 

. 

(8.00) 

172.10 

37.61 

. 

. 

. 

(12.00) 
(13.62) 

(9.27) 

98.00 
2.046.17 

214.99 



Edelweiss R etail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended !\larch 31 , 2022 (Conti1111ed) 

(Curre ncy: Ind ian rupees in millions) 

S8. Regulalory Disc1osures 

(xh) Disclosure of Restructured Accounts 

(as required by RBI guidelines under r eference DNBS. CO. PD. No. 367 / OJ.JO.OJ / 2013-14 dated Januo11 23, 2014 r ead \\ilh RBI circular RBl/2019-20/160 DOR.No.BP.BC.34/21.04.048/2019-20 da red Febru• 11· 11. 2020 & RBl/2020-21/1 7 
DOR.No.BP.BC/4/21.04.048/2020-21 daled August 6. 2020). 

Type CJf Restructuring Under CDR ~lcchanism Under SME Debt Restructuring Mechanism 

Sr No Asset C lassification Sub-
Details Slandord slnndard Doubrfu Loss Total Standard 

I Restructured :iccoun1s a.s on I $l April. No. of borrmv(rs - - - - -
2020 (Opening figures) (refer norc I 1 Amount outstanding - - - - -

Provision thereon - -

2 Fresh r1!strucmring dunng the year No. of borrowers - - - -
(refer nole 2) Amount outstanding - - - - - -

Provision thereon - -

3 Upgradations of r~tmcn1red accounts No. of borrowers - - - -
to Standard categoT) Amount outst:mding - - - -

Provmon thereon - -
4 Re~truclUred advances which ceases to 

anract higher provb.ioning and/ or No. of borrowers - - - - -
additional ric;k weight at the end of the 
flnancial year and hence need no1 he A mount nulst:inrl ing - - - - -
shown as restmcturcd c;t::rncb.rd 
advances at the begiMing of the next 

Provision thereon - - - - -
financial yc-ar 

5 Oo" ngradations of rcstmcturcd No. o f borrowers - - - - - -
accounls during lhe FY Amount outstanding - - - - - -

Pro, ision thereon - - - - -

6 Write-offs ofrcstruetured acco1Jnts No. of borrowers - - - - - -
during the FY 20-21 Amount outstanding - - - - - -

Pro,·is ion thereon - - - - -

7 Restructured accounts as on 31 ~I Mar, No. of borrowers - - - - -
2021 (Closing figwcs) Amount outstanding - - - -

Provis ion thereon - - -

Note: 
I. Excluding the figures of Standard Rc:struc1un:d Advances which do not attract higher provisioning or risk weight (if applicable) 

.2. Amount oubtanding of fresh restructuring during 1hc year is the amount outstanding as on the da1c of rfstructuring. 
3. The abo,·e table excludes the recO\eries made on restructured accounts. 

Sub-
slandard Doubtfu Loss Total 

- -

Others Totol 

Sub- Sub-

Standard standard Doublful Loss Total Slandard standard Doubtful 

2.00 28.00 30.00 2.00 28.00 

1.88 85.73 - - 87.61 1.88 85.73 

0.02 34.65 - 34.67 0.02 34.65 

50.00 50.00 50.00 

1.076.46 1.076.46 1,076.46 -
127.55 127.55 127.55 

7.00 (7.00) 7.00 - 7,00 

13.73 (D.73) 0.00 13.7, • 13 73 
9.76 (9.76) - 0.00 9.76 - 9.76 

4.00 31.00 35.00 4,00 3 1.00 

(24 75\ 1\1 40 36.61\ · 24 7, 1\1 40 

3.81 32.78 36.59 3.81 32.78 

(2.00) 2.00 

163.80) 63.80 -
(10.5 1) 10.5 1 -

(2.00) (15.00) 17,00 · 2.00 - 15.00 

(1.48) (17.9 1) l'l.39 - 1.48 - 17.91 

(13,96) 13.96 13.96 

55.00 7.00 62.00 55.00 7.00 

1,054.49 92.3 1 1,146.80 1, 11 8.29 28.S I 

123.01 16.58 139.59 133.52 6.01 

Loss Total 

30.00 
87.61 

34.67 

- 50.00 
I ,076.46 

127.55 

0.00 
0.00 

35.00 

16 66 

36.59 

11.00 
19.30 

13.96 

- 6 2.00 
1, 146.80 

139.59 

-t. AbO\c disclosure also inc:udcs loan dCC0un1s " hich :lrc restructured under RBI circular on 'Micro, S:MII and Mrdium Enterprises (MSME) sector - Restructuring of Advances' datrd January 1. 2019 which arc re flecting under 'Sub-Standard (i.e. Stage III) catcgof') as per classification 
under Ind AS. 

ff ,i , 
"o' 
1·* 
~ 

f;"~ 
Acco'' 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 3 I, 2022 (Con1i1111etl) 

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

58. Regulatory Disclosures 

(xx) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector - Restruclurin~ of Advances 
(as required hy RRI ,:uidelincs under reference RBl/2018-19/100 DIIR.No.BP.BC.l8/21.04.048/2018-19 dated January 01. 2019) 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 

No of account~ n.:structurcd 
Amount (Indian mpccs in millions) 

(xxi) Rci:istration obtained from other financial sector regulators - Nil (rrcvious Year- Nil) 

(xxii) D<'tail of financing parents compan}' products -Nil (Previous Year - Nil) 

(xxiii) Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators - Nil (Previous Year - Nil) 

(xxiv) Ownership Overseas Assets (for those with joint ventures and subsidiaries abroad) 
There are no overseas asscls owned by lhc company (Previous year Nil) 

(xxv) Nole to the halancc sheet of a non-<leposit takiug non-banking financial Company 

77 
880.40 

For the year enc.Jed 
March 31, 2021 

49 
47.76 

Note to the balance sheet of a non-deposit taking non-b;-inking financial Company as required in lcrms of paragraph 18 of Master Direction- Non-Banking Financial 
Company- Sys1cmalically lmportanl Non-Dcposil taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Diree1ions, 2016. 

Liabililies side: 

I Particulars 

Amount outstanding Amounl o,·erduc 
Asat Asat As at A, al 

March JI 2022 March 31, 2021 March 3 1, 2022 March 3 I, ~011 
1) Loans and .i<lvanccs availed by NBFC inclusive of interest accmcd 

!hereon but 1101 paid 

(a) Debentures: 
(01hcr 1han 1hose falling wilhin 1hc meaning of Puhlic deposit) 

(i) Secured 2,804.43 2,923.81 - -
(ii) Unsc<.·ured 2,153.18 2.119.04 

(b) Deferred crcdi1s -
(c) Term loans 1,400.18 3,852.46 -
(d) lntcr-corporale loans and borrowing - - -
(c) Commercial paper - - -
(I) O1her loans - - -

(i) Loan from related parties - 9.87 - -
(ii) Bank overdrall 374.11 640.27 - -
(* Please sec note I below) 

Assets side: 

2) Break up of loans and advances including bills receivables 
(mhcr lhan 1hosc included in (3) below) 

(a) Secured 6,028.04 8,228.16 - -
(b\ Unsecured 4,691.18 4,320.47 - -

3) Drt!ak up of lca;;cd as'-.cts and '-tock on hire and other asscl~ counting 
towards AFC activit1e~ 

a) Lease assets including lease rental~ under sundry deblors: 
(i) Financial lease - - -
(ii) Operating lease - - - -

b) S1ock on hire including hire charges under sundry dehlors 
(i) Assets on hire - - - -
(ii) Repossessed a~scts - - -

c) 01hcr loans counling towards asscl financing Company ac1ivi1ie., 
(i) Lo:ms where :1sscts have been repossessed - - - -
(ii) Other loans - - -



E delw eiss Retail F inance Limilcd 
Notes to the fin an cial statements for year ended March 31, 2022 (Co11ti1111erl) 

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions) 

58. Rcgulolory Disclosures 

Note to the balance sheet of a 11011-<lcrosit taking non-banking financial Company a~ rcquire<l in terms of paragrnph 18 of Master Direction- Non-8J.nking Financial 

Company- Sysrcmalically lmportanl Non-Dcposil t.iking Company and Deposit taking Comnany ( Reserve l:lank) Directions, 20 I 6. 

Particulars 

4) Break up of inveslmenls 
Current investments: (inclmling securities held for trading) 
(a) Quoted: 

(i) Shares: Equiry 
Preference 

(ii) Debcnrures and bonds 
(iii) Unils of mutual funds 
(iv) Government securities 

M Others 

(b) Unquoted: 
(i) Shares: Equity 

Preference 
(ii) Debentures and bonds 
(iii) Units of mutual fund~ 
(iv) Go,·emmcnt securities 
(v) Others (pass through cct1iftcatcsJ 

Long-tenn investments (net of provision) 

(a) Quoted: 
(i) 

(ii ) 
(iii) 

Shares: Equity 
Preference 

Debentures and bonJs 
Units of mutual funds 

(1v) Government "iccuritics 
(v) Others 

(b) Unquoted: 
(i) Shares: Equity 

Prcfcrl.!ntc 

(ii) Debentures and bonds 
(iii) Units of mutual l\tnds 
(iv) Gon:rnmcnt scrurities 
(v) Others : Pass throu~h ccrt1ficatcs 

Security receipts 

Units of Altcma1ivc ln'"cstments Fund (AIF) 

5) Borrower group-wise dassilication of assets financc<l as in (2) and(:\) above 

Secured 
Parl iculars As at Asat 

March 3 1, 2022 March 31. 202 1 
I. Related panics .. 

(a) Subsidiaries - -
(b) CompaniL:s in the same group - -
(c) O1her related parties -

2. Other lhan related pat1ics 5,625.81 7,729.75 

Total 5,625.81 7,729.75 

Amount net of1n·o\·isions 
Unsecured 

As a l As at 
March 3 I , 2022 March 31. 2021 

- -
3,604.80 2.010.79 

- -

1,')05.83 2,IS3.3R 

4,610.62 4.194.16 

As a l As at I 
March 3 1 2022 March 31, 2021 

-
-

50.29 

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

1,240.22 
300.76 

Tora! 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

3,604.80 

6,631.64 

10,236.43 

-
-

59.4~ 
-
-
-

-
-
-

-

70~.I I 
249.X0 

Asat 
March 3 1. 202 1 

2.010 79 

9.913.13 

11 ,923.91 

6) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long-ten11) in shares and s,-curities (both quoted and unquoted) 

Particular~ 

I) Related parties 

(a) Subsidiaries 
(b) Companies in !he same group 
tc) Other rclalcd parties 

2) Other than related 1>arties 
Totul 

Market value/break up or fair value or 
NAY 

As at 
March 3 I, 2022 

851.63 
739.M 

1,591.27 

As at 
March 3 I, 2021 

469.94 
547.45 

1,017.39 

Book \'alue 

(net of provisio■s) 

As a t 
March 31, 2022 

851.63 
739.64 

1,591.27 

As at 
March 3 1. 2021 

469.94 
547.45 

1.017.39 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2022 (Conti11•,ed) 

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions) 

58. Regulatory Disclosures 

7) Other information 

Sr. 
Particulars No 

(a) Gross non~pcrfonning assc1s 

I) Related par1ics 
2) Other than related par1ies 

(b) Ne1 non-performing assets 
I) Related r,artics 
2) Other lhan related par1ies 

(c) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt 

Note: 

Asal 
March 31 2022 

-
248.06 

-
195.25 

-

I. As defined in paragraph 2(1 )(xii) of the Non-Banking Financial Compnay Accep1ance of public depositstReserve 3ank) Direciion.1998. 

(xni) Disclosure on peq ,elual debt 

tor tile year 

Particulars ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Amount of funds raised 1hrongh Pcrpc1ual debt - -
instrument during the year 

As at As a: 
Particulars M :orch 3 1,2022 March 3 1.2021 

Principal amount outstanding as at year end. 450.00 450.00 

Pcrcen1agc of the amount of Perpelual debt of the 14.15% 12.71% 
amount of its Tier I Capital 

Unoaid interest on l'erpe1ual debt - -

(xnii) There arc no amount due and ou1s1anding 10 be credited 10 investor education & pro1ec1ion Fund as al Marc~ 31, 2022 and al March 31, 202 1 

(xxviii) OfTbalanc sheet SPY sponsored -NIL (Previous year NIL) 

-~ 
/ l"t' • L:.. C. 

~f 
r;,O"'~ 

As a1 

March 31. 202 

-
1,561.17 

1,2s uc 

-



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2022 (Co11ti1111ed) 
(Currency : Indian rupees in million s) 

58. Regulatory Disclosures 

(xxix) Prudential Floor for ECL 

As at March 31, 2022 

In tem1s of the r~quirement as per RBI notification no. RBl/2019-20/ 170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No. I 09/22. 10.1062019-20 dated March 13, 2020 on Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards, Non­
Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) arc required to create an impairment reserve for any shortfall in impairment allowances under Ind AS 109 and Income Recognition. Asset Classification and 
Provisioning (IRACP) nom1s (including provision on standard assets). The impairment allowances under Ind AS I 09 made by the Company exceeds the total provision required under IRACP (including 

standard asset pro\'isioning), as at March 31, 2022 and March 3 1, 2021. Accordingly, no amount is required to be transferred to impairment reserve. 

Gross Carrying 
Loss Allowances Difference between 

Asset classification as (Provisions) as Net Carrying Provisions required Ind AS 109 
Asset Classification as per RBI Norms 

per Ind AS 109 
Amount as per fnd 

required under Ind Amount as per IRACP norms provisions and 
AS 

AS 109 IRACP norms 
I 2 3 4 5 = 3-4 6 7 = 4- 6 

Performing Assets 

Standard 
Stage I 7,469.23 40.36 7,428.86 29.86 10.51 
Stage 2 3.001.94 389.61 2,612.34 11 4.14 275.46 

Subtotal 10,471.17 4l9.97 10,041.20 144.00 285.97 

Non-Performing Assets (NPA) 

Substandard Stage 3 194.46 47.84 146.62 30.66 17.18 

Doubtful - up to I year Stage 3 32.00 2.84 29.15 7.70 (4.86) 
I to 3 years Stage 3 2.17 0.19 1.98 1.62 ( 1.43) 
More than 3 years Stage 3 19.43 1.94 17.48 13.8 1 ( 11.87) 
Subtotal for doubtful 53.59 4.98 48.62 23.14 (18.16) 

Loss Stage 3 - - - -

Subtotal for NPA 248.05 52.82 195.23 53.80 (0.98) 

Other items such as guarantees. loan commitments, etc. which Stage I 55.55 0.14 55.4 1 - 0.14 
are in the scope of Ind AS I 09 but not covered under current 

Stage 2 Income Recognition. Asset Classification and Provisioning - - - - -

(IRACP) norms Stage 3 0.04 - 0.04 - -

Subtotal 55.59 0.14 55.45 - 0.14 

Total ')rngc I 7,524.78 .io.,o 7,484.21 29.86 10.65 
Stage 2 3,001.94 389.61 2,612.34 114.14 275.46 
Stage 3 248.09 52.82 195.27 53.80 (0.98) 
Total 10,774.81 482.93 10,291.88 197.80 285.13 

~ 
~ 

( ~ 
~,:-:-:=:o-.S-



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (Continued) 
(Currency :Indian rupees in millions) 

58. Regulatory Disclosures (Continued) 

(xxix) Prudential Floor for ECL (Continued) 

As at March 31, 202 1 

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms 

I 

Performing Assets 

Standard 

Subtotal 

Non-Performing Assets (NPA) 

Substandard 

Doubtful - up to I year 
I to 3 years 
More than 3 years 
Subtotal for doubtful 

Loss 

Subtotal for NP A 

Other items such as !:,'llarantecs. loan commitments, etc. which 
arc in the scope of lnd AS I 09 but not covered under cu!l'cnt 
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning 
(!RAC!') norrns 

Subtotal 

Total 

Gross Carrying 
Asset classification as 

per Ind AS I 09 
Amount as per Ind 

AS 

2 3 

Stage I 7,686.17 
Stage 2 3,301.29 

10,987.46 

Stage 3 1,399.84 

Stage 3 142.45 
Stage 3 6.55 
Stage 3 12.33 

161.33 

Stage 3 -

1.56 1.1 7 

Stage I 17.00 

Stage 2 42.38 

Stage 3 -

59.38 

Stage I 7,703.17 
Stage 2 3,343.67 
Stage 3 1,561. 17 
Total 12,608.01 

Loss Allowances Difference between 
(Provisions) as !':et Carrying Provisions required Ind AS 109 

required under Ind Amount as per IRACP norms provisions and 

AS 109 lRACP norms 
4 5 = 3-4 6 7 = 4 - 6 

94.42 7.59 I. 75 30.56 63.86 
247.30 3,053.99 13.71 233.59 
341.72 10,645.74 44.27 297.45 

256.0CJ 1,143.75 131.52 !24.57 

21.3 7 12 1.08 23.98 (2.6 1) 
1.39 5.16 1.09 0.30 
0.96 11.37 4.78 (3.82) 

23.72 137.61 29.85 (6. IJ) 

- - - -

279.81 I ,281.36 161.37 118.44 

0.49 16.51 - 0.49 

2.70 39.68 -
2.70 

- - -
-

3. 19 56.19 - 3.19 

94.91 ' 7,608.26 30.56 64.35 
250.00 3,093.67 13.71 236.29 
279.8 1 1,281.36 161.37 118.44 
624.72 1 [ ,983.29 205.64 419.08 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2022 (co11tillue1/) 

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions) 

(xxx) Disclosure on liquidity risk 

As required in terms of paragraph 3 of RBI Circular RBl/2019-20 '88 DOR.NLlFC (PD) CC. No. 102/03. 10.001/20 1?-20 dated November 4, 201? on 
Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies. 

a) Funding Concentration based on significant counterpa11y (both deposits and borrowings) 

Number of s ignificant counterpartics• 

Amount of borrowings from significant countcrparties 

•• of Total deposits 

•,. of Total liabilities .. 

As at 
March 3 1, 2022 

19 

4,400.91 

NA 

58.25% 

• "Significant cou11terpa11y" is defined as a single counterpnii y or group of connected or affiliated counterparties accounting in aggregate for more than I% 
of the NBFC-NDSI's total liabilities 

•• "Total liabilities" rclcrs to total external liabilities (i.e. excluding total equity). 

h) Top 20 large deposits 

The Company being a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company registercc with Reserve Bank of India, docs not accept 
public deposits. 

c) Top 10 Borrowings 

/\mount of Borrowing.s from top IO lenders 

0
{. of Total 8 01Tmvings 

d) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product* 

Market Horrowings 
Non Convertible Debentures 
Perpetual and Sub-ordinated Debentures 

Other Borrowings 
Term Loans 
Cash Credit Lines 

Working Capital Demand Loan 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

3,708.42 

55.09% 

As at March 31. 2022 

Amount 

2,804.4J 
2,153.18 

1,400.18 
374.11 

% of Tomi Liabilities•• 

37.12% 
28.50% 

18.53% 
4.95% 
0.00% 

• "significant instrument/product" is defined as a single instrument/product of group of similar instruments/products •vhic~. in aggregate amount to more 
than I% of the NBFC-NDSl's total liabilities. 

•• "Total liabilities ,. refers to total external liabilities (i.e. excluding total equity). 

e) Stock Ratios 

Commercial papers as a % of total public funds* 
Commercial papers as a 0, o of total liabilities 

Commercial papers as a% of total assets 

Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a% of total public funJs 
Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less lhan one year) as a% of total liabilities 
Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a% of total assets 

O ther short-term liabilities••. if any as a% of total public fund, 

Other short-term liabilities••, if any as a % of total liabilities 

Other short-tenn liabilities••. if any as a% of total assets 

• "Total public funds'" refers to the aggregate of Debt securities, Borniwing other than debt securities and Subordinated liabilities. 

•• '"Other short-term liabilities .. refers to the borrowing in short term 111 nature .. 

As at 
!\larch 31, 2022 

0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

5.56% 
4.95% 
2.96% 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2022 (Co111i11ued) 

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

f) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management 

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted the Asset Liability Management Committee and the R:sk Management Committee. 

The Asset Liability Management Commit1cc, inter alia 

• Implement and administer guidelines on Asset-Liability Management approved by the Board and its revision, if any; 

• Monitor the asset liability gap and overcome the asset-liability mismatches, interest risk exposure, etc.; Strategizc action to mitigate risk associated with 
the asset liability gap; 

• Develop risk policies and procedures and verify adherence to various risk parameters and prudential limits; review the risk monitoring syslc11 and ensure 
effective risk management; and 

• Ensure that the credit and investment exposure to any party / Company/ group of parties or companies docs not exceed the internally set lirr its as wer as 
statutory limits as prescribed by Reserve Bank of India from time to Lime. 

• Company has a Liquidity Concingcncy Policy in place to ensure various liquidity parameters are defined and tracked regularly. Liquidity Management 
Team is provided with update on expected liquidity shortfalls in Normal as well as Stress scenario. 

• the Company has ensured maintenance of a Liquidity Cushion in the fon11 of Mutual Funds and liquid fixed deposits with banks, etc. These assets carry 
minimal credit risk and can be liquidated in a very short period of time. A comfortable liquidity cushion is maintained of the borrowings. These would be to 
take care of immediate obligations while continuing 10 honour our commitments as a going concern. 

• There arc available lines of credit from banks which are drawable on notice which further augment the available sources of funds. 

59. Details of Resolution plan implemented under the Resolution Framework for COVID-19 related stress as per circular dalcd August 6, 2020. 
Format B - for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Exposure to accounts Exposure to accounts 
classified as Standard 

Of (A) amount 
classified as Standard 

consequent to Of (A), aggregate debt 
written off 

Of {A) amount paid by consequent to 
Type of borrower implementation of that slipped into NPA 

during the half 
the borrowers during implementation of 

resolution plan - Position during lhe half-year 1hc half-year resolution plan - Position 
as at the end of the 

year 
as at the end of this half-

previous half-year (A) year 

Personal Loans - - - -
Corporate persons• 616.68 - - - 616.68 
Of which, MSMEs - - - - -
Others - - - -
Total 616.68 - - - 616.68 

• As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code. 20 f 6 

60. The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidcn11al assent in 
September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has 1101 been ootificd and 
the final ntlcs/intcrprctation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related 
impact in the period the Code becomes effective. 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2022 (Co11ti1111ed) 

(CmTcncy: Indian mpccs in millions) 

61. Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever nccessmy to confonn to current year presentation. 

As per our report of even date attachcJ. 

For G. D. Aptc & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAJ Finn Registration Number : I 005 I 5W 

Place: Mumbai 

Date : May 06, 2022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 

Director 
DIN: 05 124763 

Mchcrnosh Tata 
Chief Executive Officer 

Phanindranath Kakarla 
Director 

DIN: 02076676 

Jigncsh Caglani 
Company Secretary 
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